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Party in Interest’s Supplemental Appendices (“Far West Appeal Appendix™), hereto as Exhibits
10 and 11, respectively. Insummary, Far West’s arguments are as follows:

¢ This Court clearly had jurisdiction to sanction Ms. Mona who had: (1) been served with
an order requiring her to appear for the judgment debtor examination; (2) éppeared at the
judgment debtor examination where she failed to raise any objection to personal
jurisdiction; and (3) voluntarily appeared at a hearing before this Court with counsel, and
again did not raise personal jurisdiction as an issue. See Far West Appeal Answer, at pp.
18-23. _

e Ms, Mona’s suggestion that Far West added her as the party to the Judgment and
consequently needed to institute a separate action against her to collect on the Judgment
has no basis in law or in fact. The Judgment was against Mr. Mona and consequently Far
West, consistent with the laws of Nevada, could collect its Judgment against the
community property of Mr, Mona without instituting a separate action. In addition to
legal precedent clearly establishing that a separate action against a spouse does not need
to be instituted to collect a debt against community property, public policy further
demands that such precedent should not be adopted. 1d. at pp. 23-30.

o The Sanctions Order satisfied Ms, Mona’s due process rights as she was given notice as
well as an opportunity to be heard. In fact, Ms. Mona repeatedly declined the opportunity
for additional time for briefing and the hearing. See Far West Appeal Answer, at pp. 30-
31, |

e This Court properly applied Nevada law for the proceeding supplementary to the
execution of judgment. The meet and confer requirements of NRCP 37(a)(2)(A) do not
apply to the sanctions at issue in this case, since the Motion for Sanctions was made
pursuant to NRCP 37(b). Id. at 32-35.

¢ There was no obligation to conduct an evidentiary hearing where there were no material
factual questions and the sanctions did not involve dismissal without prejudice. The

Sanctions Order provided a detailed and carefully written explanation of its analysis in its
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order sufficient to satisfy Nevada requirements for an order issuing sanctions. Id. at 35-

46,

To the extent that Ms. Mona’s rehashed appeal arguments are an attempt to obtain
reconsideration of the Sanctions Order by this Court, it is procedurally improper and untimely to
seek such relief through her Opposition. EDCR 2.24(2). Her assertions of prejudice have been
fully considered and summarily rejected by this Court and the Nevada Supreme Court in
considering whether o stay this case and the Sanctions Order without bond. See Bond Order,
issued October 16, 2015, and Order Denying Motion, Exhibit 7 to the Motion,

As Ms. Mona has failed to provide any legitimate or factual basis for why Judgment
should not be entered against her based upon the Sanctions Order, Far West respectfully requests
that the Motion be granted.

Dated this 14" day of March, 2016.

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9549

ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 12580

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Indusiries
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1308




W W o~ Y U D W B e

B N [ 1\ e [ 3% B [ ] — oy oy — oy [ony S —; o e

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 HEREBY CERTIFY thaton March 14, 2016, pursuant to EDCR 8.05 and NRCP 5(b), ]
caused to be served electronically using the Court’s E-File & Serve System, a true and correct
copy of the foregoing PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRIES’ REPLY IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TO REDUCE SANCTIONS ORDER T'O JUDGMENTS to the parties below:

Avwrora M. Maskall, Esq. Tye 8. Hanseen, Esg,

David S. Lee, Esq. Terry A. Coffing, Esq.
LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM & MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
GARAFALO ‘ 1001 Park Run Drive

7575 Vegas Drive, #150 Las Vegas, NV 89145

Las Vegas, NV 89128 Attorney for Michael J. Mona, Jr.
James E. Whitmire, Esq, Erika Pike Turner

SANTORQO WHITMIRE Dylan Ciciliano

10100 West Charleston Boulevard, GARMAN TURNER GORDON
Suite 250 650 White Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89135 Suite 100

Attorney for Rhonda Helene Mona Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Attorney for Roen Ventures. LLC

@)

An employee of Holley Driggs Walch
Fine Wray Puzey & Thompson

105940171664 564.doc
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APEN

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9549

E-mail: tedwards@nevadafirm.com
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12580

E-mail: agandara@nevadafirm.com
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH

FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone:  702/791-0308
Facsiriile: 702/791-1912

Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Indusiries

Electronically Filed
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CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California
corporation,

Plaintiff,
v,

RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada limited
liability company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT,
INC,, a California corporation; BRUCE MAIZE,
an individual, MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an
individual; DOES 1 through 100, inclusive,

Case No: A-12-670352-F
Dept. No.: XV
APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS TO

PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRIES”
REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO
REDUCE SANCTIONS ORDER TO
JUDGMENT

[Filed concurrently with Plaintiff’s Reply in
Support of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Qrder

Defendants, to Judgment]
DATE OF HEARING: March 21, 2016
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00a.m.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
EXHIBIT DOCUMENT PAGE
10 Real Party In Interest’s Answering Brief 1-61
11 Supplemental Appendix to Real Party In 1-1080
Interest’s Answering Brief
Document Date Pages
1 Applicaﬁén of Foreign October 18,2012 0001-
Judgment 0007
2 Order for Appearance of | January 30, 2013 0008-
Judgment Debtors 0015
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Industries, eic. vs.
Michael J. Mona, Ir,. etc..
et al., Eighth Judicial
District Court Case No.
A-15-724490-C

Transeript of Judgment November 25, 0016~
Debtor Examination of 2013 0160

Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Order for Examination of | May 13, 2015 0161-
Judgment Debtor 0169

Michael J. Mona, Jr.,,

Individually, and as

Trustee of the Mona

Family Trust Dated

February 12, 2001

Order for Examination of | May 13, 2015 0170-
Rhonda Mona as Trustee 0178

of Judgment Debtor The

Mona Pamily Trust Dated

February 12, 2001

Transcript of Judgment June 26, 2015 0179-
Debtor Examination of 0497

Rhonda Mona

{erroneously named on its

face as “Deposition of

Rhonda Mona™)

Transcript of Judgment June 30, 2015 0498-
Debtor Examination of 0979

Michael J. Mona, Jr.

First Amended September 16, 0980~
Complaint , Far West 2015 0997
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

RHONDA HELENE MONA and
MICHAEL J. MONA, JR,,

Petitioners,
v.
THE EIGHTH JUDCIAL DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE STATE OF
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY
OF CLARK, AND THE HONORABLE
JOE HARDY, DISTRICT JUDGE
Respondents,
and
FAR WEST INDUSTRIES,

Real Party in Interest.

SUPREME COURT NO. 68434

Electronically Filed
Oct 01 2015 11:32 a.m.

District Court Case Niradiel B-670%8Tan
Dept. No.: CletR of Supreme Court

Volume 1 of 4
Pages 0980 - 0997

Wedeeetk

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9549

RACHEL E. DONN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 10568
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12580

HOLLEY DRIGGS

WALCH

10594-01/1576501

FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Real Party in Interest
Far West Industries

Docket 68434 Document 2015-29705
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CIVIL COVER SHEET A-12-670352-F

Clark County, Nevada IV
Case No.
, _ (lssigned by Clerk s Offive)
1. Party Information
Plaintifi(s) (numeladdress/phone); Defendant(s) (name/nddress/phone):
Far West Industries Rio Vista Nevada, LEC,
World Develupment, Inc,
Briee Maize,
Attomey (name/sddressiphone): Michagl J. Mona, Jr.
David 8. Lee, Esq.
Lee, Hernandez, Landrum, Garofalo & Blake, APC
7575 Vegas Drive, Suite 150 Attoensy (numi/address/phone):
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
(702) 880-8750
1L, Nature of Controversy (Please check appllcable bold category and [1 Arbitration Requested
applicable subeategory, if appropriate)
Civil Cases
Real Property Torts

[ Landlard/Tenant Negligence [ Product Linbility

7 Unlawiu! Detainer L] Negligence —Auto [] Produc Linbilicy/Motor Vehicle
[1 Title to Property {1 Negligence ~ Medieni/Dental .} Other Toris/Produet Liobility

[] Foreclosure [ Negligence — Premises Linbility 7] ntentionai Misconduct

Ol Lie {Stip/Fot) [ TonsfOetamption {Libel/Siander)

icns £ Interfere with Contract Righis

{71 Quiet Title

[ Specific Performance
[ Condemnation/Eminent Domain
[3 Other Real Property

{71 Partition

{7 Planning/Zoning

[T} Negligence — Other

{1 Employsvent Torts (Wrongful termination)
L1 Other Torts
Anti-trust
Froud/Misrepresentation
] Insupance
] Legal Tont
] Unfair Competition

Probate Other Civil Filing Types
. M Construction Defect {3 Appeat from Lower Court fafso chock

{71 summary Administention 0] Clupter 40 erplicuble cisil case box)

3 Geaeral Administraiion [0 Generd [] Transfer from Justice Court

[} Specint Aduinistration 71 Breach of Contrnet [ Justice Cour Civil Appenl

7} Sot Aside Beihtis \wE}wBuilding'&»Gopsmxction e I £ 0117 1R 2y T
[ Trast/Conser " [l insurance Coreier {7 Other Special Pmewding
rust/Conservatorships L] Commercial Instrument

[} Individual Trustee
7] Corporate Trustes
[1 Other Probate

[l Other Contracts/Acct/udgment
[l Collection:of Actions

[l ‘Employment Contract

[ Guarantee

[} Sale Contract

[ Uniform Commercinl Code

I Civil Petition for Judicial Review
{77 Other Administrative Law
-1 Department of Motor Vehicles
[} Worker's Compensation Appeal

5 Other Civil Filing

{1 Compromise of Minor's Claim

{ | Conversion of Propesty

] Damoge to Propeny

[1 Employment Securily
Enforcement of Judgrment
Forcign Judgment - Civit

{7 Other Personal Properly

{1 Recovery of Propery

"] swekholder Suit

L] Other Civil Maiters

1IN, Business Court Requested (Plense check applicable eategory; for Clark or Washoe Counties only.)

Nevntls ADC ~ Blanoing nnd Annlysis Division

0001

Form PA 200
Rev. 238
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7] NRS Chapiers 78-88
Commodities (NRS 90)
Securitics (NRS 90)

[ vestments (NRS 104 Art, 8)

Dereptive Trade Practices (NRS 598)

1] Trademarks (NRS 600A)

[] Endwnged Cose Mpmt/Business

{1 Other Business Court Matters

QOctober 18, 2012

Date

e of initiating parly or representative

Nevids AOL - Planning ond Annlysis Division

0602

Farm PA 204
Rev, 238
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Electronically Filed
10/18/2012 04:42:40 PM

FORJ i b Mmm.—

John R. Hawley

Nevada Bar No. 001545 CLERK OF THE COURT
LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM,

GAROFALQO & BLAKE

7575 Vegas Drive, Suite 150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

(702) 880-9750

Fax; (702) 314-1210

jhawley@leelawfirm.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California CASENO.: A-12-670352-F
corporation, 1V ‘

Plaintiff, APPLICAION OF FOREIGN
. JUDGMENT

V8.

RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada
limited liability company; WORLD
DEVELOPMENT, INC,, a California
corporation; BRUCE MATZE, and individual;
MICHAEL J. MONA, JR,, an individual;
DOES I through 100, inclusive,

Defendants,

1| STATE OF NEVADA )

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN R, HAWLEY, ESQ.

: 55,
COUNTY OF CLARK. )

COMES NOW, JOHN R. HAWLEY, ESQ., being first duly sworn, and states as follows:
1. That Affiant is an attorney, duly licensed to practice in the State of Nevada and is a

memiber of the law firm of LEE, HERNADEZ, LANDRUM, GAROFALO & BLAKE.

0003
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LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM,
GAROFALO & BLAKE
7575 VEGAS DRIVE, SUITE 150
LAS VEGAS, NV 89128
{702 8809750

N

0 o8 ~3 N L ELS [¥5]

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21,

22
23
24
25
26
27
28

2. That Affiant is counsel of record for FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California

corporation in the instant matter.

3. That the name and last known address of the Judgment Debtors herein are as follows:

Michael J. Mona, Jr,
2793 Red Arrow Drive
Las Vegas, NV §9135

Michael J, Mona, Jr., as trustee of the Mona Family Trust dated February 21,
2002

2793 Red Arrow Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89135

4. That the name and address of the Judgment Creditor herein is as follows:
Far West Industries, a California corporation

2922 Daimler Street
Santa Ana, CA 89128

5, That the Judgment herein, a duly exemplified copy of which is attached hereto, is valid

and enforcesbie.

6. That no portion of the Judgment herein has been satisfied.
FURTHER Affiant sayeth naught.

o o
DATED this /¥ day of October, 2012,

[ L _
Ji)y?’mwwv, ESQ.

SASCRIBED and SWOEN 16
before me this_/# ﬁday of
October, 2012.
NORMA RAMIREZ
Notary Public Stale of Nevada
N, 07-235541 9
o " . ! ”“.,".“.“39.‘3"“'_"3‘”2'”’5 <
NOTARY PUBLIC (SEAL)
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EXEMPLIFICATION CERTIFICATE

‘The documents to which this certificate is attached are full, true and correct copies
of the originals on file and of record in my office. All of which we have caused by these
presents to be exemplified, and the seal of our Superior Court of California, County of

Ftivers'ide to be hereunto affixed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereto set my hand

and affixed the Seal of the said Court,

Shem R. Carter, Clerk
Superior Court of California, County of Riverside

I, Mae £ Fishep , Judge of the Superior
Court of the State of California, in and for the County of Riverside, do hereby certify that

SHERRI R. CARTER whose name is subscribed to the preceding exemplification, is the
Clerk of the said Superior Court of the State of California, in and for the County of

Riverside, and that full faith and credit are due to her official acts, |further certify, thatthe

seal affixéd 1o the exemplification is The seal of our said Superior Court and that the

attestation thereof is in due form and according to the form of attestation used in this State.

Date Mt 7.

Judge of i upenor Caurt c;f Califomia
County of Riverside

28 USCA, Sec. 1738
Form No. 334 (1/90; 10/87; 2/98; 3/00; 10/00; 5/01;1/03; 4/03; 6/03)
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, RIVERSIDE COURT

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California
corporation,

' Plainéiff,
VS,

)
)
)
i
RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, 2 Nevada limited 3 Action Filed: March 24, 2008 -
liability company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT, 3 Trial Date: September 23, 2011
INC., a Califorma corporation; BRUCE MAJZE ‘ ) ‘
an mdwxdual MIC L J. MONA,JR,, an )
individual; and DOES 1 through 100 mcluswe, ;

}

)

Defendants,

On February 23, 2012, the Honorable Jacqueline Jackson entered Finding of Fact and
Conclusion of Law in the above-referenced matter, Based upon those Findings and Conclusion,
Judgment is herchy entered in favor of Plaintiff Far West Industries, a California corporation and

| against the following Defendants, jotntly and severallys (1) Michasl 1, Mona, 3¢5 (3) Mickael 1.

Mona, Jr., as Trustee of the Mona Family Trust dated February 21, 2002; (3} Rio Vista Nevada,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company; and (4) World Development, Inc., a California
corporation in the amount of $17,777,562.18. Recoverable court costs of $25,562.56 and
attorney's fees of $327,548.84 are also awarded to Far West industries, jointly and severally
against all Defendants, The Clerk is hereby directed to enter those amounts on this Jadgment
following Far West Industries’ post-Judgment petition for them. Finally, the Clerk is hereby

FPROPOSEDJIUDUMENT NUNCPRO-TUNC—

Ll L R R T N e T T
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11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18
19

20°

2]

24
25
26
27
28

directed to releave the $32,846 thay was interplead by Defendant Fidelity National Title Company
to Far West Industries upon entry of this Judgment. ‘

Dated: z/ QZ,W’// P

[PROPASED] JUDGMENT NUNG PROFENC

Fewm VP e e By b ses e

0007
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GAROPALO & BLAKE

755 VEGAS DRIVE, SUITE 150

LAS VEGAS, NV 85128

{702} 880-9750:

)8

Electronically Filed
01/30/2013 11:51:57 AM
1 {OAID . Mm«.-
DAVID 5. LEE, ESQ. Qb b
2 |INevada Bar No, 6033 CLERK OF THE COURT
John R. Hawley
3 ||Nevada Bar No, 001545
LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM,
4 JGAROFALO & BLAKE
7575 Vrgas Drive, Suite 150
5 |{Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
(702) 880-9750
6 |iFax; (702) 314-1210
disef@lee-lawfinn.com
7 || inawley@lee-lawfirm.com
% 1| Attormeys for Plaintiff
9 DISTRICT COURT
10 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
1l
12 1l FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California CASENO.: A-12-670352-F
13 || corporation, DEPT: - 2
14 Plaintiff, ORDER FOR APPEARANCE OF
JUDGMENT DEBTORS
16 || RIO VISTANEVADA, LLC, a Nevada
limited liability company; WORLD
17 i DEVELOPMENT, INC,, a California
eorporation; BRUCE MAJZE, and individusl;
18 || MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an individual;
19 DOES I through 100, inclusive,
21
99 ORDER FOR APPEARANCE OF JUDGMENT DEBRTORS
23 _ This matter, having come on regularly for hearing in Chambers before the Honorable
%% |l sudge Kerry Enrley, upon FAR WEST INDUSTRIES' (“FWI") Ex Pacte Motion for Order
25 iAllnwing Examination of Judgment Debtors (“Motion”). The Court having earefully examined
26 the pleadings and papers on file in this matter, and with good cause appearing, hereby amtery ity
21 Orders as follows:
28 §i
1 01-18-13p04:36 RCVD oo
1
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TARGFALO & BLAKE
E
tn

7575 VEOAS DRIVE, SUITE 150

LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM,
LAS VEGAS, NV 29128
- (10218809750
NN A3
mﬂmﬁgzﬁﬁﬁgza':;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADYUDGED, AND DECREED that the Motion filed on
behalf of FWI is hereby GRANTED,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that MICHAEL J,
MONA, JR, individuelly, and MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., as Trustee of the Mona Family Trust
dated February 21, 2002, appear at Litigation Services, 3770 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 300
Las Veges, Nevada, on the 18" day of February, 2013, at the hour of 10:00 a.m., with regard to
the Judgment entered ageinst MICHAEL J. MONA, IR, individuslly, and MICHAEL 1. MONA,
IR., as Trustee of the Moma Family Trust dated February 21, 2002, in favor of FWI on January
12, 2010, then and there to answer questions under oath concerning the assets of MICHAEL J.
MONA, IR, individually, and MICHAEL J. MONA, IR., as Trustee of the Mona Family Trust
dated February 21, 2002,

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR, individually, and MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., as Trustee of
the Mons Family Trust dated February 21, 2002, ARE COMMANDED TO BRING copies
of any and all documents outlined in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR, individually, and MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., as Trustee of
the Mona Family Trust FAILURE TO APPEAR AT THE TIME SET FORTH ABOVE
COULD RESULT IN AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE TO BE ISSUED TO EXPLAIN ITS
FAILURE TO APP AND TO DISCLOSE ITS ASSETS.

DATED this day of January, 2013.

A1 TCO JUDGE

Respectfully submitted by:

LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM,
GAROFALO & BLAKE, APC

375 Vegas Drive, Suite 150
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

N

OO(PQ
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£102) 8805750

LAS VEGAS NV 15128

7575 VEGAS DRIVE, SUITE 150

LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM,
GAROFALD & BLAKE

L I Y I L N X

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

28

Judgment Debtor Exam of MICHAEL J. MONA, IR, individnally, and MICHAEL J. MONA,

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR, iodividually, and MICHAEL J, MONA, JR., as Trustee of the |
Mona Family Trost dated February 21, 2002, AT DEBTOR'S EXAMINATION. (*You” and
“Your” refers herein to MICHAEL J, MONA, IR, individually, and MICHAEL J. MONA, IR., as

Ez;g! QIT #* Aﬂ

JR., a5 Trustee of the Mona Family Trust dated February 21, 2002

LIST OF DOCUMENTS AND THINGS TO BE PRODUCED BY

Trustee of the Mona Family Trust dated Pebruary 21, 2002),

1.

Any and al] Federal Employer Identification Numbers, Sales Tax Numbers, Siate
Tax Numbers and City Tax Numbers,

Copies of any and all documents establishing and/or governing the Mona Family
Trnst dated February 21, 2002, and any amendments thereto,

A copy of each document showing your monthly income for the last 6 months,

A copy of cach of your federal income tax returmns with all schedules and any
quarterly estimates of income taxes from 2005 through to the present.

A copy of each of your state income tax returns with all schedules and any
quarterly income taxes from 2005 through to the present,

Al *1099" forms reflecting income received by you for the last five (5) years.

Records of any and all monies received by you whether in the nature of banuses,
reimbursement of expenses, wages or reimbursement of Toans for the past five (5)

years.

Documents reflecting all assets (real, personal or mixed), whether owned by you
individually, in any partnership or corporation form or in joint tenancy or in
tenancy in common for the past five (5) years.

A copy of all documents related to any real assets (land, buildings, and any other
commercial or residential real estate) in which you have any interest, as well as
any appraisals prepared on such assets. The requested documents specifically
include but not limited to all Deeds, Deeds of Trust, Mortgage Applications,
Closing Statements, coupon books, statements of account, eredit reports, title

4 0011
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10.

1.

12,

13.

14,

15.

16.

17,

insurance policies, and all other information in any way reflecting your
involvement with, your ewnership of, or your transactions as regards real estate or
other property owned by you,

A copy of any and all Jease(s) which you have signed, including, but not limited to,
residential, commercial, and automotive, These Jeases do not need to be owned by
you but can be regarding real estate or other property not owned by you but for
which regular monthly lease peyments are made.

A copy of all statements, and a copy of each check register for each account, for
each and every financial institution (including but not limited to all banks, savings
and loans, eredit unions, and brokerage houses) where you have an account, whers
you have signature authority on.an account, or in which you have held or now hold
an interest from January 2005 through to the present.

A copy of all bank statements, deposit slips, and canceled checks for all bank,
money market deootints which you own or in which you owned any interest
whatsoever, or on which you were authorized to draw checks, whether said
documents were in your name alone, in the name of another person/entity, or in the
name of another and yourself as joint tenants, for the period of three (3) years prior
to the date hereof, i

Al savings account passbooks, bank statements and certificates of deposit for any
and all accounts, in which you owned any interest whatsoever, or from which you
were authorized to make withdrawals, whether said accounts were in your name
alone, in the name of any other person, or in your name and another as joint
tenants, for the period of five (8) years prior 1o -the date hereof,

All records regarding safe deposit boxes and any cerfificates of stocks and bonds
belonging to you orin which you have had any interest direct, indirect, contingent,
beneficial, or otherwise, whatsoever either alone or jointly with any other person
for five {3) years preceding the date of this Order.

All stocks, bonds, debentures or other securities, which you personally own or
claim any interest to or had any interest in whether such interest was direct,
indirect, contingent, beneficial, or otherwise, either alone or jointly with any other
person for five (5) years preceding the date of this Order,

All life insurance policies naming you as beneficiary whether direct, indirect,
contingent, beneficial, or otherwise, therein.

A copy of all certificates of title or any other documents evidencing your
awnership with respect to any automobiles, motorcycles, trucks, RVs, ATVs, jet
skis, boats, trailers, airplanes, or any other type of vehicle, wiich you now own,
claim any interest in, or regularly derive,

5 001
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18.

18.

20.

21,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27,

All evidence of any and all notes, contracts, negotiable instruments, receivable or
accounts receivable whether due or not die belonging to you or in which you bave
orhave had any interest whosoever either alone or jointly with any other person or
persons for five (5) years preceding the date of this Order.

A list of real property owned by you and, if ocoupied by Tenants, please siate the
following:

a. Tenants" names;
b. Tenants’ address;
t. amount of monthly rent,

Documents relating ta evidence of each and every credit card in your name or
Jjointly with another person/entity, together with copies of all statements submitted
by said credit companies for the Jast five (5) years,

All fire, burglary, and extended coverage insurance policies now in foree upon any
real estate or personal property (including copies of insnrance inventories) owned
by you or in which you have or have had any interest whatsoever eithier alone or
jointly with any other person(s)/entity(ies) for five (5) years preceding the date of |
this Ordes.

Alltitles, bills of sale, or contracts of sale upon personal property, including but
not Jimited to, stocks, bonds, memberships, or partnership interests, automobiles,
boats, airplanes, household goods, miscellaneous fumiture and fixtures belonging
to you or inn- which you have or have had any interest {direct or indirect, beneficial
or utherwise), whatsoever either alone or jointly with any other person or persons
for five (5) years preceding the date of this Order,

A complete inventory of all items of personal property owned by you, of any
nature whatsoever, including autamobiles, boats, sirplanes, household fixtures,
fumishings, and appliances, whether paid for or not. 1 the personal property is not
in your possession and in the possession of another person, designate the name and
address of the person having possession of the property.

Caopies of all financial statements given by you, either individually or jointly with
another person or as a corporation, to any third party at any point during the past
five (5) years preceding the date of this Order.

A statement listing all of your debts and obligations.

Allautomobile or personal property casvalty or collision-or all Tisk insurance
policies presently owned by you.

A copy of all records pertaining to the acquisition, transfer and sale of all

seeurities, in which you have had an interest from st least five (5) years prior to the
date hereof to the present.

6 )
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29.

30.
3L
32,
33

34.

35,

36.

37,

38.
9.

40.

41.

42.
43.

A copy of all evidence of mining claims, patents or development work owned by
you or in which you have or have had any intetrest whatsoever cither along or
jointly with any other person or persons for at least five (5) years immediately
preceding the date of this Order.

A copy of all documents which evidence any trademark, trade namé, capyright, or
patent in which you have or have had an interest;

A copy of all general ledgers, acconnting journals, financial siatements or-other
financial records prepared or maintained as regards your finances during the last
five (5) years:

A copy of any/all lawsuits, judgments, etc., which you may be a party fo.

A copy of all Joan applications used for any purpose whatsoever in the last five (5)
years.

A copy of your cwrrent plan and your most recent plan statement or summexy plan
description for any deferred compensation in which you are a participant.

A copy of any and all agreements, of whatever kind, for the use of a safe deposit
box, safe or vault or other place of safekeeping.

A copy of each and every life insurance or annuity policy in which you hold a
beneficial interest,

Copies of all your corporate records, including Minutes (for the past 5 years),
Stock Transfer Ledgers and other “cosporation”™ records.

Copies of any partnership or joint venture agreements and al} correspondence
related thereto. .

Copies of all of 'your business licenses,

Copies of any and all contracts to which you are a party entered info within thes Jast
five {5) yenrs.

All records, which evidence charitable donations of $100 or more ip to personal
“gifis” with a value of more than $100 made by you or on your behalf within the

last five (5) years.

Copies of any and all documents whereby you acquired or disposed of an interest
in any business(es) within the Jast five (5) years.

Copies of any employment or consulting contracts to which you are a party.

Any notes owed to you.
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44,

45.

46.

47.

48,

Copy of all accounts receivable documents, both current and for five (5) years
prior to the date of this Order.

All of your general ledgers, accounting journals, financial statements or other
financlal records prepared or maintained during the fast five (5) years,

A copy of each and every docﬁment evidencing each and every business in which
you have, or had, an interest from 2005 through to the present.

A copy of each and every pmfit and Joss siatement for each busivess.in which you
have, or had, an interest from 2005 through to the present,

A copy of each financial statement or credit application prepared by you or on

behalf of you and/or any business in-which you have, or had, any interest, whether
legal or equitable, in the past five (5) years.
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California)
corporation,

FPlaintiff,

CASE NC.: A-12-670352-F
DEPT. NO.: 26

VS

RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada
limited liasbility company: WORLD
DEVELOPMENT, INC., & California
corporation; BRUCE MAITZE, an
individuals; MICHARL J. MONA, JR.,
an individual:; DOES I~100,
inclusive,
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Defendants.

St Siamer

JUDGMENT DEBTOR EXAMINATION
MICHAEL J. MONA, JR.
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2013

REPORTED BY: JACKIE JENNELLE, RPR, CCR #809
JOB NO.: 194436 '
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR, - 11/25/2013

JUDGMENT DEBTOR EXAMINATION OF MICHAEL J.
MONA, JR., taken at 3770 Howard Hughes Parkway, Las
Vegas, Nevada on MONDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2013 at 10:00

a.m., before Jackie Jennelle, Certified Court
Reporter, in and for the State of Nevada.

APPEARANCES:
For the Plaintiff:

LEE HERNANDEZ LANDRUM GARQFALO & BLAKXE
BY: JOHN R. HAWLEY, ESQO.

7575 Vegas Drive, No. 150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

{702) B80-9750

For the Defendant, MICHAEL J. MONA, JR.:
JOHN W, MUIJE & ASSOCIATES
BY: JOHN W. MUIJE, ESQ.
1320 South Casino Center Boulevard

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
{702) 386-7002

Alsc Present:

IRA GLASKY

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ 800~330-1112
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR, - 11/25/2013

I ¥ D E X

WITNESS: MICHAEL J, MOKA, JR.

EXAMINATION

BY MR. HAWLEY

EXHIBITS MARKED
EXHIBIT

Exhibit & Application of Foreign .

o Judgement
Exhibit B Order

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ 800—330*1112‘0
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. -~ 11/25/2013
Page 4

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2013:; 10:00 a.m,
-o0o~
Thereupon -~
MICHAEL J. MONA, JR.,
was called as a witness, and having been first duly
sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
EXAMINATION

BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. Will you state your name for the recoxd,
please.

A, Michael Joseph Mona, Jr.

Q. How do you spell your last name?

A. M-O~N-A.

Q. Mr. Mona, you know we're here for a
Judgement Debtor Exam; is that correct?

A, Correct.

Q. Just some housekeeping: This a copy of the
domesticated judgement in Nevada that I'11 mark as
Exhibit A.

/ MR. HAWLEY: Do you want to look at it,
John?

MR. MUIJE: No.

MR. HAWLEY: We have a copy of an order

dated October 7, 2013, regarding a status check.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112
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MICHAEL J. MOKWA, JR. - 11/25/2013

MR. MUIJE: Let me skim that real quick. I
think I wrote it.
MR. HAWLEY: I think you did, too. It was
verbose, so yes.
MR. MUIJE: That's me.
Very good. No objection.
MR. HAWLEY: And that's Exhibit:B.
(é%?ﬁbit A Application of Foreign Judgemert marked.)
. (Exhibi%vB Order marked.)
BY MR. HAWLEY: |
Q. All right. Mr. Mona, just a little
background first.
What's your date of birth?
A. August 2, 1954.
Q. And your place of birth?
A Camden, New Jersey.

Q. All right. Did you graduate from high

A, Valley High School 1872.
. In Las Vegas?

Yes.,

1960.

Q

A

Q. Okay. When did you move to lLas Vegas?
A

Q All right. How was it that you came to

move to Las Vegas?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. ~ 11/25/2013

My mother and my dad and my three sisters.
QOkay. I take it yonr dad got a job here?
Correct.

That's the way most of us got here,

Yes.

© »o o

- After graduating from Valley High School in
1972, did you take any college classés?

A, I went to UNLV fbx six months,

Q Okay. And what did you take there?

A, Business classes.

Q. Did you get a dagree from UNLY?

A No.
Q- Did you get any post~secondary educational

A. No. ‘
Q. When you left UNLV, what did vou do for a

A. Went to work.

Q. Where?
A. Itternational Hotel, busboy and room
sService.

Q. Okay. How long did you do that?
Al Two years.
Q. Okay. And why did you leave the

International Hotel?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800~330-1112 0021
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 11/25/2013

A. I staved there for longer than that. Then
I got promoted the a waiter. I was there prcbably
three years, four years.

Q. 8¢ takes us to 18767

A, Something like that.

Then I parked cars at the MGM.

Q. The old MGM, now Bally's?

A, Correct, correct,

Q. Qkay.

A. Then after that, when I was 21 years old,
was a dealer. I dealt for a couple years,

Q- Where did you deal?

A, Started at the Stardust for about a year.
Then I weni to the MGM, which was Bally's.

Q. Okay. So that takes us to 1980 or so?

A. Somewhere in that area.

Q. Okay. And you dealt cards at the Stardust
and Bally's?

A, I dealt craps.

Q. Craps?

A. Correct.

Q. At both the Stardust and Bally's; is that
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. When you Jeft Bally's dealing craps, what

I

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 8006~-330~1112
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., - 11/25/2013

A. Basically running his company after ten
years.
Q. Ckay.

did you do next?

A, Went to work fb: my brother-in~law, Bob
Bigelow, as a laborer in the construction industry.

Q. What kind of construction did Mr. Bigelow

do?
A, He was into apartments.
Q. How long did you work for Mr. Bigelow?
A, About ten years.
Q. Up to about 1990 then?
a. I don't know. You have to do the math. I

know it was about ten years. I've been on my own

for about 27 years, so we can do the math backwards.

Q. 80 27 years?

Yes.
oR That takes us back to 937
A. You're better at math than I am,
Q. I had a high school teacher that told me to

warn him of any bridges I might build. 8o that's
why I became a lawyer.

Buat that said, that takes us to 1993. You
started as a laborer in 1993 with Mr. Bigelow.

What did you end up with him?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800~330-1112 0023
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MICHREL J. MONA, JR. =~ 11/25/2013

Assisting him running his company.
What was the focus of that company --

Apartment construction.

© 5o

-- when you left?

A, Apartment construction and management. We
would find the parcels, build them through my
brother-in-law and manage them. Hé owned them all.

Q. Is that company still around?

A. You know, I den't know. I've not talked to
my brother~in-law in about 20 years. I don't know
if he's still around or not.

Q. Fair enough. Fair enough.

Why did you leave Bigelow?

A. Go on my own.

Q. Okay, And'when you went on your own, what
did you do?

A, Basically the same field, apartments.

Q. What was the name of the company?

A. M&M Developments at that time.

Q. Okay. And were you CEO of M&M Development?
A, President correct, CEO.

Q. Any partners?

A. My wife, the bank, the IRS. But no.

Q. All right. And bhow long did vou own M&M?
A You know, I'm guessing here now. I don't

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ 800-330-~1112 0024
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1 Q. What year did M&M cease to exist?

Page 10

want to be -— 1 know it's not good to guess at these

things, but 15 years, maybe 20 years.

A. 2000. When I filed bankruptecy, MM filed
bankruptcy also in 2000.

Q. Okay. And what was the cause of that.
bankruptoy?

A. Cagino ~~ I applied for a casino license
and did not get it.

Q. What cadino license were you applying for?

What were you trying to do at that time?

A. Sunrise Casinoc in Boulder Highway.

Q. Why didn't you get the license?

A Political. I'm just going to leave it at

that. Very pelitical.

Q. Have you ever been cohvictéd of a felony?

A, No.

Q. How about a miédemeanox involving moral
turpitude?

A. Involving what?

0. Moral turpitude?
MR. MUIJE: Do you know what that means?
THE WITNESS: No.
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. Fraud, sexual offenses, lying.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330~1112 0025
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A. No.

Q. Ckay. After you went bankrupt, did you
reincarnate as another company?

A. Mona Co., M~O-N-A C-0.

Q. Okay. And is Mona Co. still around?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And what does Mona Co. do?

A. Nothing. It's basically & shell company.
At one time, it was my vehicle to build apartments.

t was my development/management vehicle.

Q. Okay .

A. Had a general contractors license and all
that.

Q. Ckay. Did you ever utilize that general
contractor's license?

- In other woxds, did you ever self-perform?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And when did Mona Co. stop doing
business and become a shell?

A. About four to five years ago.

Q. Qkay. 2And why did that occur?

A

The economy.,

Q. Okay. When the economy went down, it went
down?
A. Correct.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330~1112
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Q. Okay.

A, It lost its contractor's license because of
insufficient funds, lost the bond.

Q. Okay. Have you made any steps to
xeinviéoxaté Moria Co.?

A, No.

Q. Since Mona Co. cedsed -- I'm sorry. Let me

back up. I'm sorry. Go ahead.
A. Go ahead.
Q. No, you.
Okay. Since Mona Co. -~ strike that. Did
Mona Co. cease doing business when the economy
tanked or ~-
A. It still has an open office on Sahara.
Q. What is the purpose of Mona Co. having an
open office on Sahara?
A. No purpose.
. Do you have it staffed?
‘ One person's there.

Q
A
Q. Who is that?
A, Karen BEpstein.
Q

How long has Karen Epstein been with Mona
Co.?

A, Two months, maybe three months. She's new.

Q. What does Karen Epstein do to f£ill her day

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112
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Page 13

if Mona Co. is not in business?

A. That's a good guestion.

Q. All right. Do you maintain an office
there?

Al Yes.

Q. Are there any other offices maintained

A. For myself.

0. For anyone else?
A, Yes.,
Q. Who?

A. A guy named Hamid has an office there. A
guy named Ted Sevinsky (phonetic} has an office
there. Another guy named Nick Velardo (phonetic)
comes in and out.

Q. Do they work for Mona Co.?

A. No.

Q. Are they tenants?

A. No.

Q. What is their status with -- how do they
get offices in a Mona Co. suite?

A. Mona Co. sharves an office with ariother
company called CannaVest.

Q. CannaVest?

A, Correct.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHROLOGIES - 800-330-1112
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Q. And you have an intereést in CannaVest,
don't you?
A, No.
Q. Did you ever have an interest in CénnaVest?
A. An interest as far as what?

Q. A financial interest.

Have you ever owned shares, managed,
anything?

A. I'm employed by CannaVest.

Q. What do you do CannaVest?

A I'm the president.

Q. And what is CannaVest's business®?

A. CannaVest is a publicly~traded company that
is in the cannabinoid business.

Q. Okay. You'rxre talking about marijunana?

A. No. You obviously don't know cannabincids
or CRBD.

Q. Okay. You'we talking about the active
ingredient in marijuana, pharmaceutical?

A. There are about 700 active ingredients in
marijuana. Cannabinoid is one of them. There's
ne -~ you de not get high off cannabinoids or CBD.
It's purely medical.

Q. Okay. That's fair,

- Does Mona Co. own any property?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ 800-330-1112
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A. No.
Q- No real properxrty?
No?

A. No.

Q. No personal property?

A. Maybe a couple computers, typewriteérs,
things like that.

Q. How many employees does CannaVest have?

A Approximately seven =+ gix or seven,
We know you're the president; right?
Right.
What do the other employees do?

©

Scientist, sales, marketing.

°© »o p

Okay. Does Mona Co. generate any income?
No.

Does CannaVest generate any income?

.

For the corporation?

Yes.

Yes.

Is it profitable?

No.

Does it have plans to become profitable?

-

oo LI © B B o B

Hopefully. Thai's our goal.
Q. Okay. And what will its business be F

acdording to the plan, when it becomes profitable?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0030
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A. I don’t understand the quesgtion.

Q. How does CannaVest intend to become
profitable?
How's that? r

A By selling cannabinoids and CBD in that
atmosphere, that market.
Q. Okay. In what market?

A, In the cannabinoid market.

Q. Who buys cannabinoids?

A. Epileptic individuals, pecple with medical
problems, different individuals.

Q. All right. You don't sell to

pharmaceutical houses?
A. That is hopefully in our future. As of

right now, the answer is no.
Q. You sell to individuals?

A Correct.

Q. Do you sell through the mail or do you sell
in storefrontsa? ]

A. CannaVest does not sell. CannaVest hired a
company called Hemp Meds, which does all its
distribution. CannaVest does not sell itself.
CannaVest has the product. Hemp Meds distributes
it.

Q. Does Bemp Meds purchase the cannabinoids

LITIGATION SERVICHES & TECHNOLOGIES ~ 800~330-1112 0031
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 11/25/2013
Page 17

from CannaVest? _
A. No. 1It's given to Hemp Meds, and they get f

a percentage of the sales.

Q. It's more of a congignment?
Correct.
Do you have any interest in Hemp Meds?
No, sir.
Have you ever?

Q

A

Q

A. No, sir.
Q Do you make any income from Hemp Mads?
A

Q

‘ Do I?
Yas,
A. No.
Q. How much are you paid as president of
CannaVest?

A. $126,000 a year.

O. Do you draw any kind of salary or other
compensation from Mona Co.?

A, No.

0. In addition to your salary from CannaVest,

do you have any other benefits?
Do you have a car or anything like that?
Expense account?
A, CannaVest has an apartment, a loft in San
Diego, that I use that CannaVest pays for when I go
Rewummmamssssmmm—" caa me———

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNQLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0032

1347




Lo =0 S -2 W 4 S ~SU % S G S Y

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 11/25/2013

Page 18

back and forth.

Q.
AL

And where is that loft?
It's 11 -~ it's 877 Island Avenue,

Diego, California.

Q. Is that down by Petco Park?

A, Right by Petco Park.

Q. Okay,

A. You must know San Diego pretty well.
Q. I know parts of it.

that you get from CannaVest, what other sources of

ALl right. Other than the $120,000

income do you have?

San

a year

A None.,
Q. Do you trade real estate?
Do you invest in real estate still?
A, I used to.
Do you do it now?
A. No.
When did you atop?
A, When my funds ran out.
Q. ¥When did your funds run out?
A, 08, '09, the great recession when most

developers and real estate people went upside down.
I was one of the lucky ones.

Q. What's your present address?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ B00-330-1112
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A, Home?

Q. Yes,
A. 2793 Red Arrow Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada
89135.

Q. How long have you lived at Red Arrow?

A, Twelve years.

Q. Okay.

A. Ten, 11 years, something like that.

Q. Before then, where did you live?

A. I had a house on Notting Hill Gate Court,
301 Notting Hill that we rented. Before that, I
lost the house -- no help there -- on $oaring Court,
1801 Boaring Court.

' Prior to that, I had a hcuse on 221
University Court. Prior to that, I had a house at
801 Greenbrook Street.

Q. What is the Mona Family Trust?

A. It's a my wife and I put together -~ I
don't know exactly when it was -- years ago.

Q. Does that trust have any assets?

Al I believe the house is a Mona Family Trust,
I believe,

Q. Are you the trustee of the Mona Family
Trust? _

A, I think my wife and I are co~-trustees.

e w— -
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Q. So there's no one that would know more
about the Mona Family Trust than you and your wife;
is that correct?

A. And my lawver.

Q. Okay. That would be Mr. Muije?

A. No. Mr, Muije did not do the family trust.

Q. Okay. Who is the lawyer?

A. Jeff Burr.

Q. Okay. Did he establish the Mona Family
Trust?

A, Yes.

Q. And that was 12 years ago, you said?

A. I would be guessing. i was told not to
guess, s¢, vou know, 1 don't knbw.

Q. Give me your best estimate though.

A. Ten, 12 years ago, my best guess.

Q. And T guess before we continue, have you
ever had your deposition taken before?

Yes.

On how many occasions?

S

Three or four, ,

Q. Qkay. When was the last time you had your
deposition taken?

A. Roughly eight, ten years ago maybe.

Q. All xight. Let me go -~ this is really a

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330~1112
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Judgement Debtor Exam, but it has the hallmarks of a
deposition, so I'm going to go through my deposition
spiel with you to make sure we're on the same page.
Ckay?

~ A. Please.

Q. & deposition is a faot~Ffinding process,
It's authorized by the Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure.

The cath took is the same cath you would
take in a court of law and it reguires you to tell
the truth,

Do you understand that?

A.  Yes.

Q. Even though we're in a very informal
setting here today in a conference room, the oath
that you took carries with it the same solemnity and
penalty of perjury as would attach in a court of
law.

¥You understand that; right?

A, Yes.,

Q. The court reporter is taking down

everything that is said today. Within a couple of

weeks time she will transcribe her notes into a
booklet form. You'll be given an opportunity to

review that booklet and make any changes you want to
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make to any of your answers. Then sign the booklet
undexr oath before a notary public.

Do you understand that?

A. Yes.

Q. There's two oaths you take essentially:
The oath you took now and the oath that you take
when you sign the book.

Right?

A, Correct.

Q. As X said, you're going to be able to make
any changes that you want to make to any of your
ansvers.

If you make any substantive changes to any
of your answers ~~ if this were an auto case and you
changed a red to a green, that would be a
substantive change.

A. Repeat that, please.

Q. If this were a car collision case and you
changed a red to a green, that would be a
substantive change.

If you made a change like that, I could
comment on that to the Court at any time and that
d@uld affect your credibility.

Do you understand that?

A Yeas.
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Q. So the best way for you to avoid that
happening, is to make sure that you understand my
questions before you answer them,

Is that fair?

A. Correct.

Q. All right. If youw answer a question, I'm
going to assume that you understood it. Okay?

A. Ckay.

Q. Qkay. If yon don't understand a question,
please tell me that you don't understand it. I'm
pexfectly capable of asking cquestions that are
complete incomprehensible. I don't take offense.

A. Thank you.

Q. So please tell me that you don't understand
a gquestion, and I'll rephrase it.

A. Thank you.

Q. All right. We don't want you to guess
here. We want you to testify as to your own
personal knowledge. That said, I'm entitled to your
best estimate.

To illustrate, you could estimate the
length of this conference table; is that correct?

A, Correct.

Q. But you couldn't estimate the length of my

dining room table at home, could you, because you've

lfa
{
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seen it?
A. Correct.
0. So that would be a guess.
A, A1l right.
Q. You've. doing very well in this setting so

far.

This is not a conversation., The uh-huhs,
the hu-uhs, the head shakes, the grﬁnts, the groans,
the ways we communicate in everyday conversation
don't apply bere because it's being transcribed.

If we revert to that, the court reporter is
going to get very angry with us, and we don't want
that,

So if during the course of this proceeding
¥ ask if your response is yes or no, it's not to
embarrass you. It's only for clarity of the record.

A, All right.

0. Also, I would ask that you let me finish my
questions before you answer and I will let you
finish your answer before asking my next question.

That way, the court reporter, again, won't
get hostile because she can't take down two people
speaking at the same time.

Fair enough?

A, She doesn't look hostile.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES ~ 800-330-1112 0039
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Q. They ¢an get mean.
All right. We've talked about Mona Co. a
little bit and CannaVest; is that wight?
A, Right.
Q. And Hemp Meds?
A. Correct.
Q. Are you involved in any other businesses at
this time personally? |
A. No.
0. You were detailing the homes you've owned,
You did not mention Promontory Ridge.
A, Promontory Ridge?
Yes.
That was yours, wasn't it?
A, No. It was a development proiject. It was
a spec house I built and sold it. I've never lived
in it. It was purely spec.
Q. Did you own it?
A. I don't know if I owned it or Mona Co.
owned it or it was an LLC.
Q. Okay. Well, you own Mona Co.; ig that
right?
A. I own it and I know my son and my kids’

trust has a piece of it. I do not know the exact

ownership.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES ~ 800~-330-1112 0040
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Q. You said you didn't know if Promontory
Ridge ww
A, Promontory Peint.

Q. I have it as Promontéry Ridge.
It's The Ridges in Summexlin?

A, Yes. And, again, to repeat myself, I've
never lived there and T had no intentions. It was
way too big of a home. It was strictly an
investment.

Q. Okay. 2And that sold; correct?

A Yes.

Q. For about 11 and a half million dollars?

A Correct.

Q What happened to that money?

A. Well, I went and paid back, first of all,
an eight and a half, nine million dollar loan. I
paid taxes on it.

And that was -~ what? -~ four years ago,
five years ago?

Q. Okay. Well, I'm sure there was something
left over after the tawxes; is that right?

A. I couldn't tell you. I'm sure there was,

But, again, that was five years ago. I'm
sure I re-invested it or blew it o paid bills. I

couldn’t tell you what happened to the profit after

A fer o e
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paying the bank back and the IRS.
Q. Let's talk about banking for a moment.

Do you currently have a checking account

pexrsonally?
A, Yes,
Q. With what bank?
A. Bank of America.

Q. What's the account number for that?
A, No idea.
Q. Do you have a check?
A. Not with me.
Q. Do you have a debit card?
MR. MUIJE: We've produced the records on
that account, haven't we?
THE WITNESS: Yes,
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. Do you know what the current balance on
that account is?
A, No idea.
Q. How often do you make deposits to that
account?
a, When I get paid.
Q How often do you get paid?.
A. Bivweekly.
Q Okay. By CannaVest?
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Correct.

All right. Any other checking accounts?

» o »

I believe that's the only one I have.
Q. Does the Mona Family Trust have any

¢hecking accountsg?

A, There may be one at Bank of Las Vegas. I'm

not sure. And, if so, it's very -~ there may be 50
bucks in it.
Q. Okay.
5 And again —-
What branch is that?

A
Q
A. Again, I preduced all those records.
Q. I understand.

A

. What branch? I don't know.
Q. -All right. Do you have any savings

accounts?
A. No.
Q. Pexsonaliy?
A. No.
Q. What about the Mona Family Trust?
A. I don't think so.

Q. Doas your wife maintain any savings
accounts or checking accounts?
A. Pardon me?

Q. Does your wife maintain any savings or

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES ~ 800-330-1112
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checking accounts?
A, I know she has a household aceount.
Q. Where is that maintained?
A. Pardon me?
Where is that maintained?
I believe that's Bank of Nevada, also.
How long has she had that account?
I don't know.

Bow much money is in that account?

-

O 20 »o

I don't know. That's her account. I don't
even sign on it.

Q. Fair enough.
Do you have any credit ¢ards in your wallet

right now?

A, Yes.

Q. Which ones?

A, Capital One.

Q. May I see it?

A. Of course. As long as you don't use it.

MR. MUIJE: Actually; you'll get double
miles.
BY MR, HAWLEY:
Q. Okay. Thank you.
A, Here's my ID, also.

Q. That's fine. I've got your ID,

s
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Twenty bucks.

Well, it will go a long way to helping
this.

MR. MUIJE: Actually, I don't think it will
cover an hour's worth of interest.
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. What's the credit limit on thig card?

$1,500 I believe.
- Okay. And how much is left on it?

A thousand, 900. Again, I'm guessing.

°© ¥ o

And this ig the accouﬁt that ends in the

last four numbers 6781; is that correct?

A, Correct.

Q. And it looks like it expires in April of
20147 ~

A, No idea. You're reading it, not me.

Q. All right. Michael J. Mona is on the caxd;
right?

A. Yes.

And I have another Capital One card, also.

Q. Okay. May ¥ see that?

A. I don't have it with me. But it's the same
company with a $1,500 limit, also. I don't know
that number.

Q. Okay. And when did you obtain those cards?

_ _
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A. Again, guessing, four or five years ago.
Q. ’Okay. Is your wife a signer on the
chécking account that we discussed at the Bank of
America?
MR, MUIJE: Objection.
He indicated Bank of Nevada.
MR. HAWLEY: I'm sorry. I thought I said
Bank of Nevada.
THE WITNESS: ©No. You said Bank of
America.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. I'm sorry.
A, I don't know. My account, I don't know.

Q. Okay. But you're not a signatory on hex

account?
A, No.
Q. How does her account get funded?

A. Through me, through her.
Q. What does she do to fund the account?

A. She has investments. She has her own

Q. What investments does she have?
A, Oh, I don't know. I don't deal in my
wife's business.

Q. Were you the source of any of the money
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that she has those investments?
MR, MUIJE: Obijection to the term 'source.'
That's vague and ambilguous.
You are allowed to answer.
THE WITNESS:; What's the question? ,
MR. HAWLEY: Will you repeat the question,
please.
(Thereupon, the requested portion was read back.)
THE WITNESS: I don't know what investments
she has, what sources she has.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. Okay. Did you give her any money to start
that investment account?
A. She's had half of whatever we've made over
the years.
Q. Okéy. Have you given her any money towards
that investment account in addition to the half?
MR. MUIJE: Objection as to time frame.
That's awfully broad and ambiguous.
You're allowed to answer.
THE WITNESS: What is the question?
MR, HAWLEY: Will vyou repeat the guestion,
please.
{Thereupon, the requested portion was read back.}

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. Have I given her

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - B00-330-1112
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any money?

BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. Yes. fo put;into the investment account in é

addition to the half interest that she has under -

community property laws. )

A. She has her share of what we made in the E
past, ves. é

Q. Is that it?

A. What do you mean? .

Q. Have you ever given her any cash to put
inte hexr investmerit account?

A, I've given her cash over the years, yes.

Q. How much?

A; Over the years, millions, over the 31 years

we've been married.

Q. Okay. And who maintains those investment
accounts?

Were are those investment accounts

maintained?

A. I have no idea.

Q. Okay. Do you have any kind of a safe
deposit box?

A No.

Q. Okay. Do you have any funds in overseas
agcounts?
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A. I was in Germany two months ago, a month
and a half ago, and the guy I was with who works
over there, he wanted some help at a bank and he
talked me into opening an account in Germany for
$500.

S0, yes, I do have a German account and
there's $500, which is 320 Euros in it, which I'm
getting ready to cancel. It's some German account.
I don't even know the name of the bank.
Q. Is that the only foreign account you have?

A. That's it.

MR. HAWLEY: You want to bring up page
6-0666. Zoom in so I can see.
BY MR, HAWLEY:

0. That indicates that you're a signatory on

an account, correct, a foreign account?

MR. MUIJE: Could you refer to the line,

please.

MR. GLASKY: Let me get to the right page.
{Thereupon, an off-the-reccxrd discussion was had.)
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. All right. Is that the account that's
being referred to on that tax return, the $500 in
Germany?

A, '~ I have no idea,.
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MR. GLASKY: This was 2011 taxes.
BY MR, HAWLEY:

0. When was the German account established?

A. Two months ago.

Q. Okay. 8o in 2011 though, your tax return
Andicates that you had another foreign account; is
that correct?

A, I'm not aware of it.

Is that one with the £545? 1Is that what
you're talking about?

Q. No, I don't believe so.

A. I don't know what you're talking about.
I'm lost.

MR. MUIZIJE: It's line 7A at the bottom,
Part III, Foreign Accounts.

And I'1ll just note for the record the
document speaks for itself. Obviously, if he can
illuminate or clarify, he's welcome to do so.

BY MR, HAWLEY:

Q. You signed the tax return: right?

A, I did.

Who prepared it?

Q

A, Ed Wilson.

Q Qkay. He's your accountant?
A

. Yes.

m o -~
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Q. Okay. He would know your finances,
wouldn't he?

A, Hopefully.

Q. Okay. You're not aware of the foreign
account?

A. I don't know if he's talking about the
German account. I don't know when this was filed.

Q. 2011,

A. I don't know. I can't answer that.

Q. Okay. Do you know if the required form
D B 90-22.1 has ever been filed?

That would be 7B right here.

A I have no idea.

Q. Okay. Are separate tax returns filed for
the Mona Family Trust?

' A. I believe so.

Q. Who would prepare those?

A, Ed Wilson.

Q. Have you ever signed a tax return for the
Mona Fanily Trust?

A I don't know if I sign them. I don't know
if they're prepared by him. I don't know if I sign
them, I don't know if they're signed
electronically.

. A tax return wouldn't be signed
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electronically without your authorization, would it?
A. I hope not.
Q. Mr., Wilson wouldn't do that without your
say-s0, would he?

MR. MUIJE: Objection, calls for
speculation.

Don't answer.

MR. HAWLEY: He can answar,

MR. MUIJE: To the best of his knowledge or
ablility.

But, again, I would note for the record
continuing speculation as to what & third-party
might or might not do.

BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. You can answer.

A, I would hope not.

Q. Okay. How long has Mr. Wilson been your
accountant?

A. Fifteen years maybe.

Q. All right. What does the Mona Family Trust
own?

A. This question was asked and I'm going teo
answer the same thing: I believe my house.

Q. Is that it?

A, Yes.

Page 37
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Q.  Okay. §
A. I believe so. é
Q. All right. Has the trust sold any property _%
in the last two years? ?
A. I don’t think so0, no. %
Q. Okay. We've talked about your house; é
right?
A. Correct.
Q. A little bit.
In addition to your house; do you own any

other real estate either here or in ancther state or

another country?

A. Another country, no. Another state, years
ago back in development days I had parcels all over.

I had Rio Vista in California. I had
numerous parcels in Arizona. 99 percent of those
are gone; they're lost. Either they went back to
the bank or foreclosed or whatever,

I may ke a partial owner of a small piece,
like a two percent owner in a piece of Arizona. I
I doubt it,

investment I had is gone.

don't know. But I think every

Q. 8o the only real property that you own or

that you have an interest in is the house here in i

Las Vegas:; is that correct?
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A, Again, I may have a small interest like one
and a half or one percent of some LLC that hasn't
gone belly.up vet but will belly up.

I don't think so. I believe the only thing
that I do own, yes, is my house,

At one time I had 20 parcels. I kind of -~
they're all gone. So, again, I believe it's my
house, correct.

. Okay. And what about -~ we talked about
you might have an interest in an LLC that has a
minor interest in some other parcels; is that
correct?

A, I may.

Q. In addition to that, are there any
businesses that you own that own real property?

A. No. '

Q. Okay. Who is David park?

A.  Who? |

Q. David Park (phonetic).

A. David Park? I don't know.

Q. What about Christineg Mora, M-O-R-A?

A. I don't know.

Q. What is Emerald Suites®?

A. Emerald Suites is a chain of hotels I owned

years ago.
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There was an Emerald Suiltes Las Vegas

Boulevard, which got taken back by tﬁe bank. There
was an Emerald Suites Cameron, which got taken back
by the bank. There was an Emerald Suites Trop,
which I was a partner in which I sold out years ago.
There was an Emerald Suites Nellis that I sold
probably seven, eight years ago.

I believe there was another Emerald Suites. ’
I believe I had five at one time, but I either sold %
them or -- and the last two, Emerald Suites Las :

Vegas Boulevard and Cameron, got taken over by the t

bank and got foreclosed on four years ago.
Q. Ckay. What about Emerald Suites LVBS
Agate?
A. That's Emerald Suites Las Vegas Boulevard.
Q Okay.
a That's the -~
Q. Okay. That's lLas Vegas and Agate?
A, Correct. That was my f£irst one.
That's how I came up with the name Emerald.
Pretty ingenious, huh?
And I just noticed as I pulled up here,
obvicusly, the same gentleman that bought mine out
of foreclosure bought the one across the street

because that's Emerald now., I heard he did that.

- ' e i
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That's the first time I've seen it.

Q. Okay. In 2009, did you make a $3 million
loan to Vestin Mortgage or a Vestin entity?

A. I remember something like that. I remember
loaning Mr. Shustek or Vestin $3 million for a short
period of time, but I got it back. I don't have all
the details on that.

Q. Qkay. Well, it looks to me like it was
paid off in two installments: On May 5th of $2009,
$1.5 million and then on May 7th of 2009,
$1.5 million.

Does that refresh your recollection?
We have a couple pages up on the board

here, too.

A. That doesn't remind me, but obvicusly I can
see it up there. My memory is very bad.

Q. Okay. Have you seen a doctor because you
have a bad memoxy?

No.

Q. Okay. Tell me about how bad your memoxy
is. Tell me about the symptoms.

A. What do you want to know?

Q. I want to know the extent ~-

A, I remember your name.

Q. It's John?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNCLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0056
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somebody's name I met last week,

logically ask the question 'what do you not
remembexr,' but what are the categories of things

that you don't remember?

nothing that categorizes my bad memory.
Q- 8¢ you hawve random bits of memory loss?

Is that what you're telling me?

Q. How long have you had a bad memory?
A. About 30 years.

A, Thirty-one years.
MR. MUIJE: That will cause it.
THE WITNESS: I never thought of that.

Hope my wife doesn't read this.

be my memory because whatever I remember she'll
rememper different.
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. When did you seb up Scarlet Properties?

I was buying properties and flipping them and

A. I remember Ira's name. I may not remember

Q. All right. What do you not -~ it's hard to

A. Nothing specific. It's general. There's

A. No. I just simply say I have a bad memory.

Q. Okay. About the time you've been married?

MR. MUIJE: I actually rely on my wife to

A. I have no idea. It was probably back when

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-111
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developing them,

9.
a.

What was Scarlet Properties?

Scarlet Properties was one of the numerous

LLCs I set up for protection.

Q.
A.
Q.
A.

For protection from what?

Protection from life.

Okay.

Like everyone else sets up LLICs. I'm not

the first one to do it.

Q.

What was the business of Scarlet

Properties?

A,
What was

Obviously, like I said, it was an LLC.

in it, I don't know. I had numerous LILCs.

Scarlet was just one of them,

Q.

A,
document:,

Q.
Scarlet?

A,
docunment .

Q.

A,

Who else was in Scarlet with you?

I can't answer that without looking at the
How many properties did you transfer to

I can't answer that without looking at the

Did you have a property in Laguna?

351 Crescent Bay Drive, yes, which goz

foreclosed on ~-

Q.

Okay. 'Then you had one in --

e e TS -

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES

e

1373




N

ek

11
i2
13
14
15
16
17

Xy

ok

Pt
je)

21
22
23
24

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 11/25/2013

LR N« YR % B -

- Page 44

A, -- by Mr. Shustek. k

Q. And you had one in Big Bear? %

a, Yes. That got sold. E

Q. Okay. And when did the property in Big ;
Bear get sold? r

A. I don't recall. Two, three years ago ?
maybe. _

Q. Is Bearlet, LLC still around?

A, I do not know if it's current. I would

have to say no because both those properties are

gone. I don't know if it's the attorney, re --

whatever he dees, re -- what do you call it?
MR. MUIJE:

THE WITNESS:

Filed the annual list?
Yes. I have no ides.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. All right. BAnd what's the ownership of
Scarlet?
Werae you the sole member of the LLC or were
there others?

A. Again, I don't remember.

0. Okay. Did Scarlet own other LLCs?

A, I don't remember how Scarlet was set up. I
believe it was just a couple properties in there,

Q. Does Scarlet file any tax returns?

A. I don't know.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNQLOGIES - B00-330-1112 0059
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Q. Have you ever seen any tax returns --~
A. Years ago, ves. '
©. -~ for filing by Scarlet?
When do you believe Scarlet quit f£iling tax
returns?
A, Again, I don't know. I would be guessing.
Q. Give me your best estimate.
A, Three years ago, two years ago. That's an
estimate.
Q. Have you paid anything into Scarlet overxr
the last 24 months?
A, I don’t believe so.
Q. Ckay. 8o you haven’t loaned any money to
Scarlet?
A, I don't believe so.
Q. Have you received any money from Scarlet
over the past 24 months or so?
A. I don't believe so.
{Thereupon, an off~the~record discussion was had.)
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. It looks like you got $100,000 from them on
October 23, 2012.
THE WITNESS: Could we take a break?
MR. HAWLEY: Sure.

(Thereupon, a break was taken.)

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - B00-330-1112 0060

1375

el

R




P

2]

P e e e g
[V X S

15
16 |

17i
18
19
20
21
22

23

24
25

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. = 11/25/2013

BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. We've pulled up the pagé and it's page
14-603. It looks like you received a payment on
10/23/12 to a Republic bank account.

MR. MUIJE: It wouldn’t be '12. It would
be 09, I believe.

THE WITNESS5: That's October 2009 on this.
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. 10/23/09.

A. Four years ago.

Q. Okay. And ﬁhen you alsoc received a
$1 million --

A, Four vears ago.

MR. MUIJE: Don't argue. People make
mistakes. .
MR, HAWLEY: We're not going to argue.
THE WITNESS: Now it makes sense.
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. Okay. Have you ever borrowed any money
from Michael Sifen, S$~I~F-E~N?

Al Michael Sifen, yes.

How much?
A. Over the years?
Q. Yes,

A. Four or five million.

T e
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W

Q.

Okay. How many notes -- how many Jloans has

Mr. Sifen given you over the years?

A,

He was one of my original investors in 2000

on Bmerald Suites.

guestion
Q.
A,
e
242 that
A,
Q.

another $200,000 note dated May 3zd of 2009; is that

. gorrect?

A,
Q.

>

© 2o po

And how many notes -- or what was the
again? I'm sorry.

How many loans have you taken out from him?
I couldn't give you an answer.

Okéy. Was there a loan for about a million
you took out in January of 20107

Probably so. Sounds right.

Okay. Aand then it loocks like you have

I remember borrowing that te live on, yes.

Okay. What were the terms of those notes?-
Were they secured? |

I don't recall.

Okay. You don't know if they were secured?
Secured by my home, I believe.

Okay. Which home?

Pardon me?

Which home?

2793 Red Arrow Drive.

Ckay. Did you have a property at S50th and

— ——————— - ————

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ 800-330-1112

0062

1377

'y L N3




0 Lk N

in

10
11
12

13

T T
(S-S B ST N

st
o]

21
22
23
24

MICHABEL J. MONA, JR. - 11/25/2013

Page 48
Fillmore?
A, Yes. That was an investmenit property.
That's in the Palm Springs area, T believe. Yes,
It was

years ago that was an investment property.

80 acres.

Q. Could the $1.2 million loan in January of
2010 have been to pay off 50 percent of that?
Mike was in a lot of deals

LR  + S B -

A -

with me.

I don't recall.

Like I said, he was an original investor

in Emerald Suites with me,

and he's been in a lot of

my invesgtments throughcut the last 13 vyears.

80 can I specify that one?

I have no idea.

0.

Okay. You said the $200,000 loan was fox

living money?

A. I believe so, I don't recall.

Q. Okay.

A, Mike has always been there for me,

Q. So vou don't know if the notes were secured

or unsecured, the $1.2 nmillion in particular?

H.

Again, like I just said 30 second ago, I

believe that note was secured by my home. )
Q. But that deed of trust doesn't look like it t
was recorded until about a year after the loan was

made.

Do you know why that was?

LITIGATION BERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES ~ 800~330-1112 0063
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A.

interest.

No idea.

What's the current status of that note?
I still owe him.

Are you paying --

No.

~= ory it?

What's the balance of that note?

I believe the original balance plus
Okay. How are you going to pay that note

It's something Mike and I will figure out.
What's TX 1650, LLC?

One more time.

X 1650, LLC.

Texas 1650. That was another one of my

investments years ago.

Q.
A.
Q.
A.
0.

interest

- What was your ownership interest in that?

My percentage?

Yes.

I don't know. I don't recall.

It looks like you used some of your

in 1650, LIC as a partial payment of the

$1.2 million note ~~ did you do that? ~- to Michael

Sifen?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0064
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Page
A. I believe Mike wanted some more collateral
back. This was a couple years ago; correct?
You're looking at the document; I'm not.
Q. I'm looking at March 12th of 2012 where you
assigned your interest in TX 1650 to Michael Sifen.
A. Okay.
Q. I have an unsigned version of that.
Did that ocour?
A. I believe 50, yes. I believe Mike wanted

more collateral.

Q. It wasn't cellateral.
It was partial payment of the note, wasn't
it?
A, I don't know what he called it. I don't

know what we agreed on.

Q.

A.
Q.

How much was the note reduced by after the

assignment of the TX 1650 interest?

I don't know the specifics.

Clearly, then some payments have been made

on the note though; right?

MR. MUIJE: Objection, mischaracterizes

he

ox

. Mona's testimony.

It's an unsigned document and he testified
doesn't know whether it was additional collateral

a partial payment.

b
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You're allowed to clarify if you have any
clarification.
THE WITNESS: I don't know.
BY MR. HAWLEY;
Q. So you don't know how much —-—
A. No. But I believe that property is

worthless now anyway, that T¥X 1630,

Q. Okay. Where is the TX 1650 property
located? ;

A, San Antonio, Texas.

Q. Can you give me oross streets?

A, Bo. 1 was only there one time -~ twice,

I'm sorry.

Q. Was it a piece of developed property or
undeveloped?
A, It was vacanit land.

Q. Have you ever borrowed $700,000 from
Mz . Shustek?
A I've been borrowing meoney from Mr. Shustek

since 2000. 8o what the amounts are and when, I

carmot be specific.
{Thereupon, an off-the-record discussion was had.)

BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. Who is Mr. Shustek?
A. Michael Shustek is a gentleman that works

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLCGIES - 800-330-~1112 0066
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for -— shall I say I guess Vestin Mortgage. He's a
hard money lender and the reason I'm here right now.
Q. How long have you known My, Shustek?
A, I met Mr. Shustek in 1889 or 2000 -= no.

I'm sorry. It was probably a little bit after that.

Probably close to 2001, in that area.
0. All right. Up on the board is a §$700,000
note from Mr. Shustek; is that correct?
MR. MUIJE: No. To Mr. Shustek. You said
from.
MR. HAWLEY: I did?
No. He borrowed money from Mr. Shustek.
Fair enough. Fair enough.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. TWhat is the date of that note?
A. Don't they usually have these things on
documents?
Q. Well, we have 33,000 pafes.
A. July 26, 2010.
Q. What was that money used for?
A. No idea.
Q. Into which account was that money
deposited?
A. No idea. This is three years ago.

Q. Do you know if this note was reported?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECENOLOGIES -~ 800-330-1112

0067

1382




MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. ~ 11/25/2013

s ) N fond

oy 4R

B |

el
L &N

™

L3

A. No idea,
Q. Did vou put any property on that note?

A. I believe I put up a second on my Laguna

Q. Qkay . :
A. Again, I'm guessing, but that kind of rings F

in my head, which is scarey.

Q. Okay. Did you ever assign the note to

someone else?
MR. MUIJE: Objection to form.
Again; this is a note from him to
Mr. Shustek.
MR. HAWLEY: I'm sorry. You're right.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
0. Do you know if you ever assigned the note
to anyone?
A, I don't know.
Q. Who is Don Matz, M-A~T-Z?
MR. MUIJE: Spelling on that again, Joﬁn?
MR, HAWLEY: M-A-T-Z.
MR. MUIJE: “Thanks.
THE WITNESS: No idea.

BY MR. HAWLEY: : !
Q. He's listed as one of the current lenders % §
on that note. ﬁ %

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0068
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You don't know him?
A, Never heard of him.
z What's the current balance on that note?
A. I don't know., He foreclosed on my house.
I don't know.
Q. Okay -
A, Foreclosed and sold it. I don't know the
balance, 1’ve not talked to Mike for a long time.
Q. Okay. Do you know how much was paid off
from the sale of the foreclosure of that property?
That was the Laguna property; right?
A, Correct.
No.
Q. ¥ou don't know how much was realized from
the sale?
Okay. Are you making any payments on that
note?
A, No.
Q. Okay. So Mr. Shustek foreclosed on the
Laguna property?
A, Correct.
Q. Who is Park Real Estate in Dallas, Texas?

A. Never heard of them,

Q. Have you had any connection with the lLaguna F

property since it was foreclosed on?

— : oo
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Have 17

Yes.

> oy

Drove by it one time about two months ago.
Q. Okay. Did you have insurance on that
property up until its foreclosure in April of 201272

A, Excuse me?

Q. Did you have insurance on that property?

Al What type of insurance?

Q. Propexty insurance, homaowners insurance?

A. I would have to say yes.

Q. Okay. Did you cancel the insurance after
the foreclosure sale?

A. Hopefully, I did -- or hopefully somebody
did.
Do you have a golf cart at that property?
No,

© ¥ o

Why is it listed ;n your insurance?

A. I had a golf cart at cne time at that
property, yes.

Do I have a golf cart at that property now?

I don't have the property, nor the golf cart.

Q. Are you still paying for coverage on the
property or the golf gart?

A, I hope not, but I will definitely find out.

Q. Did you report the debt forgiveness for the

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0070
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Laguna property on your tax return? . é
MR, MUIJE: Objegtion.
What tax return? Which year?
MR. HAWLEY:
MR. MUILJE:
THE WITNESS:

BY MR. HAWLEY:

I't was foreclosed in 2012.
He can answer.

I don't know,

Q. Have you done your 2012 taxes?

A, No.

Q. Okay. Do you know when thosze will be
conpleted? ‘

A, No.

Q. Mr., Wilson will know that?

A, I owe Mr. Wilson a large sum of money.

We're discussing that.

Q. How much money do you owe Mr., Wilson?

A, $38,000, in that area.

Q. Okay. Who is Sunup Lending (phonetic)?

A. I've seen that name somewhere, but I don't
know. TIf you show me what it's related to, I may be

able to help, but I don't -- I remember seeing the

name, but right now I cannot pinpoint what it is.

Q.
them,

Looks like you borrowed $1,045,000 from

Do you knaw what it was for?
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A, No idea. I would borrow from anvbody that
could give me the money.

Q. Looks like you made a §35,000 payment bto
them in December of 2010 from Capital Security Bank.

How long did you have an account at Capital
Security Bank?

A. I do et remember having an account at
Capital Security Bank. I've never heard of Capital
BSecurity Bank, unless I'm, again, mistaken.

Q. Iz that something that you wrote?

a. It's my e~mail.

Q. Okay. What is that e-mail, six?

That was Bank of Nevada to Sunup; correct?

A. It was Rank of Nevada to -- well, the
e~mail is to Udiaz (phonetic) at Bank of Nevada,
gorrect.

Q.  What's the purpose of the e-mail?

A. I don't know.

MR. MUIJE: Counsel, what page is that?
MR. HAWLEY: This is pége e
THE WITNESS: What date was that again,
please?
MR. HAWLEY: 16-005,
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. Sunup Bank is in the Cook Islands.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800~330-1112 0072
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What date was that? December 20107

Q. Yes.

Db you recognize that document?
A. No. '
That's my signature.

Q. Okay. Have you ever done any banking with
Sunup Bank in the Cook Islands?

A. Not that I recall. But that's my
signature. That's all I can say.

Q. Okay. Did you ever pay off that loan?

A, Which loan?

Q. The $1,045,000 loan from Sunup Bank,

A. Again, I don't remember $1,045,000 lecan and
I don't know if it was the loan to Sunup Bank. I
don't recall Sunup Bank. So I can't answer that
guestion.

Q. Well, there was a letter to the lender
directing that it be paid off from a CD at Capital
Security Bank; right?

MR. MUIJE: Objection, document speaks for
yourself.

You're allowed to answer.

THE WITNESS: That's what the document
states.

BY MR. HAWLEY:

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112
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Q. Okay. And so did you have an account at
Capital Security Bank?

A. I don't recall Capital Security Bank, nor
an account there, for the last ﬁime.

Q. Okay .

A, You keep asking, I'1l keep answering that
way.

Q. Big Bear, tell me about the property vou
had at Big Beax.

A, It was a house up in Big Bear that I bought
eight years ago maybe, nine years ago.

Q. Who is Chris Bantiey?

A. Chris Bentley is a gentleman I used to do
business with. He was the one that sold three or
four of my buildings, Emerald Suites.

Q. He took a trip to Greece with you in 2008,
didn't he?

A. Parden ne?

Q. Didn't he take a trip to Greece with you
and your wife?

A. Yes, he did.

Q. Have you made any loans to him?

A. Throughout the years, ves.

Q. Okay. You loaned him $100,000 in 2009,
didn't you?

o g N
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A. I believe so, yes.

Q. Is he making payments on that loan?

A. I don't know the balance on that loan.

Q. When was the last time he made a payment?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Has he ever made a payment?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Okay. Has he ever loaned you money?

A I don't think so.

Q. Well, you paid him $5,000 in July of 2012.

A. Who knows what it was for?

Q. It looks like you paid him $10,000,
actually.

A, I don't recall.

What year was this?

Q. 2012, Jaly of 2012,

A. No idea.

Q. Okay. When you sold the Big Bear property,
did you sell it furnished? ?

A. Conmplete. )

Q. To whom did you sell it?

A. Chris Bentley or an LLC he had or something
like that. I don't know what it was.

0. Have you stayed at that property since it
was sold?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800~330-1112

0075

1390




PARTA

PART A

Docket 68434 Document 2015-20795

1391




SR

[#8)

5> “d oy -

L

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. ~ 11/25/2013

A, Yes.

Q. When?

A, Last New Year's Eve. Hopefully, this New
Year's Eve.

Q. Okay .

A. Maybe about three months ago.

Q. Okay. Who is Dunholm Limited, LLC?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Did Scarlet Properties make a loan to
Dunholm Limited, LIC?

A, I don't recall.

0. Do you know if Dunholm Limited owes any
money to Scarlet?

Al I don't recall.

Q. Other than visiting the Big Bear property
on a couple of occasions, do you have any other
connection with that property since the date you
sold it?

No.

Q. Did you insure the property up until the

time it was sold in December of 2011°?

a. I believe so.

Q. Did you cancel your insurance after the
sale?

A, I don't recall. Same as Laguna.
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Q. Would you have any reason to disagree that
you insured the property from December 2012 through
November of this year; in fact, vou're still
insuring it?

A. No idea.

Q. Regarding your present residence on Red
Arrow Drive, have you made any loans tq'Mbna Co.,
you personally? '

A. Over the years, yes, numerous loans.

Q. Okay. How many loans?

A. I don't remember.

Q. © Do you have documentation for any of those
loans?

A, Pardon me?

Q. Do you have documentation for any of those
loans? '

A. I don’t know. I believe it's been millions
over the years. I'm not sure.

Q. Has Mona Co. paid you back?

A, No, T don't believe so.

Q. Okay. But you don't know the current
status of the loans you've made to Mona Co.; is that
correct? (

A, Correct.

Q. Where would I look to get the current

- sy

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0077

1393




L

i

MICHABL J., MONA, JR. ~ 11/25/2013

Page 63

LR TN & 3

A, If there were, Mona Co. could not pay

status of those loans? 3
I'1l represent to you that I don't see a §

current status in the 33,000 pages of documents you %
gave me. ;
A. Well, maybe there's no loans. I'm not Z
gure. 3
Q. Ckay. :

anyway.
Q. Qkay.
you wrote a check for $100,000 to your wife that was

It looks like in May of thig year

deposited into a jeint checking acuount at Bank of
America?

MR, MUIJE: Bank of America,

MR. HAWLEY: Yes -- I'm sorry. Bank of
Nevada.
Why do I'keep doing that?
THE WITNESS: Okay. When was this?
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. That was in May of this year. i
A.  Okay. '?
Q. Where did you get that money from?
A. .I don't know.
Q. You don't remember where you got $100,000 :
from? f
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A.
0.

deposited into the joint account?

A. It's the joint account at Bank of Nevada?
0. At Bank of Nevada, yes?
A, That was probably to pay bills, to eat,

power, house, I'm guessing.

Q.

wrote a check for $100,000 again to your wife from

the Bank of Southern Utah account.

Al
Q.

of Southern Utah?

No.

Okay. Do you know why that money was

Okay. &And then in April of this year, you

What was that amount for?
I don't recall.

What is the source of the Ffunds in the Bank

A. I don't recall.

Q. How much money is in the Bank of Southern
Utah account?

A. There is no account up there. Got
cancelled.,

Q. when did you close it? t

A. Few months ago. !

Q. Okay. The San Diego apartment, tell me F
again about that, the loft. ‘ ;

A. It's a loft that CannaVest pays for that
employees stay at, CannaVest employees when they're
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in 8San Diego.

0.

A, No.

Q. It's all through CannaVest?

A. Correct,

Q. And you have no ownership interest in
CannaVest?

A. Pardon me?

Q.  And you have no ownership intexest in
CannaVest?

A. I have an option for 500,000 shares.

All right. Do you pay any rent on that?

an option.

Q.
CannaVest?
A No.
Q.
guaranteed?
A. Guaranteed?
Q. Does CannaVest own the
lease it?
A. Ne. It rents it.
¢.  ~ Is there any guarantee
A. No. '
(o Are you sure?
A. I don't think there is.

Have you ever had an ownership interest in

Okay. Is the lease on that apartment

apartment or does it

on that lease?

It's

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112
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MR, HAWLEY: 3-1108.

BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. Looks like Michael Sifen is guaranteeing
the lease actually.

A. No. Michael Sifen guaranteed the lease the
first year.

Q. fhat was only the first year?

A. Yes. He guaranteed the lease in 3 of '02.
That's what you're looking at.

That was by Mike Sifen, yes, because my
credit wasn't good, nor did I have the money. So
Mike Sifen, being a friend of mine, signed for it.
That lease was in my name and my wife's name.

Q. Did you pay him for that guarantee?

A. No. He did it as a favor.

Q. Do you have an investment in Capriotti's
Sandwich Shops?

A, I had one.

. How long?

Q
A A few years.

Q. From what year to what vear?
A

I don't know the details.

Q. Well, when was it that you no longer had an
investment in Capriotti's $andwich Shops? :
A. I sold the Capriotti's Sandwich Shops to f

————————— v i
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Page
Ken Antos.
Q. Who?
A, Ken Antos.
Q. And when did you sell that?
A. Three years ago about.
Q. Okay. Looks like yvou had a million ghares

in 2008 and 2009; is that right?

A, I believe so, yves.

Q. S0 you sold them to Xen antos?

A. Ken Antos owns my Capriotti's.

Q. How much did he pay for that?

A.  $500,000,

Q. All right. Would that include the
franchise that you were awarded in San Diagb?

A. Correct,

Q. What's your current relationship with KCI
Investnents?

A. KCI Investments?

Q. Yes.

A. I believe that was the company that Ken
Antos wrote the checks to. I believe. That sounds
familiar there.

Q. Who is Ken Antoz?

A. Just & gentleman that is in the Capriotti's 1

food chain. He was real big, I guess, in Subway,

—

N e
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and then he came over to the Capriotti's group a few
years ago.

Q. All xight. You have a son, Michael Mona,
III; is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Is he working for any of the Capriotti's
entities?

A. No. He works for CannaVest.

Q. Is he involved in any way with Ca@riotti‘s
that you know of?

A. No longer.

Q. ¥hen did he divest himself or get divested?

A, When I sold three years ago, four years
ago,

Q. So you both got out at the same time?

&, Yes,

Q. How much did you get for selling?

A $500,000.

Q. I'm sorry. You're xright,

And T believe that was KCI, 4if I'm not

migtaken?

A. It sounds familiar.

Q. That got rid of Cap's of San‘Diego, LLC;
right?

A, Yes,

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ 8§00~3306-1112 0083
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Cap's Group I, LLC?
Yes.

And Capriotti's Mission Valley?

o p oo

Yes.

Q. Okay. <Capital Security Bank, do you have
an account there?

A, Doesn't sound familiar at all.

Q. Okay. That was the source of the CD that
yoﬁ were using to pay Sunup Bank; is that right?

A. I don't recall., 1 don't recall paying
Sunup.

Q. Okay. But that was -~ never mind.

So you wouldn't know where Capital Security

Bank is located?

A. Not at all.

Q. And you wouldn't remember how you learned
of that bank? |

a. Not at all.

Q. And you wouldn't know the balance of any
accounts you might have there?

A, Net at all.

Q. Okay. Do you have any accounts in Sunup
Bank?

A, I don't know Sunup Bank.

Q. In the Cook Islands.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ 800-330-1112 0084

1400




MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 11/25/2013

=N g et

MR. HAWLEY: That was Sunup; right?
MR. GLASKY: Sunup Lending.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. Sunup lending?
A, I gdon't know.
{(Thereupon, an off-the-record discussion was had.)
{Thereupon, a break was taken,)
MR. HAWLEY: Back on.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. Capital Security Bank Limited. This is
page 6-1612 I believe; is that right?
I'm sorry. 16-0012. I'm looking at this.

I'm wondering is that your handwriting?
A. Yes, it is.

Q. What does it mean?

A. That money and 40 percent back to Dawson.
John Dawson is an attorney.

Q. Okay.

A. I guess that's what that 35,340 is.

0. All right. Well, you have $1,045,000?

A. Um~-hiom.

Q. You've tastified that don't know where you
got that or what it was for?

A, True,

Q. What about the $1.,9 million?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0085
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A. Same answer.
Q. You don't know who you got it from?
A. What date was this?
Can we go up to the date?
MR. GLASKY: 1It’'s undated.
THE WITNESS: I have no idea.
I don't knmow 1f this was a year ago or ten
years ago.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. Qkay. Did you give us documents that were
ten years old?
A, I gave you documents -- you wanted
everything. I just emptied my storeroom. I didn't
go through and figure the dates out.

Q. John Dawson is your attorney?

A. He was.
Q. He's not your attorney any more?
A. I don't deal with him. I owe him money,

also.
Q. Bow much?
A I don't know the total.

Q. Can you estimate?
A, At one time it was -- no, I can't estimate,
no.

Q. Okay. He's not workirng for you any more?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0086
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A.

We talk.

We're friends.

But,

yeah, he

hasn't done work for me.

Q. Okay. Do you have any accounts at US Bank?

A. I did at one time.

Q. Okay. Looks like you opened one in June of
2012; is that right?

A. Sounds about right.

Q. And then it looks like on Jurne 22, 2012,
the bank asked you to close that account; is that
right?

A. Correct.

Q. Why did the bank ask you to close that
account?

A. No idea.

MR. HAWLEY: Bring up 9-1247.
THE WITNESS: What are those dates again,
please?

BY MR, HAWLEY:

Q. It looks like in June of 2012 you opened
the account and then on 6/22/2012 you were asked to
close it. And therxe's the letter,

And the reason I'm dwelling on this is I've
never seen a lettexr like this.

Have you?

A No.
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MR, MUIJE: I actually have.
MR. HAWLEY: I won't get into that with
you, John. |
THE WITNESS: I went there. They wouldn't
give me a reason.
MR. MUIJE: What's the reference number on
that, Ira?
MR. GLASKY: It is 9-1247.
MR. MUIJE: Thank you.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. What about, do you have an account with the
Bank of Southern Utah?
A. I had one.
Q. Okay. And when was that account
established? '
A. I don't know the exact dates.
Q. Okay. Looks to me -~ well, first off, how
was that account funded?
A. I don't recall.
Q. Why did you change that? I'm sorry. Wwhy
did you establish that account?
A. No specific reason.
Q. Okay. When did you stop doing business
using that account?

A, Shortly after,

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0088
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Page
Q. Shortly after what?
A, After it was opened.
Q. Okay. So how long was it open®?
R, I would be guessing. Short period of time.

I don't know the exact time.

Q. Who is Alpine Investments?

A, Alpine Investments is a stock account.

Q. A stock ageount?

A. Alpire Investments is a security company --
securities company.

Q. Securities company?

A. Correct.,

Q. Okay. Do you have an account with them?
A. No.

Q. Did Alpine Securities ever wire into the

Bank of Southern Utah account?

A. Yes, they did.

Q. Okay. In fact, I see wires in from Alpine
Securities on April 2nd of 2013, and April 5th of
2013, and April 10th of 2013.

Do you know much Alpine Securities wired
into your account on those dates?

A. I don't know, but I'm sure you're going to
tell me shortly.

Q. You're right.
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You're looking at the document, not

4, I am.
me.

Q. It looks like it was a nice amount of
money, deesn't it?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. Okay. And then it looks like you had a
wire out to Roen, R-0-E-N, what is that?

A. Roen was an investment account.

Q. Your investment account?

A. No, it's not an investment account. If's
an LLC. It's a partnership.

Q. Were you a part of that partnership?

A, Correct. |

Q. Are you a part of that partnership?

A. No longer.

Q. How long were you a part of Roen?

A Maybe eight or ten months, guessing.

Q. And give me the beginning and the end date

of your involvement with Roen.

A.

exaclh date it was opened.

sometime.

I don’t know when it was.

And I sold it about two weeks ago,

November 14th or 15th.

I don't know the
I believe it was 12, 2012

Q. How much did you get for that?
A. $500,000.
LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNCLOGIES - 800-~330-1112 0090
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Q. Whers is that $500,000 now? k

A, I don't have it vyet. i

Q. You don't have it yet? F

A. No. i

Q. When are you going to get it? é

A. Hopefully, this week. %

Q. Okay. Is there an escrow company that's
going to do that?

Who at Roen investments is going to pay you

the $500,0007?

g. Bart Mackay.

Q. Okay. And is he just going to send you a
check in the mail?

A. Correct.

Q. Looks like you did a wire out to Roen
Investments on April 12, 2013, does it?

A, Yes.

Q. And anothexr one on April 16th.

A, Correct.

Q. And what was the purpose of those payments
out? '

A, It wgs part of my capital account.

Q. Of your what?

. Capital investment to Roen.
Q. Okay. Where did you get those monies?
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Page 77
A. From stock that I sold.
Q. What stock?
A, MJNA,
Q. What ig ==~
A. MJNA is another public company that's on a

penny stock exchange that I consulted for for a
couple years.
Q. Qkay. And what business does MJNA do?

A. Ihey buy and sell companies in the public

Q. Ckay .

A, They're -~ it's -- yeah.

Q. Okay. And with whom do you deal at MJINA?

A, I dealt with Michael Llamas and Michelle
Sides. It's Michael Llamas basically.

Q. Where is Michael Llamas located?

A San Diego.

Q How long have you known Michael Llamas?

i Four years -~ three, four years.

Q. How did you meet Michael Llamas?

A In Las Vegas.

Q. Under what circumstance?

A. I was building a dispensary that I never
opened,

Q. What kind of dispensary?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112
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A, Medical marijuana. As you know, it's legal
in the State of Nevada.

Q. No, that's fine.

A, And I was building a dispensary and he came
in and wanted to buy it.

Q. Did he?

A. Well, no. We decided -- no, he decided
against it.

At one time there were 97 dispensaries open

in Las Vegas. And then, as you know, they turned

the heat up and started busting them all, and I

- refuged to get into that.

50 I never opened the doors, nor did he
decide to buy it because of the increased -
increased -- how do I put it?

Q. Attention?

A, Yes. Thank you very much.

Thank you.
Increased attention by the Metropolitan Police

Department.

Q. Okay .
A. So I decided to walk away.
Q. I'm soxzy. I don't usually mean to finish

a deponent's answer,

A,

brain fart.

No. I had a -- excuse the language -~

I couldn't think 6f the word. I

.
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Page 79

apologize. A

Q. Okay. Let's see here. What was the -
when you wired a million dollars to Roen, what was
the purpose of that?

A. it was a loan.

Q. You loaned it to Roen?

. Yes.

Q

A

g. . 8o Roen owes you money?

A Roen owes me -- well, not me any longer. I
sold out, but there was a note for $2.6 million,

unsecured note,

Q. Ckay. And you cashed out for half a
million dollars?

A. Correct.

Q. Why would you do that?

A. It's from CannaVest, which is an unsecured
entity. I don't -— I feel a little weakness there

in CannaVest.

And, first of all, it was a ten-year

loan and I need the casgh.

0.

Okay. When you say it was CannaVest, I

don’'t understand,

A, The mongy =

Q. Well, let me finish my gquestion. Okay?

A, I'm soxry.

Q. And maybe my question will be a stupid one,
LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0094
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but that's the way it works.,
What is the relationship, first off,

betwaen CannaVest and Roen, No. 17

A, Answer it?

Q. Yes.

A. There is no relationship. It just simply
loaned money to it.

Q. CannaVest loaned money to Roen?

A. Correct -- no. The opposite. I'm sorry.

Q. - Roen loaned money to CannaVest?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. &And you loaned money to Roen; is
that right?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. So you loaned money to Roen to loan
to CannaVest; is that what yvou're telling me?

A. Correct.

Q. And you loaned $2 miliion?

A, $2.6 million.

Q. $2.6 million to Roen to be loaned to
CannaVest? |

A, Correct. To be -~

Q. Tell me how you cashed out of Roen for a
half a million dollars.

A, Well, the note is a ten-year note. It's an

B e T ——
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[22] 191

unsecured note. Roen also owes a $3.4 million loan.

Roen ig in pretty big debt.

I don'’t know where Roen is goinhg. I don't
know where CannaVest is going. Bart Mackay made me
an offer. He knows I need cash.

I'm dealing with BofA right now. BofA is
going to have a $22 million judgement against me in
the next two weeks or so.

Q. Okay. What is -—

A, Over Emerald Suites.

Q. Maybe that's why I was talking about Bofh
all the tiume.

A, Probably so.

MR. MUTJE:

MR. HAWLEY: No, I did not.

Ever represent BofA?

{Thereupon, an off-the-record discussion was had.)

THE WITNESS: I am currently dealing with
BofA to, hopefully, buy that $22 million Jjudgement
very cheap. I needed the cash.
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. So you want to buy the Bofa $22 million

judgement?
A.. Correct. |
Q. And what money are you going to use to buy f

that judgement?
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A. Hopefully, the money that I'm getting off
the sale of my Roén interest.

Q. The sale of youxr Roen interest is a half a
million dollars?

A. Correct.

Q. So you want to pay BofA a half a million
dollars for their $22 million judgement; is that
correct? |

A, I want to pay them less than that.

Q. Okay. But you don't want te pay Far West
Industries on the judgement that is now $20 million?
)-8 There was never any conversation about

settlement.

Q. Okay.

A, They want to take the half million dollars,
we'll talk.

Q. Is BofA going to take your half million
docllars?

A I don't know.

Q. Okay. Who is representing BofA?

A. I don't know. I know who is representing
me.

Q. Who is representing you?

A, Terry Coffing.

Is the BofA judgement a fraud judgement?

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLCOGIES -~ 800-330-1112
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B, No.
Q. Is it a judgement that can be discharged in
bankruptcy, or have you been advised?
A. Correct, 1t can be.
Q. Okay. Have you been advised about the
dischargeability of this particular judgement that
Far West Industries has obtained?
I don't want to violate any attorney/client
privileges,
MR. MUIJE: You gan answer whether or not
youtve consultedAcounsel regarding that issue. I
don't want any discussion regarding what the
discussions were, but you can say yes or no.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. HAWLEY:
Q. Okay. Do you know have any bank accounts

at Comerica Bank?

A, Currently no.
Q. Did Comerica Bank ask you to close an
account in August of 20132
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. Why did they ask you to do that?
A. No idea.
Q. All right. 1Is that the same kind of a
letter that you received from US bank?
J
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. It looks like from that particulazr
bhank account you had a $700,000 wire out to Roen
Investments in July of 2013; is that correot?

A. I have no idea. You're looking at the
document, not me.

MR. HAWLEY: Bring it up, 9~1181.
BY MR, HAWLEY:

Q. Do you see it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You also had a wire out to CannaVest for
$300,000? That was 1180,

A, Yes, sir.

What was the purpose of that wire out?
I don't know. Probably a loan.

To CannaVest?

I guess. I don't recall.

Well, does CannaVest owe you money?

No.

!'O:P‘!OE’%O;“«‘

What was the purpose of the wire out to
Roen for 5700,0007

2 loan.

Does Roen still owe you money?

No.

Okay. How did they retire that debt?

o Fo P
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A. They haven't retired it. The debt is still

there. And it's owned by Bart Mackay now.

Q. Okay. And when did you sell the debt to .

Mackay?

A, Two weeks ~-- ten days ago, two weeks ago.
The 14th or 15th maybe.

Q. Is Roen making payments on that?

A, I don't know.

Q. Were they making payments on it before you
sold it?

A. Interest payments to me.

Q. Okay. How much were those interest
payments?

A. Four percent interest, whatever that is.
The note is a ten~year note. That's the reason why
it was useless to me.

Q. Then you had a wire out to Roen on
August 8th of 2013, isn't that correct, for
$300,0007

A, You're looking at the document. If you say
50.

MR. HAWLEY: Pull that up.

BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. Is that correct?

A. Yes.
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MR. HAWLEY: Okay. &nd;, for the record,
that's 2~1179,.

MR. MUIJE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. HAWLEY: Then go to 9-1182, please.

BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. Looks like in July lst of this year you had
a wire in from Alpine Securities in the amount of
$400,000; is that correct? ‘

A, That's what the document states, vyes.

Q. What was that $400,000 for?

A Stock.

Q. What stock?

A, Stock I received from MJINA for being a
consultant for two years.

MR. HAWLEY: T think this a good time to
break for lunch.
(Thereupon, a lunch break was taken.)
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. All xright. I gather from our discussioh
earlier this morning that Mr. Muije has deposed you
in the past?

A. Correct.

. On how many occasions?
. Once T think.

Q
A
Q. Okay. And tell me what that occasion was

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - 800-330-1112 0101
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about,

MR. MUIJE: You're allowed.

THE WITNESS: That was -- in 2000 when I
filed bankruptcy protection for the casino,

Mr. Muije represented one of the creditors.
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. Okay. That was the last time you saw him
before retaining him in this matter?

A, I think so,

MR. MUIJE: I'm thinking we might have seen
each other across a room at some social function,
but professionally that was the last time.

BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. All right. I have to ask, axe you thinking
about getting any neuropsychological testing for
your memoxry?

No.

Have you consulted a doctor about it?

» o >

No.

Q. Ckay. Do you have any ownership ox
membership interest currently in any corporations or
LiCs or partnerships or anything of that nature, any
buginess entity?

A, Explain that one more time.

MR. HAWLEY: Can you read that back.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -~ 800-330-1112 0102
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(Thereupon, the requested portion was read back.)

THE WITNESS: Again, at the peak of my
profession, I had probably 20 LLCs that I was
partners in, partnerships, LLCs, this or that. I
believe they're all history.

I may have one or two percent of something
here or there that the bank has not taken over or
their partners haven't diluted yet or something like
that that I don't know about.

S0 I can't answer that question.

BY MR. HAWLEY: |

Q. Okay. Do you have any entities in which
you participate solely as an investor?

A. Again, I have numerous investments. I
would invest as an individual, invest as an LLC.
We're talking, you know, years ago.

8¢ it's basically the same answer as I just
answered pricr.

Q. Okay., Do you still maintain an account
with Alpine Securities?

No. '
When did you close that again?
A while ago. A month ago maybe.

Why did you close it?

*

>0 P oo »

There was no stock.
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Q. What?

A. There was nothing left to sell. The stock
was gone.

Q. . Okay. Who was your breker with Alpine
Securities?

A, Randy -- I can geb you that answer
tOMOXEow.

THE WITNESS: Can I do that?
MR. MUIJE: Yes, you may.
BY MR, HAWLEY: .

Q. The Alpine Securities account, what was the
high-water mark as far as value of that account and
what year wags that?

A. I'm sorry?

Q. The Alpine Securities account, what was the
high~water mark in terms of that value for that
account and when did that occur?

A. Well, it had at one time 37 million shares
of stock that I earned.

0. Okay. I'm talking about cash value.

What was the cash value of it?

A. Five million, depending upon the price of
the stock. It went from $0.08 to $0.30. It's is a
penny stock. It varied.

Q. Okay. And when was the high-water mark for
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the Alpine Securities account? ;

A, I'd say four months ago, five months ago.

0. So $5 million dollars roughly?

A. Five and a half, maybe six. Like today, I
have no idea what the stock is today. It was §0.11
yvesterday. It was $0.38 a month age or three weeks
ago, something like that.

Q. When you got out of Alpine Securities, how
much was the stock worth?

Bbout $0.12 a share,
aAnd translate that into an aggregate.

> 0 >

About $6 million.

Did you cash out?

Yes.

What did you do with that $6 million?
Paid bills.

What bills?’ f

»

Paid off some debts that I had.

-

What bills?

Just perscnal bills., Gave 2.6 -- loaned F

»

FOO OB O PO MO

.

$2.6 million to- Reen Ventures.
v And Roen then loaned that to --
CannaVesrt. E

~= CannaVest?

>0 ¥ o

£
Um~hmm . :
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Q. Okay. And then you sold out for a half
million dollars?

A Sold out, yes.

0. So you turned $5 million into a half
million dollars; is that correct?

MR. MUIJE: Objection, argumentative.
You're allowed to answer.
THE WITNESS: No. It's not the way I look
at it.
BY MR. HAWLEY:

Q. How do your look at it?

A. Well, the Roen debt, I felt the Roen
investment I felt was a good investment and I would
have kept it if this BofA didn't come up. I was
under the impression that ~- and I was told that AB
273 -~ you know what that is; correct?

Q. Yes -~ well, I have a passing familiarity.
Let's put it that way.

A. Okay. Well, that was going to relieve me
of all my debt from BofA. I was told -~

Q. Your deficiency?

A, Deficiency.

BofA paid zero for my two Emerald Suites
Agate Las Vegas Boulevard and Cameron.

When BofA bought First Republic four or
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five years ago, whenever it was, I have no idea when
it was, there's a statute, 273, that states you
cannot collect on something that vou paid zero for.

Unfortunately, I just found out three wesks
ago, two weeks ago from Terry Ceffing, the ruling
came down from the Supreme Court and that's true;
but my sale date missed it by three weeks.

So if my sale date of my deficient
properties was three weeks pricr, I would not owe
BofA a penny.

S0, therefore, I sat with Terry. He is
dealing with BofA right now, and I think we can buy
out cf it. That's the reason I needed the money.
I tried getting more. Wouldn't happen.
Bart knew my situation. 1It's a ten-year loan. He's
a tough businessman.

Q. The half million dollars that is coming and

is going to be mailed, will that be mailed to your
personal address?
A. I don't know where he mailed it, personal
or the office, one of the two.
Q. Okay.
the half million?
Is that Roen?

A. I don't know what entity he's writing it

What's the name of the outfit paying r
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out of. It's not Roen. Roen has the debt,
know what entity.

I'm not sure.

I believe it's Jjust hig name.

I don't

Q. And where is Bart located?
A. Somewhere up in Utah.
Q. Did you borrow money from someone named

Mahoney in 20127

A, Yes. Jim Mahoney.
Q. Who is he?
A, Jim Mahoney is -~ has a company in San
Diego. He is in the stock business.
Q. .And what company does he have in San Diego?
A. Equititrend. {
Q. Equititrend?
A. Uri—hmm.
Q. What does Bquititrend do?
Al He deals in penny stocks.
Q. We've been talking a lot about a penny

stock that fluctuates wildly in value,

A,
Q'

Mr. Mahoney?

A.

What's the name of that company?
Medical Marijuana, Incoxrporated.
That's right. That's right.

And how much did you borrow from

I know there were a couple of loans. I
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Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 03/23/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3139-3154

Errata to Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s Opposition to Plaintiff
Far West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment (filed 03/29/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3155-3156

Non—Party Rhonda Mona’s Supplemental Briefing
Following Recent Oral Argument Concerning Plaintiff Far
West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment (filed 04/22/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3157-3172

Exhibits to Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s
Supplemental Briefing Following Recent Oral
Argument Concerning Plaintiff Far West
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order
to Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
A Defendant’s Opposition to Countermotion for Volume 14
Summary Judgment (filed 01/19/16) Bates Nos. 3173-3193
B Defendants Rhonda Helen Mona, Michael Mona II, |Volume 14
and Lundene Enterprises, LLC’s Reply to Bates Nos. 3194-3210
Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed
01/26/16)
C Transcript of Proceedings: Plaintiff Far West Volume 14
Industries’ Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Bates Nos. 3211-3279
Dismiss and Countermotion for Summary
Judgment (filed 04/06/26)
D Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15) Volume 14

Bates Nos. 3280-3286




Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Supplemental Brief Regarding
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed
04/22/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3287-3298

Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Supplemental Brief Regarding Motion to
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
12 Writ of Garnishment-Bank of George Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3299-3305
13 Writ of Garnishment-Bank of Nevada Volume 14
Bates Nos. 33063313
14 Mona’s Redacted Bank Records Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3314-3327
Supplemental Brief Regarding Judicial Estoppel and Volume 15

Reducing the Sanction Order to Judgment (filed 04/23/16)

Bates Nos. 3328-3346

Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion: (1)
For Default Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for
Untimely Answers to Writ of Garnishment Interrogatories;
and (2) to compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of
Payments Made to, on Behalf of, or for the Benefit of
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 04/28/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3347-3350

Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion for
Determination of Priority of Garnishment and Defendant

Michael J. Mona’s Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3351-3356

Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West
Industries” Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s

Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for Return of
Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3357-3365

Notice of Entry of Order Shortening Time and Notice of
Hearing (filed 07/07/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 33663372

Joint Case Appeal Statement (filed 07/14/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3373-3378




Joint Notice of Appeal (filed 07/15/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3379-3397

Claim of Exemption (filed 07/15/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3398-3400

Plaintiff’s Far West Industries’ Objection to Claim of

Exception from Execution on an Order Shortening Time
(filed 07/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3401-3411

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Far West Industries’
Objection to Claim of Exception from Execution
on an Order Shortening Time

Exhibit

Document Description

1 Writ of Garnishment-Michael Mona Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3412-3416

2 Writ of Execution Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3417-3421

Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |[Volume 15

of Exemption and Discharge (filed 07/29/16)

Bates Nos. 3422-3452

Exhibits to Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption
and Discharge

Exhibit | Document Description
A Legislative History related to 120 day expiration Volume 15
period Bates Nos. 3453-3501
B Notice of Entry of Decree of Divorce Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3502-3510
C Plaintiff’s Opposition to Far West’s Motion to Volume 15

Intervene for a Finding and Order that the Post-
Marital Agreement is Void Based on the Principles
of Res Judicata and Issue Preclusion, and that the
Plaintiff and Defendant are Jointly Liable for the
Judgment Held by Intervenor and Plaintiff’s
Countermotion for Far West to Pay Plaintiff’s
Attorneys Fees and Costs Incurred Pursuant to
NRS 12.130(1)(d)

Bates Nos. 3511-3524




Exhibits to Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption
and Discharge (cont.)

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 08/09/16)

D Defendant Michael Mona’s Joinder to Plaintiff’s Volume 15
Opposition to Far West’s Motion to Intervene for a |Bates Nos. 3525-3528
Finding and Order that the Post-Marital Agreement
is Void Based on the Principles of Res Judicata and
Issue Preclusion, and that the Plaintiff and
Defendant are Jointly Liable for the Judgment Held
by Intervenor and Plaintiff’s Countermotion for Far
West to Pay Plaintiff’s Attorneys Fees and Costs
Incurred Pursuant to NRS 12.130(1)(d) (filed
09/29/15)

E Notice of Entry of Order (filed 12/01/15) Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3529-3533

F Writ of Garnishment-Michael Mona Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3534-3535

G Constable’s return of Notice of Execution after Volume 15
Judgment and Writ of Execution to Michael Mona |Bates Nos. 3536-3545

H Writ of Garnishment- Michael Mona Volume 15

Bates Nos. 35463556

I Claim of Exemption (filed 07/15/16) Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3557-3560

J Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s Motion for Volume 16
Determination of Priority of Garnishment and Bates Nos. 3561-3598
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 03/04/16)

K Mona’s Reply in Support of Countermotion to Volume 16
Discharge Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds |Bates Nos. 3599-3614
(filed 03/23/16)

L NRS 21.112 Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3615-3616

M Affidavit of Claiming Exempt Property form Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3617-3618
Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Objection to |Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3619-3621

Memorandum of Points and authorizes in Support of Claim
of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
11/10/16)

Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3622-3659




Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion for Discharge of Garnishment (filed 11/10/16)

Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3660-3662

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion for
Discharge of Garnishment

Exhibit

Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 16
(1989) Bates Nos. 3663-3711

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3712-3718

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 16
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 3719-3731

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 16
Opposition Bates Nos. 3732-3735

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 16
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 37363738

F Volume 16
Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Bates Nos. 3739-3740

G Volume 16
Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Bates Nos. 3741-3748

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with  |Volume 16
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 3749-3758

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 16
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 3759-3769

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 16
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 3770-3777

K Volume 16
NRS 21.075 Bates Nos. 3778-3780

L Volume 16
NRS 20.076 Bates Nos. 3781-3782

M Volume 16
NRS 21.090 Bates Nos. 3783-3785

N Volume 16
NRS 21.112 Bates Nos. 3786—3787

O Volume 16
NRS 31.200 Bates Nos. 3788—-3789

P Volume 16

NRS 31.249

Bates Nos. 3790-3791




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion for
Discharge of Garnishment (cont.)

Q Volume 16
NRS 31.260 Bates Nos. 3792-3793

R Volume 16
NRS 31.270 Bates Nos. 3794-3795

S Volume 16
NRS 31.295 Bates Nos. 3796-3797

T Volume 16
NRS 31.296 Bates Nos. 3798-3799

U Volume 16
EDCR 2.20 Bates Nos. 3800-3801

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 11/10/16) Volume 17

Bates Nos. 3802-3985

Far West Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order shortening Time and Motion for
Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b)
(filed 11/21/16)

Volume 17
Bates Nos. 39864002

Exhibits to Far West Industries’ Objection to
Claim of Exemption from Execution on an

Order shortening Time and Motion for Attorney
Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit

Document Description

1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (filed Volume 17
03/06/12 Superior Court of California, County of  |Bates Nos. 40034019
Riverside
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 17
Motion for Determination of Priority of Bates Nos. 4020-4026
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)
3 Writ of Execution Volume 17
Bates Nos. 4027-4035
4 Documents from the Office of the Ex—Officio Volume 17
Constable Bates Nos. 4036—4039
Affidavit of Service upon CV Sciences, Inc. FKA Cannavest |Volume 17

Corp. (filed 11/23/16)

Bates Nos. 4040-4041




Order Continuing Hearing re Far West’s Objection to Claim
of Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time
(filed 12/06/16)

Volume 17
Bates Nos. 40424043

Notice of Entry of Order Continuing Hearing on Objection
to Claim of Exemption (filed 12/07/16)

Volume 18
Bates Nos. 40444048

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs |Volume 18
Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b) (filed 12/08/16) Bates Nos. 4049-4054
Declaration of Rosanna Wesp (filed 12/15/16) Volume 18

Bates Nos. 4055-4056
Order Regarding Mona’s Claim of Exemption, Motion to Volume 18

Discharge, Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and Far
West’s Objection to Claim or Exemption Regarding October
2016 Garnishment (filed 01/09/17)

Bates Nos. 40574058

Notice of Entry of Order (filed 01/10/17) Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4059-4063
Application for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant Volume 18

Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 01/20/17)

Bates Nos. 40644066

Exhibits to Application for Issuance of Order
for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Subpoena Duces Tecum to Michael D. Sifen Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4067-4076
Michael J. Mona’s Opposition to Application for Issuance of |Volume 18

Order for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed
02/06/17)

Bates Nos. 4077—-4089

Exhibits to Michael J. Mona’s Opposition to
Application for Issuance of Order for Arrest of
Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Volume 18
Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15) Bates Nos. 4090—4096
Reply to Opposition to Application for Issuance of Order for |Volume 18

Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 02/14/17)

Bates Nos. 40974107

Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description

A

Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15)

Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41084114




Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (cont.)

B Nevada Secretary of State Entity Details for CV Volume 18
Sciences, Inc. Bates Nos. 41154118
C Executive Employment Agreement Volume 18

Bates Nos. 41194136

Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (cont.)

D Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael Mona Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41374148

E Residential Lease/Rental Agreement Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41494152

F Management Agreement Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41534157

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 03/24/17) Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41584164

Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points ~ |Volume 18

and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 03/24/17)

Bates Nos. 41654167

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 18
(1989) Bates Nos. 41684216

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4217-4223

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 18
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 4224-4236

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 18
Opposition Bates Nos. 42374240

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 18
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4241-4243

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 18

Bates Nos. 4244-4245




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 18
Bates Nos. 42464253

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with  |Volume 18
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 42544263

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 18
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4264-4274

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 18
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 42754282

K NRS 21.075 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42834285

L NRS 20.076 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42864287

M NRS 21.090 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4288—4290

N NRS 21.112 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4291-4292

@) NRS 31.200 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4293-4294

P NRS 31.249 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4295-4296

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4297-4298

R NRS 31.270 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42994300

S NRS 31.295 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43014302

T NRS 31.296 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4303-4304

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4305-4306

A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 19

of Garnishment

Bates Nos. 43074323




Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim
of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
03/30/17)

Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43244359

Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 03/30/17)

Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43604362

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 19
(1989) Bates Nos. 4363—4411

B Volume 19
Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Bates Nos. 44124418

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 19
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 4419-4431

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 19
Opposition Bates Nos. 4432—4435

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 19
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 44364438

F Volume 19
Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Bates Nos. 44394440

G Volume 19
Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Bates Nos. 44414448

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 19
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 44494458

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 19
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4459—4469

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 19
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 44704477

K NRS 21.075 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4478-4480

L NRS 20.076 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44814482

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44834485

N NRS 21.112 Volume 19

Bates Nos. 44864487




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

O NRS 31.200 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44884489

P NRS 31.249 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44904491

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44924493

R NRS 31.270 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44944495

S NRS 31.295 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44964497

T NRS 31.296 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4498-4499

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 45004501

A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 19
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 45024518

W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 45194535

X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 20

service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of

Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office

Bates Nos. 45364537

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 03/30/17) Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4538-4544
Order Regarding Far West’s Application for Issuance of Volume 20

Order for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed
03/31/17)

Bates Nos. 45454546

Notice of Entry of Order (filed 04/03/17) Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4547-4550
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |Volume 20

of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
04/20/17)

Bates Nos. 45514585

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 04/20/17)

Volume 20
Bates Nos. 45864592




Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 04/20/17)

Volume 20
Bates Nos. 45934595

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 20
(1989) Bates Nos. 4596—4644

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 46454651

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 20
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 46524664

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s | Volume 20
Opposition Bates Nos. 4665—4668

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 20
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4669-4671

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 46724673

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4674—4681

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 20
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 46824691

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 20
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 46924702

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 20
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 47034710

K | NRS 21.075 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47114713

L NRS 20.076 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47144715

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47164718

N NRS 21.112 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4719-4720

O NRS 31.200 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47214722

P NRS 31.249 Volume 20

Bates Nos. 47234724




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47254726
R NRS 31.270 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47274728
S NRS 31.295 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47294730
T NRS 31.296 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47314732
U EDCR 2.20 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47334734
A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 47354751
W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 47524768
X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 21
service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Bates Nos. 47694770
Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office
Y Affidavit of Service regarding April 3, 2017 service |Volume 21

of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Garnishment
from Laughlin Township Constable’s Office

Bates Nos. 47714788

Stipulation and Order Regarding Amended Nunc Pro Tunc
Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion to
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed 04/24/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47894791

Notice of Entry Stipulation and Order Regarding amended
Nunc Pro Tunc Order regarding Plaintiff Far West
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment
(filed 04/25/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47924797

Plaintiff Far West Industries Objection to Claim of
Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time

and Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS
18.010(2)(b) (filed 05/02/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47984817




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and

Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law (filed Volume 21
03/06/12 Superior Court of California Riverside)  |Bates Nos. 4818-4834
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 21
Motion for Determination of Priority of Bates Nos. 48354841
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)
3 Nevada Secretary of State Entity Details for CV Volume 21
Sciences, Inc. Bates Nos. 48424845
4 Answers to Interrogatories Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4846—4850
Stipulation and Order Regarding Writ of Garnishment Volume 21

Served 04/03/17 and Claim of Exemption , and Vacating
Related Hearing without Prejudice (filed 05/15/17)

Bates Nos. 48514854

Notice of Entry of Stipulation and Order Regarding Writ of
Garnishment Served 04/03/17 and Claim of Exemption , and
Vacating Related Hearing without Prejudice (filed 05/16/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 48554861

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 05/23/17) Volume 21
Bates Nos. 48624868
Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points Volume 21

and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 05/23/17)

Bates Nos. 48694871

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit

Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 21
(1989) Bates Nos. 4872—-4920

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4921-4927

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 21

September 28, 2015

Bates Nos. 4928-4940




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 21
Opposition Bates Nos. 4941-4944

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 21
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4945-4947

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49484949

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49504957

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 21
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 4958—4967

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 21
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4968—4978

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 21
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 4979-4986

K | NRS 21.075 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49874989

L NRS 20.076 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4990—-4991

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4992-4994

N NRS 21.112 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4995-4996

O NRS 31.200 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49974998

P NRS 31.249 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4999-5000

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5001-5002

R NRS 31.270 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5003-5004

S NRS 31.295 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5005-5006

T NRS 31.296 Volume 21

Bates Nos. 5007-5008




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5009-5010
A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 22
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5011-5027
W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 22
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5028-5044
X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 22
service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Bates Nos. 5045-5046
Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office
Y Affidavit of Service regarding April 3, 2017 service |Volume 22
of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5047-5064
from Laughlin Township Constable’s Office
Z Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 22
May 9, 2017 Bates Nos. 50655078
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |Volume 22

of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
05/23/17)

Bates Nos. 5079-5114

Plaintiff Far West Industries Objection to Claim of
Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time

and Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS
18.010(2)(b) (filed 06/05/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5115-5131

Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and

Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law (filed Volume 22
03/06/12 in Superior Court of California Riverside) |Bates Nos. 5132-5148
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 22

Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s

Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Bates Nos. 5149-5155




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and
Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b) (cont.)

3 Affidavit of Service by Laughlin Township Volume 22
Constable’s Office Bates Nos. 51565157

4 Affidavit of Service by Laughlin Township Volume 22
Constable’s Office Bates Nos. 5158-5159

Notice of Entry of Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far West Volume 22

Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption from Execution

(filed 07/19/17)

Bates Nos. 5160-5165

Ex Parte Motion for Order Allowing Judgment Debtor
Examination of Michael J. Mona, Jr., Individually, and as
Trustee of the Mona Family Trust Dated February 12, 2002
(filed 08/16/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 51665179

Notice of Appeal (filed 08/18/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5180-5182

Exhibits to Notice of Appeal

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Notice of Entry of Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far Volume 22
West Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption |Bates Nos. 5183-5189
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ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
03/07/2018 08:40:57 PM

Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Terry A. Coffing, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 4949

Tye S. Hanseen, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 10365
10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
teoffing@maclaw.com
thanscen@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Michael J. Mona, Jr.

PISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, 4 California
cotpotation, ‘
Case No.: A-12-670352-F
Plaintiff, Dept. No.: XV

vs.
Hearing Date: March 21, 2016
RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada limited | Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m.
Hability company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT,
INC., a California corporation; BRUCE MAIZE,
and individual; MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an
individual; DOES I through 100, inclusive,

Defendants.

OPPOSITION TO FA : NT
ORDER TO JUDGMENT

Defendant Michael J. Monad, Jr. (“Mona”), through the law firm of Marquis Aurbach
Coffing, hereby submits his Opposition to Far West’s Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment. This Opposition and Countermotion are made and based on the attached
1t
117
117
117
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Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the pleadings and papers on file herein, and any oral
argument allowed by the Court at a hearing on this matter,

Dated this 7th day of March, 2016,

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By ___ /s/TyeS Hanseen
Terry A. Coffing, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 4949
Tye S. Hanscen, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 10365
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr.

L INTRODUCTION

The Court should deny Plaintiff”s attempts to take advantage of and capitalize on an
Order that is the subject of 4 Writ Petition pending before the Nevada Supreme Court. Although
Plaintiff has veferred to the Wrif ag “meritless,” the truth is the Writ is so well-founded that the
Supreme. Court has assigned. it to the En Banc Court for consideration, as opposed to flatly
rejecting the Writ as it does with so many other writs. Thus, prudence, prejudice, and judicial
economy require that the Court deny Plaintiff’s Motion pending the outcome of the Writ.
Furthermore, if and when it ever becomes appropriate for the Court to consider Plaintiff’s
request to enter a judgment for fees and costs, #t is evident that the request for fees is
unreasonable because Plaintiff is asking for more than $11,200 for what amounted to drafting
approximately 30 pages of text and an order. Moreover, considering that the Monas are
divorced, any judgment should be allocated amongst them proportionately.

IL STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS

The Court is aware of the facts that surround this case and the subject Motion. Thus,
rather than reguargitate the facts again, Mona incorporates the facts and arguments from the Writ

Petition and related briefings pending before the Supreme Court as if fully set forth herein. See
Page 2 of 8
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July 17, 2015 Petition for Writ of Mandamus, Appendices Volumes 1-2, and Reply in Support

Petition for Writ of Mandamus on file with the Nevada Supreme Court.’ Beyond these facts, the

following facts are relevant;

-

February 7, 2014—Plaintiff filed a Complaint against Mona and other
individuals/entities alleging fraudulent transfers. See (?ompiaint: in Case No, A-
14-695786-C (“First Fraudulent Transfer Action™). Plaintiff filed First, Second,
and Third Amended Complaints in the case before the case was eventually settled
at a scttlement conference.

September 11, 201 5—Far West filed a Complaint against Mona, his ex-wife, and
his son alleging claims for fraudulent transfers. See Complaint in Case No. A-
15-724490-C (“Second Fraudulent Transfer Action™).

November 25, 2015—This Court, Department B in the Family Division,
sanctioned Far West for its conduct in the Monas™ divorce proceedings.
November 25,2015 Order in Case No. D-13-517425-D (“Divorce Action™).
Speciﬁc(:iailyg the court awarded Mike Mona and Rhonda Mona their fees and
costs. 1d.

November 30, 2015—The court entered its Sanction Order against Far West for
fees and costs in favor of Rhonda Mona. See November 30, 2015 Order in the
Divorce Action (Case No. D-15-517425-1). ‘

December 2, 2015—The court entered its Sanction Order against Far West for
fees and costs in favor of Mike Mona. Sec December 2, 2015 Ovder in the
Divoree Action (Case No. D-15-517425-D).

December 4, 2015——Mona moved to dismiss the Second Fraudulent Transfer

Action. Sge December 4, 2015 Motion to Dismiss, January 19, 2016 Opposition

to Countermotion for Summary Judgment, and January 26 Replies on behalf of

the Mona Defendants in the Second Fraudulent Transfer Action (Case No. A~15-

}’};24490-0), which are all incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth
erein.

December 11, 2015—Far West reneged on the settiement in the First Fraudulent
Transfer Action, which required the defendants to ask Judge Gonzalez to enforce
the settlement. Sce December 11, 2015 Motion to Enforce in the First Frandulent
Transfer Action {Case No. A-14-695786-C). :

Janvary 29, 2106--Judge Gonzalez enforced the settlement between the
defendants and Far West in the First Fraudulent Transfer Action. Sge January 29,
2016 Order in the First Fraudulent Transfer Action (Case No. A-14-695786-C).

February 2, 201 6—Judge Bare heard the Mona Defendants’ arguments in support
of dismissal of the Second Fraudulent Transfer Action and Far West’s arguments
in support of its Countermotion for Summary Judgment against Rhonda Mona,

! The Court mentioned during a prior hearing that it had reviewed the Writ and/or related documents.
Thus, Mona is not going io clutter the Court’s files by attaching the documents apain herein, but will
certainly provide additional copies to the Court if the Couri desires.
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See February 2, 2016 Docket Entry in the Second Fraudulent Transfer Action
(Case No. A~15-724490-C).

* February 19, 2016—Far West filed the present Motion seeking judgments based
on the Order pending before the Supreme Court,

* March 3, 2016—Far West apparcntly refused to cooperate in the dismissal of the
First Fraudulent Transfer Action after Judge Gonzalez enforced the settlement and
the defendants were apparently forced to file a Motion to Dismiss a seftled case
due to Far West’s lack of cooperation. Sge March 3, 2016 Motion te Enforce in
the first Fraudulent Transfer Action (Case No. A-14-695786-C),
s March 4, 2016-—Defendants in the First Fraudulent Transfer Action were forced
to file an Opposition and Countermotions for Sanctions in the present case against
Far West’s counsel for what they deemed unéthical coniduct in seeking a judgment
based on untimely answers to interrogatories.,
L. LEGAL ARGUMENT
The Court should deny Plaintiff’s Motion for two reasons. First, the requested relief is
not appropriate at this stage due to the Writ Petition pending before the Supreme Court. Second,
even if relicf was appropriate, the request for fees Is unreasonable and, if and when it becomes
appropriate, any judgment for fees should be split proportionately amongst the Monas.
A. THE COURT SHOULD DENY PLAINTIFF'S MOTION PENDING THE
OUTCOME OF THE SUPREME COURT'S BECISION
The Couwrt should refuse to entertain Far West’s request for judgment based on the
Sanction Order because the Supreme Court may very well reverse it. There is no dispute that the
stay regarding execution on the Judgment against Mike Mona has expired, which allows Far
West to continue to execute against Mike Mona’s assets. However, the expiration of the stay on
exccution does not mean it is appropriate for Plaintiff to take jurisdiction away from the Supreme
Court by secking further judgments based on the actual Order that is the subject of the Writ

Petition. Indeed, Plaintiff may execute all it wants on the Judgment against Mike, but further

Jjudgments based on the Sanction Order are not appropriate at this time,

2 The Motion to Distiiss remaing under advisement and Jadge bare denied Far West’s Countermotion for
Summary Judgment. Moreover, Judge Bare did not advise Plaintiff that moving for summary judgment
against Rhonda Mona before this Department was appropriate—Judge Bare did not take a position.
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To further support this argument, Mona incorporates herein by reference the arguments
before the Supreme Court related to the Sanction Order.® As indicated above, this Court
mentioned during a prior hearing that it had reviewed the Writ and/or related documents. Thus,
Mona will not rehash all of the arguments made before the Supreme Court to this Court a.gainf’
Suffice it to say that prudence, prejudice, and judicial economy require that the Court deny
Plaintiff’s Motion pending the outcome of the Writ.

Moreover, the Monas may indeed prevail on the Writ (the Supreme Court has had the

Writ under consideration for more than eight months now); a judgment now would defeat the

object of the Writ (the object was to reverse the Sanction Order, which is the basis of Plaintiffs
tequest for judgment); any judgment will result in serious harm (Far West would possess an
actual judgment against Rhonda Mona and would execute on it with the prospect that the basis of
the judgment [the Sanction Order] may be reversed); and, Far West will not be harmed by a
denial without prejudice of its Motion pending the Supreme Court decision (Far West will be in
the same position it is now and, in the meantime, may continue to execute on its Judgment
against Mike Mona and the Mona Family Trust).® Indeed, no relief is appropriate in favor of Far
‘West based on the Sanction Order or the related allegations (whether in this action, the Second
Fraudulent Transfer Action, or any other case Far West may file) until the Supreme Court makes
a decision. Therefore, the Court should deny the Motion pending the Supreme Court’s decision.
B. IT IS NOT APPROPRIATE FOR THE COURT TO CONSIDER
PLAINTIFF'S FEE REQ"{JES’T AT THIS TIME AND, EVEN IF IT WAS
APPROPRIATE, PLAINTIFE’'S FEES ARE UNREASONABLE
If the Supreme Coutt affirms the Sanction Order, it may become appropriate at that time

for the Court to consider Far West’s request for judgment based on its fees. If that ever happens,

* See July 17, 2015 Petition for Writ of Mandamus, Appendices Volumies 1-2, and Reply in Support
Petition for Writ of Mandamus on file with the Nevada Supreme Court.,

* If the Court finds it necessary or desires Mona to do so, Mona will rehash word for word the arguments
in detail in a supplement rather than siraply incorporate them by reference.

3 See Han: ist, . r¢ unty of Clark, 116 Nev. 650, 6 P.3d 982 (2000) (discussing stay
. v. MeCrea, 120 Nev, 248, 251, 89 P.3d 36, 38 (2004) (hokding
that whllc no one facmr is mc)re important, “if one or two factors are especiaily strong, they may
counterbalance other wedk factors™).

Page 5 of 8
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the Court must reduce the fees to a reasonable amount and should split them proportionately
amongst Mike Mona and Rhonda Mona. As to the “reasonablencss”® of the fees, Far West’s
bricfings consist of cssentially an Ex Parte Motion, Reply, and Order for which it its attorneys
billed in excess of $11,000. See Far West’s July 20, 2015 Memortandum -of Fees and Costs.

Excluding captions, signature blocks, and the like, Far West drafied only 30 pages of
actual text related to the Ex Paric Application and Reply. See June 29, 2015 Ex. Parte
Application and July 8, 2015 Reply:. Further, 10 of the 30 pages represent copying and pasting
of statutes, deposition testimony, or the like that a secretary could have handled. Id. In addition,
some of the Reply is simply a repeat of the inifial Application. Id. Also, Far West had three
attorneys billing toward the preparation of the Application and Reply, which is not reasonable.
See Far West’s July 20, 2015 Memorandum of Fees and Costs. Thus, the time and process put
forth in the preparation of the briefings was not reasonable.

Beyond the bricfings themselves, Far West had two attorneys attend the hearing and
billed what appears to be eight hours for the hearing. Id. Bight hours fo attend a hearing is not
reasonable. Plaintiff also billed what appears to be nine hours 16 prépare the Order. Id. And, the
Order is almost in its entirety a copy and paste job of the briefings. Sece Fuly 15, 2015 Order.
Nine hours for copying and pasting to prepare an Order is not reasonable. As a result, $11,242
as claimed is excessive—a more appropriate amount for Far West’s fees would be closer to
$5,000. Moreover, Mona also contests the “results” factor. The Supreme Court will make a
determination as to whether Far West was indeed successful. Thercfore, the Court should deny
Far West’s request because pending the Supreme Court’s decision and, if it ever becomes
appropriate to consider the request, the fees should be reduced significantly andv split
proportionately between Mike Mona and Rhonda Mona.

Iv. CONCLUSION

The Court should deny Plaintiff’s attempts to take advantage of and capitalize on an

Order that is the subject of a Writ Petition pending before the Nevada Supreme Court. Although

S Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 455 P.2d 31 (1969) (identifying factors for
considering whether an award of fees is appropriate).
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Plaintiff has referred to the Writ as “meritless,” the truth is the Writ is so well-founded that the
Supreme Court has assigned it to the En Banc Court for consideration, as opposed to flatly
rejecting the Writ as it does ‘with so many other writs. Thus, prudence, prejudice, and judicial
economy require that the Court deny Plaintiff’s Motion pending the outcome of the Writ.
Furthermore, if and when it ever becomes appropriate for the Coutt to consider Plaintiff’s
request fo enter a judgment for fees and costs, it is evident that the request for fees is
unreasonable because Plaintiff is asking for more than $11,200 for what amounted to drafting
approximately 30 pages of text and an order. Moreover, considering that the Monas are
divorced, any judgment should be allocated amongst them proportionately.
Dated this 7th day of March, 2016.
MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By fs/ Tye 8. Hangeen
Terry A. Coffing, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 4949

Tye S. Hanseen, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 10365
10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that MONA’S OPPOSITION TO FAR WEST’S MOTION TO REDUCE
SANCTIONS ORDER TO JUDGMENT was submitted electronically for filing and/or service
with the Eighth Judicial District Court on the 7th day of March, 2016. Electronic service of the
foregoing document shall be made in accordance with the E-Service List as follows:”

Holley Driggs Walch Fine Wray Puzey & Thompson

Contact Email

Andrea M. Gandara agandara@nevadafirm.com
Norma nmosclevidmevadafivm. com
Tilla Nealon toealon@nevadafirm com
Tom Edwards edwards@nevadafitm.com

I further certify that I served a copy of this document by emailing a true and corrést copy
thercof tor

James E. Whitmire, Esq.
; Santoro Whitmire
10100 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 250
Las Vegas, Nevada 89135

/s/ Tye 8. Hanseen
an employee of Marquis Aurbach Coffing

7 Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(2), each party who submits an E-Filed document through the E-Filing System
consents to electronic service in accordance with NRCP S(b)2)(D).
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JAMES E. WHITMIRE, ESQ. CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada State Bar No. 6533

iwhitmire@santoronevada.com

SANTCRO WHITMIRE

10100 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 250

Las Vegas, Nevada 89135

Telephone:  702-948-8771

Facsimile: 702-948-8773

Attorneys for Rhonda Helene Mona

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California

corporation,
% Case No.: A-12-670352-F

Plaintiff, Dept. No.:. XV
Vs. ;

RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada limited |
liability company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT,
INC., a California corporation; BRUCE MAIZE, 5
an individual, MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an :
individual; DOES 1 through 100, inclusive,

Defendant.

NON-PARTY RHONDA MONA’S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF FAR WEST
INDUSTRIES® MOTION TO REDUCE SANCTIONS ORDER TO JUDGMENT

Date of Hearing: 03/21/16
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m.

Rhonda Helene Mona (“Rhonda”), by and through her undersigned counsel, hereby files
Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s Opposition to Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion to Reduce

Sanctions Order to Judgment. This Opposition is based on the following Memorandum of Points
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and Authorities, the exhibits attached hereto, the pleadings and papers on file herein, and any
oral argument by counsel permitted at the hearing on this matter.
Dated this 7th day of March, 2016.
SANTORO WHITMIRE

8/ James E. Whitmire

JAMES E. WHITMIRE, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 6%33
iwhitmire@santoronevada.com
10100 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 250
Las Vegas, Nevada 89135
Telephone:  702-948-8771
Facsimile: 702-948-8773

Attorneys for Rhonda Helene Mona

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

While the undersigned is new to this matter, it is abundantly clear that the underlying

matter is acrimonious. A simple domestication of a foreign judgment action against Rhonda’s ;:
ex-husband has turned into something far greater than that; especially as to Rhonda, who was
never part of the underlying dispute between Plaintiff and Michael, Ir. As discussed herein,

Rhonda respectfully submits that there are several non-exclusive reasons why this Court should
not reduce its sanctions order to judgment as to Rhonda.

1. Plaintiff’s Motion contains no authority whatsoever which stands for the
proposition that a sanctions order may be reduced to “judgment” as to a non-party such as |
Rhonda. For that reason alone, Plaintiff's Motion should be denied. See, e.g., EDCR 2.34(c).

2. It would be inconsistent with fundamental notions of due process for the Court to
enter a “Judgment” against Rhonda who was not named as a party defendant, was never served :
with a summons and complaint, and who otherwise never participated in any procceding that

afforded her due process.

1194




SANTORO WHITMIRE

10100 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 250,

Las Vegas, Nevada 89135

- fax (702) 948-8773

(702) 948-8771

© W G ot s W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

3. Plaintiff is correct that Rhonda has contended that an independent action should
have been filed as to Rhonda in order for any “judgment” to be entered against her.! This has
been explained on numerous occasions (inchnding in this Court, within the Petition for Writ of _:
Mandamus that is pending before the Nevada Supreme Court and in Motion practice before
Judge Bare (in what Plaintiff refers to as the Department 32 “Mona Fraudulent Transfer Action.” |
See, Motion at page 6.)) As explained in connection with the Department 32 proceeding:

While it may be theoretically correct for Plaintiff to have litigated
against Rhonda in a separate proceeding where fundamental due
process would have been afforded to Rhonda, it would be
completely inappropriate for this Court, in an afier-the-fact
independent action, to grant summary judgment against Rhonda
based upon the deep rooted fundamental defects associated with
the interlocutory sanctions order issued in another case. Instead of
filing an independent action against Rhonda whereby personal
jurisdiction would have been presumably obtained and whereby
she would have presumably been afforded fundamental due
process rights such as notice, an opportunity to be heard and the
right to cross-examine witnesses, Plaintiff seeks to completely
bypass that process by: (a) seeking summary adjudication based
upon an erroneous ruling made in the prior separate proceeding;
and, (b) completely ignoring the ongoing appeal of the prior
interlocutory order in the separate proceeding.

In sum, summary judgment in favor of Plaintiff in this case is
completely inappropriate. At a minimum, this Court should defer
any ruling on this matter until the Nevada Supreme Court issues a
ruling in connection with the pending Petition for Writ of
Mandamus/Prohibition in the prior action.
See, Ex. A attached hereto at 3. Ex. A, which is incorporated by reference herein, is Rhonda’s
Opposition to Countermotion for Summary Judgment filed in the Department 32 action wherein
Plaintiff already sought to reduce this Court’s sanctions order to judgment,
4, Recognizing that an independent action needed to be pursued, Plaintiff itself filed !
an action, which is pending in Department 32. In the Department 32 action, Judge Bare denied

Plaintiff’s Countermotion for Summary Judgment seeking to reduce to Judgment this Court’s ::

' It is incorrect for Plaintiff to state or suggest that Rhonda has argued that Plaintiff can only |
seek judgment from this Court. See, e.g., page 10 of Plaintiff’s Motion.

8.
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sanctions order. After being unsuccessful in Department 32, Plaintiff is now coming back to !

Department 15 for relief.
5. For the same reasons argued before Department 32, this Court should decline to

reduce its sanctions order to judgment. As argued in the Department 32 action:

At its core, this case involves Plaintiff’s overly aggressive and
improper attempts to shift financial responsibility to Defendant
Rhonda Mona (“Rhonda” or “Defendant™) for a judgment entered
against her ex-husband, Michael J. Mona, Jr. (“Michael”). Even
though Divorce Court Judge Linda Marquis has ruled that said
judgment is Michael’s sole and separate debt, Plaintiff has engaged
in a ceaseless effort to collect against Rhonda. The discreet issue
with respect to Plaintiff’s countermotion for summary judgment is
whether this Court should reduce to judgment an interlocutory
sanctions order issued by Judge Hardy -- which is the subject of a
pending appeal -- (a) even though Rhonda was not a party in the
case in which the sanctions order was issued; (b) even though
personal jurisdiction was never obtained against Rhonda in the
separate case; (c) even though Rhonda was never given an
opportunity to have an evidentiary hearing to present her case; (d)
even though case terminating sanctions were entered without any
findings being made pursuant to applicable case law; and, (¢) even
though no judgment was ever entered against Rhonda.

See, Ex. A at 2-3, passim.

6. While it is true that Judge Bare did not preclude Plaintiff from secking a .
“Judgment” in this Court, it is equally true that Judge Bare did not endorse Plaintiff's efforts or
otherwise express any opinion as to the propriety in seeking any such judgment. See, Ex. 2
attached hereto (proposed Order Denying Countermotion for Summary Judgment at 2, fn. 1
stating, in relevant part, “the Court is expressing no opinion as to Far West’s position.”).2 _

7. Just as Judge Bare declined to grant the relief requested by Plaintiff, this Court
should exercise similar restraint. This Court should, at a minimum, wait for the Supreme Court’s
decision before even entertaining entering further orders beyond the sanctions order that was

already entered.

? The Order attached hereto was approved by all counsel as to form. To the undersigned’s

knowledge, the formal Order has not been signed. In sum, while Judge Bare did not preclude

Plaintiff from seeking a judgment from this Court, he did not state or otherwise imply that this :

Court should enter such judgment. :
s 4~
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8. Putting aside the ongoing appeal and the claimed defects with the underlying
Sanctions Order (e.g., Rhonda’s contention that the Court does not have jurisdiction to enter a
“Judgment” against her given that, among other things, she is not a party, service was never |
offectuated and the due process issues associated with the lack of a hearing and/or compliance

sanctions order.
The effect of a “Judgment” could lead to severe prejudice to Rhonda, especially in light v
of the ongoing appeal. To the best of the undersigned’s knowledge {(who did not participate in |
the underlying proceedings), the Court permitted Plaintiff to proceed with collection efforts as to
three different bank accounts as a part of the sanctions order. Now, Plaintiff is seeking to obtain
a “Judgment,” which would, at least in theory, potentially permit Plaintiff to engage in a broader
range of collection efforts. Under the circumstances of this case, it would be fundamentally ‘v
unfair for the sanctions order against a non-party to metastasize into a “J udgment” that would
permit Plaintiff to engage in unfettered collection efforts especially when one considers that an
appeal is ongoing. .
9. The prejudice is real and severe. What happens, for example, if Rhonda’s appeal
is successful? How will she ever be restored to the status quo? Plaintiff already obtained assets 52
in connection with the sanctions order. It should not now be permitted to obtain a “Judgment”
against a person (i.e. Rhonda) when it did not even sue Rhonda in the first place, never served
her and/or otherwise afforded her the procedural safeguards that would have existed if Plaintiff :5
had (as it should have) filed an independent action against Rhonda to begin with.
10. For the same reasons why the underlying sanctions order should not be
enforceable as to Rhonda, no “Judgment” should be entered against her. Rhonda also
incorporates by reference herein all arguments contained in her Petition for Writ of Mandamus as
to why the no “Yudgment” should be entered against her. Attached hereto as Ex. Cis a copy of
the Petition for Writ of Mandamus (without exhibits) filed on behalf of Rhonda.
11, Before concluding, Rhonda will briefly address a few other points raised by |

Plaintiff in its Motion.
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Rhonda is not responding to the majority of the Motion, which sets forth various
matters of procedural history, which do not affect the merits arguments herein.
There is nothing in Barney v. Mt. Rose Heating & Air Conditioning, 124 Nev.
821, 192 P.2d 730 (2008) which supports the proposition that a $3.4 million |
interlocutory sanctions order may be reduced to judgment against a non-party to
the action who has never been served with a summons, Accordingly, Plaintiff's
reliance on Barney is misplaced.

Plaintiff takes out of context certain arguments made in the Department 32 action
and/or the rulings issued by Judge Bare. In particular, Plaintiff overstates maters

by claiming, at page 7 of its Motion:

Based on the Mona’s arguments that this Court already
entered a final order regarding the $3,406,601.10 fraudulent
transfer effectuated through the Post-Marital Settlement
Agreement, Judge Bare denjed Plaintiff Far West
Industries” Countermotion for Summary Judgment without
prejudice, and expressly held that Far West could pursue
the judgment in this Court instead.

Judge Bare did not deny the Countermotion on this simplistic basis. Judge Bare
denied the Motion because, among other potential reasons, the Nevada Supreme ‘
Court is considering the fraudulent transfer issue on appeal. After making a |
ruling, Plaintiff asked Judge Bare whether it could seek a judgment before this j
Court. Judge Bare did not preclude Plaintiff from doing so. However, Judge
Bare also did not say — contrary to Plaintiff’s statement or suggestion -~ that Far
West should be successful in obtaining a judgment in this Court. In fact, Judge
Bare stated that he was expressing no opinion as to whether the entry of such
judgment would be appropriate. See, Ex. 2 attached hereto and footnote 2 herein. |
Rhonda has never stated, as implied by Plaintiff (e.g. at page 7 of the Motion),
that this Court’s interlocutory sanctions order was appropriate. Rather, what :
Rhonda has repeatedly stated is that no Court — whether it is this Court or

Department 32 — should enter “judgment” or even consider the issue until the |

-6
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Nevada Supreme Court issues a ruling on the pending Petition for Wirt of
Mandamus.
12.  Finally, Plaintiff's request to reduce fees to judgment should also be denied.
When this matter was before Judge Bare, Plaintiff sought to come back to Department 15 to .
reduce the sanctions order to judgment. Now, Plaintiff wants an increased scope of relief by :
seeking an attorneys’ fee award in addition to reducing the sanctions order to judgment.
Plaintiff’s request is too broad as a procedural matter. Morcover, the appeal is pending.
Furthermore, Plaintiff should not be allowed to contimously litigate matters in piecemeal :
fashion. Now, many months after the fact, Plaintiff is attempting to obtain fees. This is unfair :
and once again illustrates Plaintiff’s relentless attempt to continue to punish Rhonda.
For all of the foregoing reasons, the Court should not enter reduce its sanctions order to |

judgment against Rhonda.

Dated this 7th day of March, 2016.

SANTORO WHITMIRE

/s/ James E. Whitmire

JAMES E. WHITMIRE, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 6533
jwhitmire@santoronevada.com

10100 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite 250
Las Vegas, Nevada 89135

Attorneys for Rhonda Helene Mona
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CERTIFICATE OF BERVICE
I HEREBY CERTIFY that, on the 7th day of March, 2016 and pursuant to NEFCR 9.
NRCP 5(b) and EDCR 7.26, I served OPPOSITION NON-PARTY RHONDA MONA'S :5
OFPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRIES' MOTION TO REDUCE g

SANCTIONS ORDER TO JUDGMENT, on all parties receiving service by electronic

transmission through the Wiznet system in this action to:

F. Thomas Edwards, Esq. Aurora M. Maskall, Esq.

Andrea M. Gandara, Esq. David S. Lee, Esq.

HOLLY DRIGGS WALCH LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM &
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON GARAFALO

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor 7575 Vegas Drive, #150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
agandara@nevadafirm.com amaskall@lec-lawfirm.com
tedwards@nevadafirm.com dlee@lec-lawfirm.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

Tye S. Hanseen, Esq.

Terry A. Coffing, Esq.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
1001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89143
thanseen@maclaw.com
teoffing@maclaw.com

Attorneys for Michael Mona, Jr.

/s/ James E. Whitmire
An employee of SANTORO WHITMIRE
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JAMES E. WHITMIRE, BSQ.  CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Smte Bar No, 6533

L W}HT
10100 W, Charleston Blvd., Suite 250
Las Vegas, Nevada 80135
Telephone:  702-948-8771
Facsimiler  702-948-8773

Astorneys for Defendants Rhonda
Helene Mona and Michael Mona I

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California ‘
corporation,
Case No.: A-15-724490-C
Plaintiff, Dept. No.: 30001
V8,

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an individual;
RHONDA HELENE MONA, an individual:
MICHAEL MONA liI, an individual;
LUNDENE ENTERFPRISES, LLC, a Nevada
lirnited liability corporation, DOES 1 through 10
and ROE CORPORATIONS 1 through 10,
inclusive,,

Heaving Date: 82/0272016
Hegring Time: 2:08 a.m.

Rhonda Helene Mona, by and through the law fimm of Santoro Whitmire, hereby files |
Defendant’s Opposition to Countermotion to Summary Judgment. This Opposition is based on
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the following Memorandum of Points and Awuthorities, the exhibits attached hereto, the pleadings
and papers on file herein, and sny orel argument by counsel permitted &t the hearing on this :

matier,
Dated this 19 day of January, 2016.
SANTORO WHITMIRE

/5 James E, Whitmire
JAMES BE. WHITMIRE, ESQ.

Nevada State Bar No. 6533

jwhitmi ronecvada.com

10100 W, Charleston Blvd., 8uite 250
Las Vegas, Nevada 89135
Telephone:  702-948-8771
Facmimile:  702-948-8773

Attorneys for Defendants Rhonda
Helene Mona and Michael Mong 1T

At its core, this case involves Plaintiff’s overly aggressive and improper attempts to shift
financial responsibility to Defendant Rhonda Mona (“Rhonda” or “Defendent™) for a judgment
| entered against her ex-husband, Michael J, Mons, Jr. (“Michael™), Even though Divorce Court
Judge Linda Marquis has ruled that said judgment is Michael’s sole and separate debt, Plaingiff |
has engaged in a ceaseless effort 1o collect against Rhonda. The discreet issue with respect to
Plaintif*s countermotion for surmmary judgment is whether this Court should reduce to judgment
! an interlocutory sanctions order issued by Judge Hardy -- which is the subject of a pending |
appeal' - (s) even though Rhonda was niot. a party in the case in which the sanctions order was
issued; (b) even though personal jurisdiction was never obtained against Rhonda in the separate

case; (¢) even though Rhomda wag never given an opportunity to have an evidentiary besring fo

! Attached hereto as Exs. A and B are copies of the Petition for Writ of Mandamus/Prohibition
and the Reply in Support thercof. The Appendices.in support of the Writ Petition are attached as
Bzxs. Al and A2, :
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L present her case; (d) even though case terminating sanctions were entered without any findings
being made pursuant to applicable case law; and, (¢) even though no judgment was ever entered
against Rhonda.* |
I While it may be theoretically correot for Plaintiff to have litigated against Rhonda in a
 separate proceeding where findamental duc process would bave been afforded to Rhonds, it
would be completely inappropriate for this Court, in an after-the-fact independent action, to grant
summary judgment against Rhonda based upon the deep rooted fundamental defects associated
with the interlocutory sanctions order issued in another case. Instead of filing an independent
action against Rhonda whereby personal jurisdiction would have been presumably obtained and ;
whereby she would have presumably been afforded fundamental due process rights such ss
notice, an opportunity to be heard and the right to cross-examine witnesses, Plaintiff seeks to
completely bypass that process by: (8) seeking summary adjudication based TPOn 80 eIroneous :
uling made in the prior separate proceeding; and, (b) completely ignoring the ongoing appeal of
the prior interlocutory order in the separate procoeding.

In $um, summery judgment in favor of Plaintiff in this case is completely inappropriate. |
At a minimum, this Court should defer any ruling on this matter until the Nevada Supreme Court
issues a ruling in connection with the pending Petition for Writ of Mandamus/Prohibition in the

prior action.

? Plaintiff sosks summary judgment as to its Second Canse of Action, which involves an alleged
fraudulent transfor of $3.4 million, which is half of $6.8 miflion the Monas received through a
stock sale. Seg, Pitf's Amended Complaint st 10:26-11:25. PlaintifPs Countermotion for
Summary Judgment is hinged on the interlocutory sanctions order that pertains to Michae! and ;
Rhonda’s post-marital settlement agreement, which divided the proceeds of that $6.8 million
stock ssle. The postmarital settlement agreswent at issus dealt with no other assets,
Accordingly, the relief sought in the Plaintiff’s “Second Cause of Action” does not deal with all

of Rhonda’s asseis.
[ S
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L Defendant Michae! Mons is 2 resident of Nevada who is the primery target of
Plaintiff. See Pltf's Amended Complaint on file herein.

2. Plaintiff Far West Industries (“Plaintiff””) is a . California corporation that '
possesses 1 Californis Judgment against Mr. Mona for allegations relafing to fraud, I ot 2:6.7 |
and 3:4-28,

3 The California Judgment is against Michael Mona only, & 3:4-28,

4. The Judgment amount sflsgedly totals more than $24,000,000.00. Jd at 3:25.

5. Rhonda Mona is Michael Mona’s ex-wifs and Michael Mona, III ("M3"M) is
Michael Mona’s son. Id, at 2:8-11, 16-19 and 7:24-26. |

6.  Neither Rhonda Mona nor M3 were parties in the California Action.?

2 The foreign judgment agsinst Michael Mona wes domesticated by Plaintiff in

Nevads on October 18, 2012, Id at 3:26-28,
8. After the foreign judgment was domesticated in Neveda, Far West did not make

any offort to add Rhonda to the judgrent.
9. After the foreign judgment wes domesticated, collection efforts relating thereto

began. ;
10, The initial judgment debtor examination proceedings were uneventfil *

? In Agril 2012, Far West obtained a judgment in Riverside, California against Michael, s one
of four named defendants. Hx. A-1, 1 App. 1-7. The underlying findings of fact and conclusions
of law recite that in a real estate development transaction, Far West provailed on ¢laims against
Micheel for: (1) intentional misrepresentation; (2) neglipent misrepresentation; (3) fuilure to
disclose; and (4) conspiracy to commit fraud, Ex. A-1, 1 App. 190-92, Although the Monn
Family Trust was not a named defendant in the California litigation, the presiding court made an
alter ego finding to extend the judgment against it. Bx. A-1, 1 App. 192. No mention is made in

4 the Californis order of Rhonda.
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11, After a Iull of nearly a year and a half, Far West then sought ex parte dates for
judgment debtor examinations for Mmhael in his individual and trastee capacities; and, Rhonda,
in her capacity a3 trustee of the Mona Family Trust. Ex. A~1, Bx. A-1, 1 App. 26-29.°

12.  Because Rhonda, in her capacity as trustee of the Mona Pamily Trost, was not
represented, Far West first sttempied to serve her personally and then later requested permission
to serve her by certified or registered mail, as permitted by NRS 14.090, because Far West’s
process server was unsble fo enter a guard-gated community, Ex, A-1, 1 App. 62-69,

13. By tho time that Far West eventually mailed the onder setting Rhonda’s judgment |
debtor examination, in her trustee capacity, there were only sbout two weeks uatil the
examination, Bx, A-1, 1 App. 75-90.

14, Rhonda, in her trustee capacity only, provided tegtimony at a judgment debtor
examination. Ex. A-1, 1 App, 163-72. _ '

15, During the deposition, Far West leared of some of Rhonda’s personal assets, Ex.
A-1, 1 App. 163-72.

sseis of Non-Party Rhonds

16, After Rhonda’s deposition, with ne notice to Rhonda, Far West filed an ex parte
motion on order shortening time to subject Rhonda’s personal assets to the judgment against '

Michael. Bx. A-1, 1 App. 127-43.

{continued)

* Soon after Far West domesticated its Jjudgment in Nevada, it began seeking Michael’s
fudgment debtor examination on an €k parte basis, withont confinning bis availability, In
regponse to Far West’s document requests, Michael produced approximately 30,000 documents |
in 20 boxes that were delivered to Far West’s counsel for physical examination, Fx. A-1,1 App.
18. Through the document production and scheduling of Michael’'s debtor examination, the
District Court minutes in December 2013 reflect that “the parties have conducted the judgment
debtor’s exam and everything is going along satisfactorily™ with a status check to be set in six
months. Ex, A-1, 1 App. 25. :

° Far West’s ex parte application also comained a variety of documents that it wanted produced.
Jd. The District Court’s order granted the requested relief in full and set the dates for the debtor |
examinations. Ex. A-1, 1 App. 70-74.

2 5 LS
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17.  Noticeably missing from Far West's ex parte motion was any atternpt to meet and
confer or why the motion was filed on an ex parte basis. Jd

18 Although the ex parte motion sought relicf against Rhonds personally, Far West
did not make any effort to personally serve her with the motion. Ex. A2, Bx. A-2, 2 App. 197-
98,

19.  Notwithstanding the lack of notice, the District Court froze several of Rhonda’s
personal bank accounis pending a show causc hearing. Ex. A~2, 2 App. 194-96. '

20.  Michael filed a written opposition and objected to the entire proceeding, Ex. A-2, |
2 App, 206-52.

21. A show cause hearing thereafier occurred,
ing gnd Void Ruling Emansting Therefrom

22.  In the show cause hearing, the District Court refused to allow an evidentiary
hearing.

23.  Inthe hearing before the District Court, Rhonda’s divorce attorneys appeared, but
the District Court would not allow them to argue. Ex, A-2, 2 App. 303,

24.  Michael’s counsel also pointed out that the orders for which Far West was
seeking enforcement were ambiguous because they named Rhonda in her capacity as trustes, but
Far West asked for relief against her personally. Ex. A-2, 2 App. 318. Michael’s counsel,
speaking in favor of Rhonda, stated:

So, Your Honor, fundamental due process issue here relates to
Rhonda Mona. She's not a party, And any characterization of this
Court of what her assets may or may not be subject to, must have
her—she must have the opportunity o be heard, she must have the
opportunity to present evidance.

Ex. A-2, 2 App. 320.
25.  Despite the Monas’ arguments on the procedural and substantive points against |

sanctions, the District Court ordered what amounted to case terminating sanctions against
Rhonds.

i 6-,-
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26.  More particularly, despite a post-marital property settlement agrecment between
the Monas defining Rhonda’s separate property, the District Court discarded the agresment and
copsidered it as a frandulent transfer during this same show cause hearing, Xd; Bx. A-2, 2 App.
238-50. The District Court’s sanctions ostensibly makes & binding defermination on fraudulent
transfer against the Monas according to NRS Chapter 112 (Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act) &
(“UFTA™), without any separatc complaint against Rhonda, no evidentiary hearing, and no
opportunity to conduct additional discovery,

27.  Not only was there no evidentiary heering, the various sanctions factors set forth
in Nevada case law were not applied. |

28.  Instead, the District Court’s order sanctions the Monas and considers Far West's
arguments of fraudulent transfer (which were never alleged in a complainf) as “established.” Fx
A-2,2 App. 357.

29.  The District Court also prohibited the Monas from claiming any exemptions from |
execution relating to Rhonds’s separate accounts snd any funds that are subject 1o the property

settlement agreement, Id.

30.  The Monas have sought writ relief from the Nevada Supreme Cowurt to vacate |
Judge Hardy’s sanctions order. Bxz. A-2, 2 App. 348-58.

31.  The Mona’s have asserted a variety of different reasons why the sanctions order
should be vacated. Attached hereto as Exs. A and B are copies of the Petition for Wit of '
Mandamus/Prohibition and the Reply in Support thereof. The Appendioes in support of the Writ
‘ Petition are attached as Exs. A1 and A2,

T}m Sepamwe mwm Agtion mzd P}sinﬁzﬂ"s

322 On Ju[y 23, 2015, Michael Mona and Rbonda Mona finalized their divorce and, in

é{ so daing, divided the couples’ property and debt, Ses, PItf's Amended Complaint at 7:24-8:10,
33, As part of the Diverce Decree, District Court Judge Linda Marquis found that
Michsel’s “judgment and the liability associated therewith is the sole and separate debt of the
ST
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Husband” and that “Wife and her separate property assets 2s established under the [Post-Marital
Property Settlement] Agresment” should not be subject to Husbend’s outstanding judgment.” |
See, Bx. C attsched hereto 2t 2:22-25,

34, Plaintiff untimely sttempted to intervene in the Divoree Action again making
various allegations of fraudulent transfer. Scc Pltf's Septernber 24, 2015 Motion to Intervens in |
case No. D-15-517425 at 3:17-25.°

35.  The Divorce Cowrt, by asd through Judge Linda Marguis, denied Plaintiffs
Motion to Intetvens to make s claims of fraudulent transfer because it was uitimely, See

November 25, 2015 Order in case No. D-15-517425.
36.  Aside from the discrect $3.4 million dollur issue, the Divorce Decree is final,

ﬁb
THIS COURT SHOULP GIVE NO EFFECT TO THE
INTERLOCUTORY SANCTIONS RULING IN THE DEPARTMENT 15
ACTIO] AUSE IT 18, AT A MINIMUM, VOID/VOIDARLE A8 TO REOND

Plaintif’s seference 1o & couniermotion for summary judgment, which compromises only |
a few pages of its December 18, 2015 filing, asks this Court to summarily adopt Tudge Hardy’s |
prior order and sua sponte reduce his order fo judgment as to Rhonds, Plaintiff®s countermotion |
is supported with no legal suthority. On this basis alone, Plaintif®s countermotion should be
denied.

Aside from the lack of any authority to support Plaintiffs Countermotion, as articulated it
the Petition for Writ of Mandanms filed with the Nevada Supreme Court in connection with the
Department 15 Action, Judge Hardy's sanctions order is invalid against, at 2 mindmun, Rhonds, |
No judgment was entered against Rhonds, nor were any frandulent transfer issues fully litigated,
The District Court did not even have personal jurisdiction over Rhonda, and the Couwt was

¢ Not caly did the Family Court deny PlaintifPs attempts o make untimely finndulent teansfer

claims within the Divorce Action, bot it also awerded Michesl Mona snd Rhonds Mona, |
scparately, the attorney fees and costs they each incurred in opposing PlaintifPs attempts. See
November 25, 2015, November 30, 2015, and December 2, 2015 Orders in case No, D-15- |

5174235,

-5 14 i
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unable to issus any sanctions against her, particularly with regard to her separate property. Far |
West violated Rhonda’s due process rights by trying to include her in post-judgment proceedings ]
without giving her notice and without filing a separate action. |

The entire Department 15 action s to Rhonda should not have taken place because Far
West did not confer with counsel before sesking ex parte relicf for the discovery dispute, the
District Court issned an “ultimate® sanction without allowing an evidentiary hearing, and the
District Court failed to consider the mandatory Young factors before issuing sanctioms under
NRCP 37. Finelly, Rhonda is not linble for the debts arising from her husband’s torts, especially
in Light of a separate property settlement agresment between the Monas,

A.  The Department 15 Ruling Has No Effect as to Rhonda .
Becanse No Judgmeué Kas !wer Bzexx Ememd Agsinst Rimnda,
Bee B4 hE: By

Without saying so, Plaintiff"s Countermotion raises, in an odd/morthodox way, some sort
of claim aud/or issue preclusion principles, Even if those doctrines are at issue, those concepis
are premised on the notion of there being & final adjudication on the merits and/or an oppurtunity
to be heard on the mertis. Here, there has never been a final judgment ag to Rhonda, nor has she
or her ex-husband Michsel ever had their matter heard on the merits. To the contrary, Rhonda
certainly has not been afforded her due process rights, yet Plaintiff now wishes to transform a
Department 15 sanctions order into & judgment in an independent proceeding that bypasses the
ongoing appeal. :

Assuming arguendo that claim and/or issue preclusion principles are at issne in Plaintiff’s
Countermotion, Five Star Capital Corp. v. Ruby, 194 P.3d 709 (Nev. 2008) is a leading case |
which sets forth the tests for the application of clsim and/or issne preclusion principles. For
claim preclusion to apply the following factors must be met: (1) the same parties or their privies
are involved in both cases, (2) a valid final judgment has been entered, and (3) the subsequent
action is based on the same claims or sny part of them that were or could have been brought in |
the first case. Id. at 714. As for the doctrine of issue preclusion, the following factors sre
necessary for application of such doctrine: (1) the issue decided in the prior litigation must be

w G
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identical to the issue presented in the current action; (2) the initial ruling must have been on the
merits and have become final; (3) the party against whom the Judgment is asserted must have

been a party or in privity with a party to the prior litigation; and {(4) the issue was actually and }

necessarily Ltigated.

Under no circumstances do these concepts apply to Rhonda in this particular case. It is
an undisputed fact that no judgment was ever entered against Rhonda in the California action,
After that judgment was domesticated in Nevads, Rhonda wes not a party to that ection.
Notwithstanding the fact that she has not besn & parly to the Califomnia action or the :
domestication action, PlahntifY seeks to bind Rhonda to an interlocutory sanctions order even
though she has never been served and/or been afforded 3 hearing. In reality, the fraudulent &
transfer issue was never actually litigated, aud Rhonda did not even get a chance to have a full
and fair opportunity to be heard.”

Moreover, as a matter of law, NRCP 37 did not authorize the sanctions awarded by the
District Court against Rhonds, as a non-party. The plain language of NRCP 37(b) distinguishes
sanctions availeble against & non-party “deponent” and a “parly.” The only sanctions available 5
against a non-party are that the non-party “may be considered a contempt of court.”® Yet, the
Distriet Court already denied Far West any contempt relief because the Monas® objected to Judge
Hardy, the presiding District Court Judge, from holding o contempt hearing, which the District
Court accepted. Ex. A-2, 2 App. 354-55, Thus, it way legally impossible for the District Court
to impose sanctions against Rhonds as a non-perty in her personal capacity, particularly since
she was never subject to any court order. In sum, claim and/or issue preclusion principles do not.
apply in this matter to support Plaintifs Countermotion. ;

7 Michael Mona did not even receive s full hearing.

® When interpreting the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, this Coust applies the same rales of 3
statutory construction. See Marquis & Aurbach v. Dist. Ct., 122 Nev. 1147, 1157, 146 P.3d

1130, 1137 (2006).

~10+
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B. The Department 15 Ruling Is Vold/Voldabls Because

Rhonda was not a party to the foreign judgment (Ex. A-1, 1 App. 1-7) originally obtained :
in California by Far West, nor was Rhonda ever made a party to the post-judgment proceedings
in the District Cowrt. As a fundamental right of due process, Far West was required o personally
serve Rhonds before acquiring jurisdiction over her, See, ez, Browning v. Dixon, 114 Nev, 213,
218, 954 P2d 741, 744 (1998) (explaining that service of process is required to satisfy due
process). The same holds true for discovery proceedings involving Bon-parties, which requires ":
personal service of a subpoens according to NRCP 45, See Consol, Generator-Nevada, Inc. v.
Comuming Engine Co., 114 Nev. 1304, 1312, 971 P.2d 1251, 1256 (1998) (“Nevada Rules of
Civil Procedure 45(c) requires that 4 subpoena be personally served”™). Due to the lack of :
personal service upon Rhonda, the Department 15 sanctions order should be deemed void. Ex.
A-2,2 App. 348-58.°

Adding insult to injury is the fact that Far West clearly understeod the requirement for
personal service of discovery to other non-parties. When Far West sought Rhonda’s judgment
debtor examination in her capacity as trustee, it went to great lengths were made to personaily
serve her in this representative capacity. Ex, A, Bx. A-1, 1 App. 62-90. According to Nevada
law, an indjvidual serving in a representative capacity as a trustee of a trust is not the same as an _
individual. See Salman v. Newell, 110 Nev. 1333, 1335, 885 P.2d 607, 608 (1994). Yet, when
Far West moved ex parte to freeze accounts belonging to Rhonda personally, Far West made no ;
effort to send her a subpoena or otherwise serve her personally,

® Far West’s failure to serve Rhonda in her personal capacity deprived the District Court of |
persongl jurisdiction over her. See Houston Bus. Jownal e v Uffice of Comptroller of
Currency, US. Dep't of Treaswry, 86 F.3d 1208, 1213 (D.C. Cir. 1996) (“In general, a state- |
court litigant seeking to compel a non-party to produce documents must use the state court's ;
subpoena power or, if the non-party is beyond the jurisdiction of such court, use whatever |
prosedures another state may provide,”). Nevada statutes similarly conclude that a witness has a
duty to appear and testify only when “duly served with a subpoena . . . .” NRS 50.165(1); see
alse NRE 50.255(6) {excusing an obligation to appear vmless the required fees are paid with the |
subpoens). :
11 -
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The fact that Far West acknowledged the requirement to personally serve Rhonda in her ;
representative capecity, yet completely failed to serve her in her personal capacity, operates s an
estoppel. See, e.g., NOLM, LLC v. County of Clark, 120 Nev. 736, 743, 100 P.3d 658, 663
(2004) (“Judicial estoppel applies to protect the judiciary’s integrity and prevents a party from |
tsking inconsistent positions by intentional wrongdoing or an attempt to obtain an unfair |
advantage.”) (citation and internal quotation marks omitted).

Separate

C. The Department 15 Ruling Is Void/Voldable Becanse
Action was He nived as g RBhouds Rafore Lishilis v Cay

As a matter of law, Far West was not pesmitted to add new patties, such as Rhonda, in
post-judgment proceedings, even if she had been personally served, In Callie v. Bowling, 123
Nev. 181, 186, 160 P.3d 878, 881 (2007), this Court explained that new parties cannot be sdded
to a judgment in post-judgment proceedings based upon an alter ege theory because the new
party is completely deprived of formal notice, discovery, fact finding, and an opportunity to be
heard before the claim is resolved. The Court’s holding in Callie specifically overruled the
former practice of simply adding new parties to a judgment in post-judgment proceedings by
amendment. See McCleary Cattle Co. v. Sewell, 73 Nev. 279, 317 P.2d 957 (1957).11

"* Plaintiff never asserted a separate sction against Rhonda like it was required to do, Now that it
obtained a favorable interlocutory sanctions order in an independent case, Plaintiff now wants to
institute the separate action that was originally required. It wonld be -completely perverse for
Plaintiff to now be able {0 obtain summary adjudication in this case based upon the defective |
prior proceeding,
" Contrary to Callie, the District Court relicd upon Randono v. Turk, 86 Nev. 123, 466 P.2d 218 .
(1970) for the notion that a judgment sgainst Michael could be levied against Rhonda's separate |,
property without due process. Since Randono violates Rhonda’s due process rights, it should be
overruled on the same basis thet Caflie overruled MeCleary Cattle. According to the District
Court’s interpretation of Randone, & community debt can be levied against a non-party spouse |
when the assets are also community property, without any priot notice, Bx. A-2, 2 App. 352.
Indeed, many of the authorities that Far West relied upon, even from other Jurisdictions, lead |
back to Randono.

However, the fundemental flaw in the reasoning of Randone is that its stated holding does not
find support within the enumerated statutes. For exsmple, NRS 123.220 defines commmunity
propexty and jts exceptions, but it does not allow an alleged community debt to be levied upona |
spouse that is not a party to the underlying lawsuit. Many other statutes listed in Rendono are i

w12 £
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In the California litigation, Far West took steps to add other entities to the judgment as
Michael’s alleged alter egos. Ex. A-1, 1 App. 189. Yet, Far West did not attempt 1o add Rhonda
to its judgment while the case was still in California. According to Callie, “[a] party who wishes i
to assert an alter ego claim must do so in an independent action against the alleged alter sgo with
the requisite notice, service of process, and other attributes of due process.” 4. at 881.

This case i even worse than the facts in Callie because at least the judgment creditor
there moved to amend the complaint to add the new party. In the instant case, Far West simply &
began attaching Rhonda’s separate bank accounts on an ex parte basis. To preserve Rhonda’s
due process, as explicitly held by the Callie court, this Court should vacate the District Court’s
sanctions order because Far West had’ to initiate & new action to pursue any claims against
Rhonda, personally, in the post-judgment proceedings. '

D.  TheDepartment 15 Ruling Is Void Beenuse the “Ultimute”
Sanctions Order Karther da’s Pue g8 Rio

Bverything
reduced to judgment, and which Plaintiff now wishes for this Court to rafify and reduce to

judgment) demonstrates that it should have never even taken place. As discussed herein, there

are multiple different due process violations of Rhonda’s duc process rights.
1 Plaintff F‘aileti to Meet and Confer and Improperly Sought Ex Purte Relief, :
Far West was required according to NRCP 37(2)(2)(A) to “include a certification that the
movant has in good faith conferred or attempted fo confer with the party not making the
disclosure in an effort to secure the disclosure without court action.” Similarly, EDCR 2.34(d)

{continued)
either inspposite or no longer exist. 14, 86 Nev. at 132, 466 P.2d at 223-24. When cage law is '
not supporied by the plain language of the governing statutes, the case law is no Tonger valid, |
See, e.g., Bgan v. Chambers, 299 P.3d 364, 365 (Nev. 2013) (“While we acknowledge the |
important role that siare decisis plays in Nevada's jusisprudence, we recognize that we
broadened the scope of NRS 41A.071, expanding the reach of the statute beyond its precise
words.”). Since the holding of Randono applied to this case does not accurately reflect the plain |
language of the referenced statutes, it should be overrvled. Further, Randone should be
overruled, as applied in this case, on the basis that ity principles deprived Rhondn of her due
process rights in a manner that was specifically prohibited by Collie,
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mandated that Far West was to provide an affiduvit of counsel that this meet and confer had
taken place or the “{dliscovery motion{] may not be filed .. . . Yet, Fxr West’s motion under
NRCP 37 wes made ex parte and without any ceriification. Ex, A-1, 1 App. 12743, No
explanation was given why Far West’s motion was made ex parte,
On what possible basis could Far West proceed in the District Court ex parte? It is hard |
to say because Far West did not identify any basis in its ex parte motion. Bx. A-1, 1 App. 127-
43. For example, NRCP 65(b) requires an affidavit explaining why it would be impractical to
give notice and to articulate the immediate and irreparable harm 1o sesk a temporary restraining |
order without notice. No such affidavit was prepared in the instant case. Thus, Far West’s act of
fuiling to confer with counsel and then secking ex parte relief to freeze Rhonda’s account was |
nothing more than an abuse of the court process that violated Rhonda’s due process rights.
2. The Lack of an Evidentiary Hearing Violated Rhonda’s Due Process Rights,
In addition to the ex parte defect, the District Court impesed “witimate” sanctions upon _
the Monas without affording them au evidentiary hearing. Despite counsel’s protests for an |
evidentiary hearing, the District Court imposed “ultimate” sanctions without sllowing an |
evidentiary hearing. Ex. A-2, 2 App. 206, 326. Instead, the District Court ordered the separate |
property in Rhonda’s bank accounts to be released to satisfy Far West’s judgment against
Micheel, Ix, A-2, 2 App. 356. According to well established Nevads law, this was reversible
error. See, e.g., Nevada Power Co. v. Fluor Hiinois, 108 Nev. 638, 837 P.2d 1354 (1992)."
Moreover, the nced for an evidentiary hearing in a frandulent transfer matter carries
additional importance. Other courts construing the right to a trial or hearing involving UFTA
claims have also allowed a hearing or a trial. See, ez, Workforce Solutions v. Urban Servs. of
Am., Inc., 977 N.R.2d 267, 275 (Hl. App. 2012) (allowing an evidentiary hearing on a creditor’s

12 ya Fluor Hiinois, this Court explained that when a district cowrt’s determination that parties

failed to obey an order involved factual questions as to the meaning of the order, an evidentiory |
hearing was required. 108 Nev, at 644, 837 P.2d ot 1359. When a district court makes a lisbility

determination as a discovery sanction, as in the instant case (Ex, A-2, 2 App. 357), mn
evidentiary hearing is also mandatory. See Foster v. Dingwall, 227 P.3d 1042, 1047 (Nev.
2010},

534 «
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claim under UFTA). And, the transfer between spouses does not always violate UFTA. Seg, .
e.g., Estes v. Titus, 751 N'W.2d 493, 497 (Mich. 2008) (“A UFTA. action will not reach such
property unless both spouses are debtors on the claim that is the subject of the action.”), The
District Cowrt’s violation of the Monas’ due process rights provides sn additional basis o find
the order void/voidable,

3. The Young/Ribeire Factors Were Net Even Considered,

Although the District Court’s sanctions award is premised on NRCP 37, it did not even
consider the factors outlined in Young v. Johuny Ribeiro Bldy., Inc., 106 Nev. 88, 787 P.2d 777
(1990). As reported in Fluor Hlinois and in numerous avthorities, the weighing of the Young
factors is mandatory before an award of sanctions can be made under NRCP 37. Id. Yet, neither
Far West's ex parte motion, the District Court’s order, nor the hearing transcript even mention
Young. Thus, the District Court’s failure to hold an evidentiary hearing or even consider the
mandatory Young factors wes an abuse of discretion that warrants this Court vacating the entire

sanctions order,

F. The Department 15 Ruling Is Void/Voidable Because
The Sanctim;a (}rder Imnm the Law Hs!ding that Rhonds is

1. The Moena’s Post-Marltal Property Settlement Agreement Is 2 Stated
Hxception to NRS 123.220 and Protcets Rhonda’s Separate Property frem
Execution In Connection With the Judgment Entered Against Michael,

Ayt fobe Rl tnmt retposii i fomutional orset v et enshisboing, |
Michael. According to Jewett v. Patt, 95 Nev. 246, 247-48, 591 P.2d 1151, 1152 {1979),
Rhonda’s marriage to Michael does not make her automatically Hable for the foreign judgment
against bim, especially since the judgment was based upon frand. Ex. A-1, 1 App. 17393,

Other courts citing Jeweit have held that “a spouse is not personally liable for his or her spouse’s

intentional torts committed during marriage merely by virtue of being married.” Hemry v.
Rizzolo, 2012 WL 1376967, at #2 (D. Nev. 2012).
Other courts have reached similar results. See Norwest Fin. v. Lawver, 109 Nev. 242,

246, 849 P.2d 324, 326 (1993) (“The chavacter of [the] property acquired upon credit during
=15+
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marriage is determined acoording to the intent of the lender to rely upon the separate property of
the purchaser or upon a community asset.”): In re Miller, 517 B.R. 145, 147 (I, Ariz. 2014)
(applying Arizons law and concluding that “community property cannot be reached to setisfy a |
guarantee of a debt of another unless both spouses sign.”™y;, Cwrda-Derickson v, Derickson, 668
N.W.2d 736, 743 (Wis. App. 2003) (“[D]ebts created by the torts of only one spouse are an
exception from those debts incurred in the interest of the family.™). In fact, & bmluujm:y court
construing Nevada law has stated that this very issue is wnresolved in Nevada law: “The question |
of whether commumity property in Nevada is liahle for the judgment debt created by the fort of a
spouse is one for a Nevada court not this court.” In re Bernardelli, 12 BR. 123, 123 (Bankr, D,
Nev. 1981). |

Moreover, NRS 123230 specifically limits the sbility of a spouse to cncumber
community property, sbsent & power of atforney, except in certain circuinstances up to half of the
conrunity property. Thus, even absent the property settlement agrsement, Far West would not
have been entitled to recover Rhonda’s separate property of her half of the community property.
Accordingly, it was error for the District Court to conclude that the fraud judgment against
Michael extended to Rhonda’s separate property. :

2. Nevada Law Specifically Allows Written Agreements For Sepazate
Property As An Exception To The Definition Of Community Property.

While the District Court claimed to have construed NES 123.220 defining community
property, it avoided the stated exception in subsection 1 of the statute for “faln agresment in
writing between the spouses.” Far West itself proseated & copy of the Monas® post-marital
property settlement agreement, defining Rhonda’s separate property. Fx, A-1, 1 App. 144-56.
NRS 123.070 also allows married parties to enter into contracts with each other ot other persons, |
the same as if they were not maried. Further, NRS 123.190(1) provides, “When the husband has :
given written authority to the wife to appropriate to her own nse her earnings, the same, with the
issues and profits thereof, is deemed & gift frors him to her, and is, with such issues and profits,
her separate property.” Important o note is that the Divorce Court found the Post-Marital

w16
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Agreement to be valid and enforceable with knowledge of the ongoing separate proceedings
befors Judge Hardy. Sge, Bx. D attached hersto.

Nevada law also clearly allows mared persons fo tremsmute separate property to
community property and vice versa. See Verheyden v. Verheyden, 104 Nev. 342, 757 P.2d 1328
(1988); see also Sprenger v. Sprenger, 110 Nev, 855, 858, 878 P.2d 284, 286 (1994) (stating that
the transmutation of separate property into community property must be shown by clear and :
convincing evidence). Thus, the District Court’s summary conclpsion that Rhonda’s separate |
property was subject to @ comnunity debt simply because the d&:t was scquired during the
n;m-xia,gs was a misstatement of Nevada law.

3. At & minimum, there were factual issnes regording the pature of Rhonda’s
separate bank accounts because the District Cowrt failed to trace the funds.

The District Court erroneously coucluded that the entire property settlement agrecment
was a fraudulent transfer without an evidentiary hearing and without hearing testimony from the
Monas. Since there were factual issues regarding the property settlement agreement, the District
Court was required to hold an evidentiary hearing and trace the source of the assets before
summarily concluding that thé Monas committed a fraudulent transfer. See Hardy v. US,, 918
F.8upp. 312, 317 (D. Nev. 1996) (“The question whether the property belongs solely to one
spouse or to the marital community depends on the scurce of the funds with which it was
acquired.”); Inn re Wilson's Estate, 56 Nev. 353, 53 P.2d 339, 343 (1936) (“The community estate
may be vested in either spouse, and the frue character of the property is to be determined by the
neture-of the transaction under which it is acquired without reference to who retains the file.”) |’

{citations omifted).

G,  The Department 15 Rullag Is Veolil/Vaidable Because
Far West Did Not Even Attempt To Lomply With Any
g MBS Chay ple

An additional defect exists in the Department 15 nuling; namely, the District Court relied,
in part, upon NRS 21.330 to sanction Rhonda a5 a non-party. Ye, this statute expressly requires
a judgment creditor, such as Far West, to “institute an action” against a non-party, such as

17«
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Rhonda, instead of aitaching her separate property and entering sanctions. Since Far West did
not institute a separate action against Rhonda, the Court should, alternatively, refuse to enter
summary jodgment against Rhonda on this basis.

Even worse, the District Court did more than require Rhonda to hold her separate

W N

property while a separate action was being instituted by Far West against her, In this case, the
District Court bypassed the entire process outlined by NRS 21.330 and instead ordered the funds ¢
in her account to be applied toward Far West's judgment. Ex, A-2, 2 App, 356. The language in
NRS 21.320 also does not support Far West’s position because it qualifies a court's ghility to

B0 3 B

release property with the phrase “not exempt fiom execution,”

10 Yet, Far West had not issued any writs of execution against Rhonda for the funds in her
11 ! bank accounts. And, Rhonda did not have the opportunity to clzim exempfions. Thus, the
12 | District Court abused its discretion by summarily ordering the disposs] of Rhondas separate
13. property when Far West did not institute a separate action or commence execution proceedingg,
14 On this alternative basis, the District Court’s ruling is void.

16 1

16
AT A MINIMOM, THIS CASE SEOULD BE ‘STA‘,&’EH PENDING TB.E

17 OUTCOME OF THE ONGOING NEVADA St : y
i8 At a minimum, this court should wait for the completion of the appeal in the Depmncnt

19 | 15 action before proceeding further. Bven if some form of collateral estoppel and/or claim g
20 preclusions principles might apply (which they do not), there is still & public policy exception
' that prevents the spplication of such doctrine. See, e.g., Willerton v. Bassham, 889 P.2d 823

(Nev 1895) (Nevada Supreme Court articulated an exception fo the doctrine of res judicats,
choosing not to enforce res judicata when in would confravene an important public policy).
Here, there are several important public policies at issue (e.g., fundamental due process, divorce
statutes, community property principles, collection laws and exemptions therein, the effoct to.he
given to Judge Marquis® finding that the marital seftlement agreement was §w¢ eto.). Inlight |

27 ¢ of all of the issues previously briefed herein, this is a classic case where the Department 15
28

« 18-
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ruling should not be summarily honored by this Court given the prejudice that is occurring and |
given the ongoing appeal. Accordingly, PlaintifPs Comuntermotion should be denied,

CONCEESION

For all of the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff’s Countermotion for summary judgrment should :

be denied.
Dated this 19® day of Jarruary, 2016,
SANTORO WHITMIRE

o/ James E Whitmire
JAMES E. WHITMIRE, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 6533

Johitmi foronevads.com
10100 W, leston Blvd,, Suite 250
Las Vegas, Nevada 89135
Telephone:  702-948-8771
Facsimile:  702.848-8773

Attorneys for Defendanis Bhonda
Helene Mone and Michael Mong I
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CERTINICATE OF SERVICE

IHEREBY CERTIFY that, on the 19th day of Jamuary, 2016 and parsuant to NEFCR 0, ©
NRCP 5(®) and EDCR 7.26, 1 served DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION TO |

COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMBMARY JUDGMENT, on all parties recedving servics by
electronic transmission through the Wiznet gysten in this action to;

F. Thomag Rdwards, Feq,
Andrea M. Gandara, Fsg,

HOLLY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
agandara@inevadafirm.com
tedwards@nevadafine.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff
28/ Asmeen Olila-Stolloy
An employee of SANTORO WHITMIRE
~ 20 .
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F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9549

E-mail; tedwards@nevadafirm.com
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 12580

E-mail: agandara@nevadafirm.com
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH

FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone:  702/791-0308
Facsimile: 702/791-1912

Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Industries

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California
corporation, Case No.: A-15-724490-C
Plaintiff, i Dept. No.: XXXII
V.

_ - Date of Hearing: February 2, 2016
MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an individual; - Time of Hearing:  9:00 a.m.
RHONDA HELENE MONA, an individual; .

MICHAEL MONA IIi, an individual;
LUNDENE ENTERPRISES, LLC, a Nevada :
limited lability corporation, DOES 1through 10
and ROE CORPORATIONS 1 through 10,
inclusive,

Defendants.

ORPER REGARDING PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRITS®

""""""""" COUNTERMOUTION FOR SUMMARY 1 UDGMENT

The Court held a hearing regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries” Countermotion for
Summary Judgment (the “Countermotion™) on February 2, 2016, at 9:00 am. F. Thomas

Edwards, Esq. and Andrea M. Gandara, Esq., of the law firm Holley Driggs Walch Fine Wray
Puzey & Thompson, appeared on behalf of Plaintiff Far West Industries (“Far West”). Terry Al
Coffing, Esq., of the law firm Marquis Aurbach Coffing, appeared on behalf of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr. James E. Whnire, Esq., of the law firm Santoro Whitmire, appeared on
behalf of Defendants Rhonda Helene Mona, Michael Mona III, and Lundene Enterprises, LLC.

1
10594-01/1636456
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Having reviewed the papers and pleadings on file herein, hearing the argument of counsel
and good cause appearing; |

IT I8 HEREBY ORDEREDR that the Countermotion is DENIED WITHOUT |
PREJUDICE; |

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order in no way prevents Far West from seeking
the judgment requested in the Countermotion from the Honorable Judge Joe Hardy in Far West
Industries v. Rio Vista Nevada, LLC, et. al., Case No. A-12-670352-F.!

IT IS SO ORDERED.

Dated this __ day of February, 2016,

PISTRICT COURT JUDGE

Submitted by: Approved as to form by:

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH, SANTORO WHITMIRE
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ. IJ\IAMEdS 1133. WHIN 'glg/%{E ESQ.
. 9549 evada Bar No.
MﬁMMSEA;DARA ESQ. 10100 West Charleston Boulevard, Suite 250
Nevada Bar No. 12580 Las Vegas, Nevada 89135
400 South Fourth Street, Third Fl
Las Vzgas, 131\1/11 891 ()Te hird Floor Attorney for Defendants Rhonda Helene Mona,

Michael Mona II, and Lundene Enterprises, '

Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Industries LLC

Approved as to form by:

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

TERRY A. COFFING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4949

TYE S. HANSEEN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 10365

10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

'In making this observation, the Court is expressing no opinion as to Far West’s position.
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DEAP 26.1 DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

The undersigned counsel of record certifies that the following are persons
and entities as described in NRAP 26.1(a), and must be disclosed. These
representations are made in order that the Justices of this Court may evaluate
possible disqualification or recusal.

1. Petitioner Rhonda Helene Mona (“Rhonda”) is an individual.

2. Petitioner Michael J. Mona, Jr. (“Michael”) is an individual,

3. Rhbonda has been represented in divorce proceedings in the District
Court by Kainen Law Group, LLC, and she is represented in this Court by
Lemons, Grundy & Eisenberg.

4. Michael has been represented in the District Court by Marquis
Aurbach Coffing and John W. Muije & Associates, and he is represented in this
Court by Marquis Aurbach Coffing.

DATED: July 17, 2015

/s/ Robert L. Eisenberg
ROBERT L. EISENBERG
Nevada Bar No. 0950
Lemons, Grundy & Eisenberg
6005 Plumas Street, #300

Reno, Nevada 89519
775-786-6868

Email: rie@lge.net

_/s/ Micgh S. Echols
TERRY A, COFFING
Nevada Bar No. 4949
MICAH S. ECHOLS
Nevada Bar No. 8437
TYE S. HANSEEN
Nevada Bar No. 10365
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
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10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
702-382-0711

Email: tcoffing@maclaw.com
mechols@maclaw,.com
thanseen@maclaw.com

ROUTING STATEMENT

According to NRAP 17(a)(1), this case is presumptively retained by the
Supreme Court because it is a proceeding invoking the Supreme Court’s
original jurisdiction. The issues presented in this writ petition do not fall into
the exception outlined in NRAP 17(b)(8) because the issues do not involve a
challenge to pretrial discovery orders or orders resolving motions in limine,

DATED: July 17, 2015

/s/ Robert L. Eisenber
ROBERT L. EISENBERG
Nevada Bar No. 0950
Lemons, Grundy & Eisenberg
6005 Plumas Street, #300
Reno, Nevada 89519
775-786-6868

Email: rle@lge.net

/s/ Micah S, Echols
TERRY A. COFFING
Nevada Bar No. 4949
MICAH S. ECHOLS
Nevada Bar No. 8437
TYE S. HANSEEN
Nevada Bar No. 10365
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
702-382-0711

Email: teoffing@maclaw.com

mechols@maclaw.com

thanseen@maclaw.com
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Petitioners, Rhonda Helene Mona (“Rhonda”) and Michael J. Mona, Jr.
(*Mike”) (collectively “the Monas™), hereby petition this Court for a writ of
mandamus or prohibition to vacate the District Court’s July 15, 2015 post-
judgment sanctions order that subjects Rhonda’s separate bank accounts to
execution and orders the release of all funds in the accounts if this Court does
not intervene by July 20, 2015, which is the last day of the temporary stay
entered by the District Court. 2 Petitioners’ Appendix (“App.”) 348-58.

£
INTRODUCTION

This writ petition presents important issues in the context of execution
proceedings following the domestication of a foreign judgment in Nevada.
Real party in interest, Far West Industries (“Far West”) obtained a judgment in
California against Mike and other defendants, not including Rhonda, for
allegations relating to fraud. 1 App. 173-93. After the foreign judgment was
domesticated in Nevada, Far West did not make any effort to “add” Rhonda to
the judgment. Rhonda was deposed in her capacity as the trustee of the Mona.
Family Trust, wherein Far West leamed of some of Rhonda’s personal assets.
1 App. 163-72. After this deposition, Far West filed an ex parte motion on
order shortening time to subject Rhonda’s personal assets to the judgment
against Mike. 1 App. 127-43. Without notice, the District Court froze several
of Rhonda’s personal bank accounts pending a show cause hearing. 2 App.
194-96.

Page 1 of 30
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In the show cause hearing, the District Court refused to allow an
evidentiary hearing. Yet, the District Court’s order sanctions the Monas and
considers Far West’s arguments of fraudulent transfer (which were never
alleged in a complaint) as “established.” 2 App. 357. The District Court’s
order also deems as “established” Far West’s ability to execute upon Rhonda’s
personal bank accounts, even though Far West has not issued execution
documents against Rhonda or given her the chance to claim exemptions. Id.
Despite a post-marital property settlement agreement between the Monas
defining Rhonda’s separate property, the District Court simply discarded the
agreement and considered it as a fraudulent transfer during this same show
cause hearing. /d.; 2 App. 238-50. The Monas now seek relief from this Court
to vacate the District Court’s sanctions order. 2 App. 348-58. The show cause
hearing was held on Thursday, July 9, 2015. 2 App. 302-47. The written order
from the show cause hearing was filed on Wednesday, July 15, 2015 (2 App.
348-58) and allows a temporary stay of the order through Monday, July 20,
2015, 2 App. 358.

The Monas have also concurrently filed an emergency motion to stay the
entire District Court proceedings because Far West is continuing to take
measures to attach Rhonda’s separate property and seek relief that is beyond the

District Court’s jurisdiction.

Page 2 of 30
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k11
ISSULS PRESENTED AND OVERVIEW OF RELIEF REQUESTED

(1) Lack of personal jurisdiction over Rhonda. Rhonda was not a
party to the foreign judgment (1 App. 1-7) originally obtained in California by
Far West, nor was Rhonda ever made a party to the post-judgment proceedings
in the District Court. As a fundamental right of due process, Far West was
required to personally serve Rhonda before acquiring jurisdiction over her, See,
e.g., Browning v. Dixon, 114 Nev. 213, 218, 954 P.2d 741, 744 (1998)
(explaining that service of process is required to satisfy due process). The same
holds true for discovery proceedings. involving non-parties, which requires
personal service of a subpoena according to NRCP 45. See Consol, Generator-
Nevada, Inc. v. Cummins Engine Co., 114 Nev, 1304, 1312, 971 P.2d 1251,
1256 (1998) (“Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure 45(c) requires that a subpoena
be personally served.”). Due to the lack of personal service upon Rhonda, this
Court should vacate the District Court’s sanctions order. 2 App. 348-58.

{2} A separate action was needed agsinst Rhonda. As a matter of
law, Far West was not permitted to add new parties, such as Rhonda, in post-
judgment proceedings, even if she had been personally served. In Callie v,
Bowling, 123 Nev. 181, 186, 160 P.3d 878, 881 (2007), this Court explained
that new parties cannot be added to a judgment in post-judgment proceedings
based upon an alter ego theory because the new party is completely deprived of
formal notice, discovery, fact finding, and an opportunity to be heard before the
claim is resolved. The Court’s holding in Callie specifically overruled the
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former practice of simply adding new parties to a judgment in post-judgment
proceedings by amendment. See McCleary Catile Co. v. Sewell, 73 Nev. 279,
317 P.2d 957 (1957). Contrary to Callie, the District Court relied upon
Randono v. Turk, 86 Nev. 123, 466 P.2d 218 (1970) for the notion that a
judgment against Mike could be levied against Rhonda’s separate property
without due process. Since Randono violates Rhonda’s due process rights, it
should be overruled on the same basis that Callie overruled McCleary Cattle.
Further, the District Court relied, in part, upon NRS 21.330 to sanction Rhonda
as a non-party. Yet, this statute expressly requires a judgment creditor, such as
Far West, to “institute an action” against a non-party, such as Rhonda, instead
of attaching her separate property and entering sanctions. Since Far West did
not institute a separate action against Rhonda, the Court should, alternatively,
vacate the District Court’s sanctions award on this basis,

(3) Further violations of the Monas’ procedural due Process
rights. Everything about the District Court sanctions proceeding demonstrates
that it should have never even taken place. Far West was required according to
NRCP 37(a}2)(A) to “include a certification that the movant has in good faith
conferred or attempted to confer with the party not making the disclosure in an
effort to secure the disclosure without court action.” Similarly, EDCR 2.34(d)
mandated that Far‘West was to provide an affidavit of counsel that this meet
and confer had taken place or the “[d]iscovery motion|] may not be filed . . . .»

Yet, Far West’s motion under NRCP 37 was made ex parte and without any
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certification. 1 App. 127-43. No explanation was given why Far West’s
motion was made ex parte.

Although the District Court imposed “ultimate” sanctions upon the
Monas, the District Court refused to hold an evidentiary hearing. According to
well established Nevada law, this was reversible error. See, e.g., Nevada Power
Co. v. Fluor Illinois, 108 Nev. 638, 837 P.2d 1354 (1992). Although the
District Court’s sanctions award is premised on NRCP 37, it did not even
consider the factors outlined in Young v. Johnny Ribeiro Bldg.,, Inc., 106 Nev.
88, 787 P.2d 777 (1990), And, Far West did not even attempt to comply with
any of the execution protocols in NRS Chapter 21 and Chapter 31.

The District Court’s sanctions order also makes a binding determination
on fraudulent transfer against the Monas according to NRS Chapter 112
(Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act) (“UFTA”), again without any separate
complaint against the Monas, no evidentiary hearing, and no opportunity to
~conduct additional discovery. The District Court’s flagrant violation of the
Monas’ due process rights provides a third basis to vacate the sanctions order.

(4) The post-marital property settlement agreement protects
Rhonda’s separate property. According to Jewett v. Patt, 95 Nev. 246, 247-
48, 591 P.2d 1151, 1152 (1979), Rhonda’s marriage to Mike does not make her
automatically liable for the foreign judgment against him, especially siﬁce the
judgment was based upon fraud. 1 App. 173-93. Other courts citing Jewett

have held that “a spouse is not personally liable for his or her spouse’s
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intentional torts committed during marriage merely by virtue of being married.”
Henry v. Rizzolo, 2012 WL 1376967, at *2 (D. Nev. 2012).

While the District Court claimed to have construed NRS 123.220
defining community property, it avoided the stated exception in subsection 1 of
the statute for “[a]n agreement in writing between the spouses.” Far West itself
presented a copy of the Monas’ post-marital property settlement agreement,
defining Rhonda’s separate property. 1 App. 144-56. Yet, the District Court
concluded that the entire agreement was a fraudulent transfer without an
evidentiary hearing and without hearing testimony from the Monas. Since there

were factual issues regarding the propetty agreement, the District Court was

required to hold an evidentiary hearing and trace the source of the assets before

summarily concluding that the Monas committed a fraudulent transfer. See
Hardy v. U.S., 918 F.Supp. 312, 317 (D. Nev. 1996) (“The question whether the
bproperty belongs solely to one spouse or to the marital community depends on
the source of the funds with which it was acquired.”). The District Court’s
summary treétment of this issue similarly warrants the requested extraordinary
relief of vacating the District Court’s sanctions order.
j11
STANDARDS OF REVIEW

A. Standards for reviewing questions of law.

This Court reviews questions of law de novo. See Birth Mother v.
Adoptive Parents, 118 Nev. 972, 974, 59 P.3d 1233, 1235 {2002). Statutory

interpretation is a question of law which this Court reviews de novo. See id.
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Although this Court generally reviews petitions for extraordinary relief with an
abuse of discretion standard, this Court will still apply a de novo standard of
review to questions of law, such as statutory interpretation, in writ petition
proceedings. See Int’l Game Tech., Inc. v. Dist, Ct., 124 Nev. 193, 198, 179
P.3d 556, 559 (2008) (citation omitted).

B.  Standards for reviewing discovery sanctions orders.

This Court reviews a sanctions order for an abuse of discretion. See
Clark Cnty. Sch. Dist. v. Richardson Constr., Inc., 123 Nev. 382, 390, 168 P.3d
87, 93 (2007) (citation omitted). However, this Court applies a somewhat
heightened standard of review when the sanction is case concluding or an
ultimate sanction. Foster v. Dingwall, 227 P.3d 1042, 1048 (Nev. 2010)

(citation omitted).

C.  Standards for reviewing petitions for writs of mandamus and
prohibition.

A writ of mandamus is available to compel the performance of an act
which the law requires as a duty resulting from an office, trust or station, or to
control a manifest abuse of discretion. See Beazer Homes, Nev., Inc. v. Dist.
C., 120 Nev. 575, 579, 97 P.3d 1132, 1134-35 (2004); see also NRS 34.160.
“An abuse of discretion occurs if the district court’s decision is arbitrary and
capricious or if it exceeds the bounds of law or reason.” Crawford v. State, 121
Nev. 744, 748, 121 P.3d 582, 585 (2005).

A writ of prohibition is the appropriate remedy for a lower court’s
improper exercise of jurisdiction. See NRS 34.320; see also Smith v. Dist. Ci,
107 Nev. 674, 818 P.2d 849 (1991). A writ of prohibition may issue to atrest
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the proceedings of a district court exercising its judicial functions, when such
proceedings are in excess of the jurisdiction of the district court. See id.
«Jurisdictional rules go to the very power” of a court’s ability to act. Pengilly v.
Rancho Santa Fe Homeowners Ass’n, 116 Nev., 646, 649, 5 P.3d 569, 571
(2000) (citations omitted).

Although an individual can appeal a final judgment, where there is no
legal remedy, extraordinary relief is justified. See Zhang v. Dist. Ci., 120 Nev.
1037, 1039, 103 P.3d 20, 22 (2004), abrogated on other grounds by Buzz Stew,
. LLCv. City of N. Las Vegas, 124 Nev. 224, 181 P.3d. 670 (2008). Petitions for
extraordinary writs are addressed to the sound discretion of the Court and may
only issue where there is no “plain, speedy, and adequate remedy” at law. See
NRS 34.330; see also State ex rel. Dep't of Transp. v. Thompson, 99 Nev. 358,
360, 662 P.2d 1338, 1339 (1 983). However, “cach case must be individually
examined, and where circumstances reveal urgency or strong necessity,
extraordinary relief may be granted.” See Jeep Corp. v. Dist. Ct., 98 Nev. 440,
443, 652 P.2d 1183, 1185 (1982) (citing Shelton v. Dist. Ct., 64 Nev. 487, 185
P.2d 320 (1947)).

This Court will exercise its discretion to consider writ petitions, despite
the existence of an otherwise adequate legal remedy, when an important issue
of law needs clarification, and this Coutt’s review would serve considerations
of public policy, sound judicial economy, and administration. See Dayside Inc.

v. Dist. Ct., 119 Nev. 404, 407, 75 P.3d 384, 386 (2003), overruled on other
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grounds by Countrywide Home Loans, Inc. v. Thitchener, 124 Nev. 725, 192
P.3d 243 (2008).

In this case, a writ petition is the proper vehicle for Rhonda to seek
extraordinary relief from this Court because she was not a party to the District
Court litigation and cannot appeal or exercise any other remedy available at
law. See Emerson v. Dist. Ct., 263 P.3d 224, 227 (Nev. 2011). Although Mike
is a party to the District Court litigation, the sanctions order is not appealable.
2 App. 348-58. Cf Peck v. Crouser, 295 P.3d 586, 587-88 (Nev. 2013)
(explaining test for orders that grow out of the final judgment to determine
appealability). Mike also has a beneficial interest in maintaining Rhonda’s
separate property as separate, as outlined in the Monas’ post-marital property
settlement agreement, particularly because the Monas are currently going
through a divorce. See Secretary of State v. Nevada State Legisiature, 120 Nev.
456, 461, 93 P.3d 746, 749 (2004) (expressing that parties have standing when
they& have a “legally recognized interest” or “beneficial interest” in the
outcome).

v

RELEVANT FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

A.  The foreign judgment against Mike.

In April 2012, Far West obtained a judgment in Riverside, California
against Mike, as one of four named defendants. 1 App. 1-7. The underlying
findings of fact and conclusions of law recite that in a real estate development

transaction, Far West prevailed on claims against Mike for: (1) intentional
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misrepresentation; (2) negligent misrepresentation; (3) failure to disclose; and
(4) conspiracy to commit fraud. 1 App. 190-92. Although the Mona Family
Trust was not a named defendant in the California litigation, the presiding court
made an alter ego ﬁnding to extend the judgment against it. 1 App. 192. No
mention is made in the California order of Rhonda.

B.  Mike’s initial judgment debtor examination and production of
documents.

Soon after Far West domesticated its judgment in Nevada, it began
seeking Mike’s judgment debtor examination on an ex parte basis, without

confirming his availability. In response to Far West’s document requests, Mike

produced approximately 30,000 documents in 20 boxes that were delivered to .

Far West’s counsel for physical examination. 1 App. 18. Through the
document production and scheduling of Mike’s debtor examination, the District
Court minutes in December 2013 reflect that “the parties have conducted the
Jjudgment debtor’s exam and everything is going along satisfactorily” with a
status check to be set in six months. 1 App. 25. |

C.  Ayear and a half later, Far West again seeks ex parie judgment
debtor examinations.

After a lull of nearly a year and a half, Far West then sought ex parte
dates for judgment debtor examinations for Mike in his individual and trustee
capacities and Rhonda in her capacity as trustee of the Mona Family Trust. 1
App. 26-29. Far West’s ex parte application also contained a variety of
documents that it wanted produced. /4. The District Court’s order granted the

requested relief in full and set the dates for the debtor examinations. 1 App. 70-
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74. Notably, because Rhonda, in her capacity as trustee of the Mona Family
Trust, was not represented, Far West first attempted to serve her personally and
then later requested permission to serve her by certified or registered mail, as
permitted by NRS 14.090, because Far West’s process S€rver was unable to
enter the guard gated community. 1 App. 62-69. By the time that Far West
eventually mailed the order setting Rhonda’s judgment debtor examination, in
her trustee capacity, there were only about two weeks until the examination.
1 App. 75-90. Rhonda, in her trustee capacity, provided testimony at a
judgment debtor examination. 1 App. 163-72.

D. Mike’s successful protective order against Far West.

Since Far West had a pattern of setting dates on an ex parte basis, Mike
moved the District Court for a protective order for his second judgment debtor
examination and given the fact that he already had his examination taken.
1 App. 91-99. Far West chose not to accommodate Mike’s availability, which
was documented in the declaration of Mike’s counsel. 1 App. 93-94. Afier
court intervention and a hearing, Far West had no choice but to reschedule
Mike’s second judgment debtor examination and the deadline for a production
of additional documents. 1 App. 122-26. '

.  Far West’s ex parte motion to show cause for sanctions and the
District Court hearing.

Without contacting Mike’s counsel or attempting to contact Rhonda, Far

West filed an ex partc motion for an order to show cause why the accounts of
Rhonda Mona should not be subject to execution and why the court should not
find the Monas in contempt. 1 App. 127-43. Noticeably missing from Far
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West’s ex parte motion is any attempt to meet and confer or why the motion
was filed on an ex parte basis. 7d. Although the ex parte motion sought relief
against Rhonda personally, Far West did not make any effort to personally
serve her with the motion. 2 App. 197-99. In addition to itemizing the issues at
controversy in the upcoming hearing, the District Court’s order granting the ex
parte motion also placed a freeze on Rhonda’s separate property. 2 App. 194-
96. Mike filed a written opposition and objected to the entire proceeding.
2 App. 206-52.

In the hearing before the District Court, Rhonda’s divorce attorneys
appeared, but the District Court would not allow them to argue. 2 App. 303.
Although the District Court offered to continue the hearing, it was
inconsequential since Rhonda’s bank accounts had already been frozen. 2 App.
317. Mike’s counsel also pointed out that the orders for which Far West was
secking enforcement were ambiguous because they named Rhonda in her
capacity as trustee, but Far West asked for relief against her personally. 2 App.
318. Mike’s counsel, speaking in favor of Rhonda, stated:

So, Your Honor, fundamental due process issue here relates to

Rhonda Mona. She’s not a party. And any characterization of this

Court of what her assets may or may not be subject to, must have

her—she must have the opportunity to be heard, she must have the

opportunity to present evidence.
2 App. 320. Despite the Monas’ arguments on the procedural and substantive
points against sanctions, the District Court ordered the following (2 App. 348-

58):
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(1) that Mike violated previous court orders for not producing the
post-marital property settlement agreement, even though it was attached to Far
West’s ex parte motion. 1 App. 144-56; 2 App. 351.

(2) that Mike “lied” in his deposition about what he had done with
$3,406,601.10 that was the subject of the property agreement, even though the
District Court would not allow Mike to clarify his statements made in a
previous judgment debtor examination. 2 App. 351.

(3) that all the funds that are the subject of the Monas® property
settlement agreement are community property, even though the District Court
did not conduct a full tracing of the funds or hold an evidentiary hearing.
2 App. 352.

(4) the order also inaccurately reflects that a judgment debtor
examination had been set for Rhonda, in her personal capacity, and that she
violated court orders by failing to produce documents. 2 App. 352-53.

(5) that the Monas’ failure to produce documents and the property
settlement agreement constitute a sanction under NRCP 37 and a fraudulent
transfer under NRS 112.180. 2 App. 355-56.

Without an evidentiary hearing, the District Court concluded that “the
facts entitling Plaintiff to execute upon the bank accounts in the name of Mrs.
Mona are deemed established.” 2 App. 357. The District Court also prohibited
the Monas from claiming any exemptions from executiox/x relating to Rhonda’s

separate accounts and any funds that are subject to the property seftlement
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agreement. Jd. With the exception of production of documents, the District
Court stayed the effect of the order until July 20, 2015.
v
LEGAL ARGUMENT

A.  The District Court never acquived personal jurisdietion over
Rhonda.

1. As a non-party, Rbhonda should have been personally
served to be subject to any discovery order,

Rhonda was not a party to the foreign judgment (1 App. 1-7) originally
obtained in California by Far West, nor was Rhonda ever made a party to the
post-judgment proceedings in the District Court. As a fundamental right of due
process, Far West was required to personally serve Rhonda before acquiring
jurisdiction over her. See, e.g., Browning v. Dixon, 114 Nev. 213, 218, 954
P.2d 741, 744 (1998) (explaining that service of process is required to satisfy
due process). The same holds true for discovery proceedings involving non-
parties, which requires personal service of a subpoena according to NRCP 45.
See Consol. Generator-Nevada, Inc. v. Cummins Engine Co., 114 Nev. 1304,
1312, 971 P.2d 1251, 1256 (1998) (“Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure 45(c)
tequires that a subpoena be personally served.”). Far West’s failure to serve
Rhonda in her personal capacity deprived the District Court of petsonal
jurisdiction over her. See Houston Bus. Jowrnal, Inc. v. Office of Comptroller
of Currency, US. Dep’t of Treasury, 86 F.3d 1208, 1213 (D.C. Cir. 1996) (“In
general, a state-court litigant seeking to compel a non-party to produce

documents must use the state court’s subpoena power or, if the non-party is
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beyond the jurisdiction of such court, use whatever procedures another state
may provide.”). Nevada statutes similarly conclude that a witness has a duty to
appear and testify only when “duly served with a subpoena . . . .»
NRS 50.165(1); see also NRS 50.255(6) (excusing an obligation to appear
unless the required fees are paid with the subpoena). Due to the lack of
personal service upon Rhonda, this Court should vacate the District Court’s
sanctions order, 2 App. 348-58.

2. Far West clearly understocd the requirement for
personal service of discovery to other non-parties,

When Far West sought Rhonda’s judgment debtor examination in her
capacity as trustee, it went to great lengths to personally serve her in this
representative capacity. 1 App. 62-90. Yet, when Far West moved ex parte to
freeze accounts belonging to Rhonda personally, Far West made no effort to
send her a subpoena or otherwise serve her personally. According to Nevada
law, an individual serving in a representative capacity as a trustee of a trust is
not the same as an individual. See Salman v. Newell, 110 Nev. 1333, 1335, 885
P.2d 607, 608 (1994). The fact that Far West acknowledged the requirement to
personally serve Rhonda in her representative capacity, yet completely failed to
serve her in her personal capacity, operates as an estoppel. See, e.g., NOLM,
LLC v. County of Clark, 120 Nev. 736, 743, 100 P.3d 658, 663 (2004)
(“Judicial estoppel applies to protect the judiciary’s integrity and prevents a
party from taking inconsistent positions by intentional wrongdoing or an
attempt to obtain an unfair advantage.”) (citation and internal quotation marks
omitted).
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3. NRCP 37 did not suthorize the sanctions awarded by the
Distriet Court,

When interpreting the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, this Court
applies the same rules of statutory construction. See Marquis & Aurbach v.
Dist. Ct, 122 Nev. 1147, 1157, 146 P.3d 1130, 1137 (2006). The plain
language of NRCP 37(b) distinguishes sanctions available against a non-party
“deponent” and a “party.” The only sanctions available against a non-party are
that the non-party “may be considered a contempt of court.” Yet, the District
Court already denied Far West any contempt relief because the Monas® objected
to Judge Hardy, the presiding District Court Judge, from holding a contempt
hearing, which the District Court accepted. 2 App. 354-55. Thus, it was legally
impossible for the District Court to impose sanctions against Rhonda as a non-
party in her personal capacity, particularly since she was never subject to any
court order. Therefore, due to the District Court’s lack of personal Jjurisdiction
over Rhonda, the entire sanctions award should be vacated on this basis.

B. A separate action was required before impesing liability
against Rhonda.

1. As a matter of law, Far West was not permitted to add
new parties, such as Rhonda, in post-judgment
proceedings, even if she had been personally served,

As a matter of law, Far West was not permitted to add new parties, such
as Rhonda, in post-judgment proceedings, even if she had been personally
served. In Callie v. Bowling, 123 Nev. 181, 186, 160 P.3d 878, 881 (2007), this
Court explained that new parties cannot be added to a judgment in post-

Judgment proceedings based upon an alter ego theory because the new party is
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completely deprived of formal notice, discovery, fact finding, and an
opportunity to be heard before the claim is resolved. The Court’s holding in
Callie specifically overruled the former practice of simply adding new parties to
a judgment in post-judgment proccedings by amendment. See McCleary Cattle
Co. v. Sewell, 73 Nev. 279, 317 P.2d 957 (1957).

In the California litigation, Far West took steps to add other entities to the
judgment as Mike’s alleged alter egos. 1 App. 189. Yet, Far West did not
attempt to add Rhonda to its judgment while the case was still in California,
According to Callie, “[a] party who wishes to assert an alter ego claim must do
80 in an independent action against the alleged alter ego with the requisite
notice, service of process, and other attributes of due process.” Id, at 881. This
case is even worse than the facts in Callie because at least the Jjudgment creditor
there moved to amend the complaint to add the new party. In the instant case,
Far West simply began attaching Rhonda’s separate bank accounts on an ex
parte basis. To preserve Rhonda’s due process, as explicitly held by the Callie
court, this Court should vacate the District Court’s sanctions order because Far
West had to initiate a new action to pursue any claims against Rhonda,

personally, in the post-judgment proceedings.

2. Since Randono v. Turk, 86 Nev, 123, 466 P.2d 218 {1970)

violates Rhonda’s procedural due process rights, it
should be overruled on this basis, .

Contrary to Callie, the District Court relied upon Randono v. Turk, 86
Nev. 123, 466 P.2d 218 (1970) for the notion that a judgment against Mike

could be levied against Rhonda’s separate property without due process. Since
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Randono violates Rhonda’s due process rights, it should be overruled on the
same basis that Callie overruled McCleary Cattle. According to the District
Court’s interpretation of Randono, a community debt can be levied against a
non-party spouse when the assets are also community property, without any
prior notice. 2 App. 352, Indeed, many of the authorities that Far West relied
upon, even from other jurisdictions, lead back to Randono. Id.

However, the fundamental flaw in the reasoning of Randono is that its
stated holding does not find support within the enumerated statutes. For
example, NRS 123.220 defines community property and its exceptions, but it
does not allow an alleged community debt to be levied upon a spouse that is not
a party to the underlying lawsuit. Many other statutes listed in Randono are
either inapposite or no.longer exist. Id., 86 Nev. at 132, 466 P.2d at 223-24.
When case law is not supported by the plain language of the governing statutes,
the case law is no longer valid. See, e.g., Egan v. Chambers, 299 P.3d 364, 365
(Nev. 2013) (“While we acknowledge the important role that stare decisis plays
in Nevada’s jurisprudence, we recognize that we broadened the scope of NRS
41A.071, expanding the reach of the statute beyond its precise words.”). Since
the holding of Randono applied to this case does not accurately reflect the plain
language of the referenced statutes, it should be overruled. Further, Randono
should be overruled on the basis that its principles deprived Rhonda of her due

process rights in a manner that was specifically prohibited by Callie.
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3. NRS 21.330 also requires “an action” agsinst g third
party such as Rhonda.

The District Court relied, in part, upon NRS 21.330 to sanction Rhonda
as a non-party. Yet, this statute expressly requires a judgment creditor, such as
Far West, to “institute an action” against a non-party, such as Rhonda, instead
of attaching her separate property and entering sanctions, Moreover, the
District Court did more than require Riionda to hold her separate property while
a separate action was being instituted by Far West against her. The District
Court bypassed the entire process outlined by NRS 21.330 and instead ordered
the funds in her account to be applied toward Far West’s judgment. 2 App.
356. The language in NRS 21.320 also does not support Far West’s position
because it qualifies a court’s ability to release property with the phrase “not
exempt from execution,” Yet, Far West has not issued any writs of execution
against Rhonda for the funds in her bank accounts. And, Rhonda has not had
the opportunity to claim exemptions. Thus, the District Court abused its
discretion by summarily ordering the disposal of Rhonda’s separate property
when Far West did not institute a separate action or commence execution
proceedings. On this alterative basis, the Court should vacate the District
Court’s sanctions award,

C. The “ultimate” sanctions awarded against the Monas further
violated their procedural due process rights.

1. Far West never conferred with the Monas before sceking
ex parte relief from the District Court.

Everything about the District Court sanctions proceeding demonstrates
that it should have never even taken place. Far West was required according to
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NRCP 37(a)(2)(A) to “include a certification that the movant has in good faith
conferred or attempted to confer with the party not making the disclosure in an
effort to secure the disclosure without court action.” Similarly, EDCR 2.34(d)
mandated that Far West was to provide an affidavit of counsel that this meet
and confer had taken place or the “[d]iscovery motion[] may not be filed . . , .”
Yet, Far West’s motion under NRCP 37 was made ex parte and without any
certification. 1 App. 127-43. No explanation was given why Far West’s
motion was made ex parte. What good are these procedural rules designed to
allow counsel to resolve their discovery differences if Far West will continue to
run to the District Court without conferring every time it perceives a violation?
After producing approximately 30,000 documents to Far West’s satisfaction
(1 App. 25), its counsel should have conferred according to these mandatory
rules before running to the Court ex parte to complain about the omitted
property settlement agreement that it already had. 1 App. 144-56.

Additionally, on what possible basis could Far West procced in the
District Court ex parte? It is hard to say because Far West did not identify any
basis in its ex parte motion. 1 App. 127-43. For example, NRCP 65(b) requires
an affidavit explaining why it would be impractical to give notice and to
articulate the immediate and irreparable harm to seek a temporary restraining
order without notice. No such affidavit was prepared in the instant case. Thus,
Far West’s act of failing to confer with counsel and then seeking ex parte relief
to freeze Rhonda’s account was nothing more than an abuse of the court process

that violated Rhonda’s due process rights.
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2. An evidentiary hearing was required before the District
Court conld impose “altimate” sanctions,

Despite counsel’s protests for an evidentiary hearing, the District Court
imposed “ultimate” sanctions without allowing an evidentiary hearing. 2 App.
296, 326. Instead, the District Court ordered the separate property in Rhonda’s
bank accounts to be released to satisfy Far West’s judgment against Mike,
2 App. 356. According to well established Nevada law, this was reversible
error. See, e.g., Nevada Power Co. v. Fluor Iilinois, 108 Nev. 638, 837 P.2d
1354 (1992). Although the District Court’s sanctions award is premised on
NRCP 37, it did not even consider the factors outlined in Young v. Johnny
Ribeiro Bldg., Inc., 106 Nev. 88, 787 P.2d 777 (1990).

In Fluor Illinois, this Court explained that when a district court’s
determination that parties failed to obey an order involved factual questions as
to the meaning of the order, an evidentiary hearing was required. 108 Nev. at
644, 837 P.2d at 1359. When a district court makes a liability determination as
a discovery sanction, as in the instant case (2 App. 357), an evidentiary hearing
is also mandatory. See Foster v. Dingwall, 227 P.3d 1042, 1047 (Nev. 2010);
see also Fluor Illinois, 108 Nev. at 645, 837 P.2d at 1359, Moreover, as
reported in Fluor Illinois and in numerous authorities, the weighing of the
Young factors is mandatory before an award of sanctions can be made under
NRCP 37. Id. Yet, neither Far West’s ex parte motion, the District Court’s
order, nor the hearing transcript even mention Young. Thus, the District Court’s
failure to hold an evidentiary hearing or even consider the mandatory Young
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factors was an abuse of discretion that warrants this Court vacating the entire

sanctions order.
3. The District Court lacked authority to make findings on
a fraudulent transfer without giving the Monas an

opportunity to present any defense.

Even though the District Court did not allow an evidentiary hearing, it
tock the extreme steps of concluding that Mike “lied” (2 App. 351) and that a
frandulent transfer was conclusively established. 2 App. 357. Instead of
hearing evidence, the District Court considered Mike’s statements made in a
judgment debtor examination and Rhonda’s statements made in her
representative capacity. Yet, as the Nevada Court of Appeals has explained, “In
light of the jury’s role in resolving questions of credibility, a district court
should not reject the content of an affidavit even if it is at odds with statements
made in an earlier deposition.” Nutton v. Sunset Station, Inc., 131 Nev. Adv.
Op. No. 34, at *23-24 (Jun. 11, 2015) (citing Miller v. A.H. Robins Co., 766
F.2d 1102, 1104 (7th Cir. 1985) (“An inconsistent affidavit may preclude
summary judgment . . . if the affiant was confused at the deposition and the
affidavit explains those aspects of the deposition testimony or if the affiant
lacked access to material facts and the affidavit sets forth the newly-discovered
evidence.”); Camfield Tires, Inc. v. Michelin Tire Corp., 719 F.2d 1361, 1365
(8th Cir. 1983) (an inconsistent affidavit may be accepted if it was not a sham
but rather was an attempt to explain certain aspects of the confused deposition

testimony and therefore was not really inconsistent) (further citations omitted)).
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Thus, the only way to resolve the disputed issues was through an evidentiary
hearing, not a summary proceeding that lacked due process. '

Equally as troubling as the District Court’s refusal to provide a defense is
the District Court’s summary finding of a fraudulent transfer. Instead of
holding an evidentiary hearing, the District Court granted Far West ex parte
relief and then refused to allow the Monas to present a defense, Other courts
construing the right to a trial or hearing involving UFTA claims have also
allowed a hearing or a trial. See, e.g., Workforce Solutions v. Urban Servs. of
Am., Inc., 977 N.E2d 267, 275 (1ll. App. 2012) (allowing an evidentiary
hearing on a creditor’s claim under UFTA). And, the transfer between spouses
does not always violate UFTA. See, e.g., Estes v. Titus, 751 N.W.2d 493, 497
(Mich. 2008) (“A UFTA action will not reach such property unless both
spouses are debtors on the claim that is the subject of the action.”). The District
Court’s flagrant violation of the Monas’ due process tights provides a third
basis to vacate the sanctions order.

D.  The Monas’ post-marital property settlement agreement is 4

stated exception to NRS 123.220 and protects Rhonda’s
separate property from exeeution,

1. As a matter of law, Rhonda is not responsible for
intentional conduct by her husband.

According to Jewett v. Patt, 95 Nev. 246, 247-48, 591 P.2d 1151, 1152
(1979), Rhonda’s marriage to Mike does not make her automatically liable for
the foreign judgment against him, especially since the Jjudgment was based
upon fraud. 1 App. 173-93. Other courts citing Jewett have held that “a spouse
is not personally liable for his or her spouse’s intentional torts committed
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during marriage merely by virtue of being married.” Henry v. Rizzolo, 2012
WL 1376967, at *2 (D. Nev. 2012). Other courts have reached similar results.
See Norwest Fin. v. Lawver, 109 Nev. 242, 246, 849 P.2d 324, 326 (1993)
(“The character of [the] property acquired upon credit during marriage is
determined according to the intent of the lender to rely upon the separate
property of the purchaser or upon a community asset.”); In re Miller, 517 B.R.
145, 147 (D. Ariz. 2014) (applying Arizona law and concluding that
“community property cannot be reached to satisfy a guarantee of a debt of
another unless both spouses sign.”); Curda-Derickson v. Derickson, 668
N.W.2d 736, 743 (Wis. App. 2003) (“[D]ebts created by the torts of only one
spouse are an exception from those debts incurred in the interest of the
family.”). In fact, a bankruptcy court construing Nevada law has stated that this
very issue is unresolved in Nevada law: “The question of whether community
property in Nevada is liable for the judgment debt created by the tort of a
spouse is one for a Nevada court not this court.” In re Bernardelli, 12 B.R. 123,
123 (Bankr. D. Nev. 1981).

Moreover, NRS 123.230 specifically limits the ability of a spouse to
encumber community property, absent a power of attorney, except in certain
circumstances. up. to half of the community property. Thus, even absent the
property settlement agreement, Far West would not have been entitled to
recover Rhonda’s separate property or her half of the community property.
Accordingly, it was error for the District Court to conclude that the fraud

judgment against Mike extended to Rhonda’s separate property.
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2. Nevada law specifically aflows written agreements for
separate property as an exception to the definition of
community property.

While the District Court claimed to have construed NRS 123.220
defining community property, it avoided the stated exception in subsection 1 of
the statute for “[a]n agreement in writing between the spouses.” Far West itself
presented a copy of the Monas’ post-marital property settlement agreement,
defining Rhonda’s separate property. 1 App. 144-56. NRS 123.070 also allows
married parties to enter into contracts with each other or other persons, the éame
as if they were not married. Further, NRS 123.190(1) provides, “When the
husband has given written authority to the wife to appropriate to her own use
her earnings, the same, with the issues and profits thereof, is deemed a gift from
him to her, and is, with such issues and profits, her separate property.”

Nevada law also clearly allows married persons to transmute separate
property to community property and vice versa. See Verheyden v. Verheyden,
104 Nev. 342, 757 P.2d 1328 (1988); see also Sprenger v. Sprenger, 110 Nev.
855, 858, 878 P.2d 284, 286 (1994) (stating that the transmutation of separate
property into community property must be shown by clear and convincing
evidence). Thus, the District Court’s summary conclusion that Rhonda’s
separate property was subject to a community debt simply because the debt was

acquired during the marriage was a gross misstatement of Nevada law..
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3. At a minimum, there were factual issnes regarding the
nature of Rbonda’s separate bank accounts because the
District Court failed to frace the funds.

The District Court erroneously concluded that the eatire property
settlement agreement was a fraudulent transfer without an evidentiary hearing
and without hearing testimony from the Monas. Since there were factual issues
regarding the property settlement agreement, the District Court was required to
hold an evidentiary hearing and trace the source of the assets before summarily
concluding that the Monas committed a fraudulent transfer. See Hardy v. U.S,,
918 F.Supp. 312, 317 (D. Nev. 1996) (“The question whether the property
belongs solely to one spouse or to the marital community depends on the source
of the funds with which it was acquired.”); In re Wilson's Estate, 56 Nev. 353,
53 P.2d 339, 343 (1936) (“The community estate may be vested in either
spouse, and the true character of the property is to be determined by the nature
of the transaction under which it is acquired without reference to who retains
the title.”) (citations omitted). The District Court’s summary treatment of this
issue similarly warrants the requested extraordinary relief of vacating the
District Court’s sanctions order.

Vi
CONCLUSION

This Court should vacate the District Court’s sanctions order for a variety
of reasons. The District Court lacked personal jurisdiction over Rhonda and
was unable to issue any sanctions against her, particularly with regard to her

separate property. Far West violated Rhonda’s due process rights by trying to
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include her in post-judgment proceedings without giving her notice and without
ﬁling a separate action. The entire District Court proceeding should not have
taken place because Far West did not confer with counsel before secking ex
parte relief for the discovery dispute, the District Court issued an “ultimate”
sanction without allowing an evidentiary hearing, and the District Court failed
to consider the mandatory Young factors before issuing sanctions under
NRCP 37. Finally, Rhonda is not liable for the debts arising from her
husband’s torts, especially in light of the property settlement agreement

between the Monas. For any of these reasons, this Court should grant the

requested extraordinary relief and vacate the District Court’s sanction order.

DATED: July 17, 2015

/s/ Robert L. Eisenberg

ROBERT L. EISENBERG
Nevada Bar No. 950
Lemons, Grundy & Eisenberg
6005 Plumas Street, #300
Reno, Nevada 89519
775-786-6868

Email: rle@]ge.net

/s/ Micah 8. Echols

TERRY A, COFFING

Nevada Bar No. 4949

MICAH S. ECHOLS

Nevada Bar No. 8437

TYE S. HANSEEN

Nevada Bar No. 10365

Marquis Aurbach Coffing

10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

702-382-0711

Email: tcoffing@maclaw.com
mechols@maclaw.com

thanseen@maclaw.com
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State Qf Ne\;éda )
Couniy of Washoe ;

Robert L. Bisenberg, being first duly sworn, deposes.and says:

That he is & member of the law firm of Lemons, Grundy & Bisenberg,
" attorneys for Petitioner Rhonda Helene Mona in the above-entitled Petition; he
has thained copies of district court papers relating to this case, and he ig
farrﬁiiar with the facts and circumstances set forth in the "‘Petition; ‘and that he
knows the contents thereoT to be true, based on the information he has received,
except as to those matters stated on information and belief, and as to those
matters, he believes them 1o be true.

This verification is made pursuant o NRS 15.010.

Subscribed and swormn before
e iioaring duio Ty P 200

£.

* Notazy Publio

f

CHRISTIE R, GELLMAN
Notary Pubils - Stale of Neveda
147 apolnimast Reccriod s Wsshon Courdy
ot S521+2 - Explres v 14, 2017
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State of Nevada )
County of Clark %
" Micah S. Echols, being ﬁrst duly sworn, deposes and says:
That he is a member of the law firm of Marquis Aurbach Coffing,

attorneys for Petitioner Michael J. Mona, Jr. in the above-entitled Petition; he

has obtained copies of district court papers relating to this case, and he is -

familiar with the facts and circumstances set forth in the Petition; and that he
knows the contents thereof to be true, based on the information he has received,
except as to those matters stated on information and belief, and as to those
matters, he believes them to be true.

This verification is made pursuant to NRS 15.010.

R WC&HS ECE@LS

Subscmbeé and sworn before me
the.§ oﬁawmg date: 7/ lgg

NOtary ?ubhc
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Pursuant to NRAP 25(1), I certify that I am an employee of Marquis
Aurbach Coffing and that on this date I caused to be served at Las Vegas,
Nevada, a true copy of the Petition for Writ of Mandamus or Prohibition and
Petitioners’ Appendix addressed to:

The Honorable Joe Hardy

Eighth Judicial District Court, Dept. 15
200 Lewis Avenue ,

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Via Hand Delivery

F. Thomas Edwards

Andrea M. Gandara

Holley Driggs Walch

Fine Wray Puzey & Thompson

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

"~ Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
tedwards@nevadafirm.com

agandara@nevadafirm.com

Via Email

Leah Del, an piye@ o
Marguis Aurbach Coffing
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Electronically Filed

03/14/2016 04.25:37 PM
ROPP ) m‘ "‘az.“,“
F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ. i
Nevada Bar No. 9549 CLERK OF THE COURT

E-mail: tedwards@nevadafirm.com
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 12580

E-mail: agandara@nevadafirm.com
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH

FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: 702/791-0308

Facsimile: 702/791.1912

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Far West Industries

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California CaseMNo:  A-12-670352-F
corporation,
_ Dept. No.: XV
Plaintiff,
v, PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRIES’

REPLY TO MONA’S OPPOSITION TO
RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada limited | FAR WEST’S MOTION FOR

liability company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT, | DETERMINATION OF PRIORITY OF
INC., a California corporation; BRUCE MAIZE, | GARNISHMENT AND OPPOSITION TO
an individual, MICHAEL J. MONA, JR,, an COUNTERMOTION TO DISCHARGE
individual; DOES 1 through 100, inclusive, GARNISHMENT AND FOR RETURN OF
PROCEEDS

Defendants.

Date of Hearing: March 21, 2016
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m,

Plaintiff FAR WEST INDUSTRIES (“Far West”), by and through its attorneys, F.
THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ. and ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ. of the law firm of HOLLEY
DRIGGS WALCH FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON, hereby submits this reply in support
of its Motion for Determination of Priority of Garnishment (the “Motion™) and opposition to
Michael J. Mona, Jr.’s (“Mr. Mona”) Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for Return
of Proceeds (the “Countermotion”).

In his Opposition to the Motion and Countennotion, Mr. Mona spends roughly 20 pages

trying to figure out how to properly calculate the garnishment withholdings in this case. The
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proper calculation method for this exact situation is suceinetly provided for in the Code of
Federal Regulations. However, because Mr. Mona does not like the result dictated by the Code
of Federal Regulations, he fails to disclose the proper calculation method to the Court.

Moreover, Mr. Mona relies upon non-controlling and unpersuasive authority regarding
garnishment priority ‘while completely ignoring the plain language of 'controlling Nevada Jaw
which specifically provides that “the court shall determine the priority” if a “garmishee is the
subject of more than one writ of garnishment.” NRS 31.249(5). This is exactly what Far West is
asking this court to do in its motion. Indeed, NRS 31.249(5) only provides priority to writs of
garnishment for the collection of child support,1 not spousal support such as the award of
alimony to Mr. Mona’s ex-wife, Rhonda Mona (“Ms. Mona™) (collectively, Mr. Mona and Ms.
Mona are referred to as the “Monas™) in the Monas’ sham divorce. Giving priority to Far West’s
garnishment over Ms. Mona’s alimony is appropriate because it comports with federal and
Nevada law. Mr. Mona’s suggestion that Ms. Mona’s alimony will always have priority to
creditor garnishments because she never has to renew the support order has no support in Nevada
law and would improperly create a judicial priority scheme in cémplete contradiction to
legislative intent.

As to Mr. Mona’s request for discharge of the writ, his scant analysis fails to address the
applicable statute of NRS 31.200, and therefore the request should be denied. Finally, Mr. Mona
provides no controlling legal support as to why Far West, as opposed to his employer,
CannaVest Corp. (“Cannavest”), should return funds to him. In fact, for prior garnishments, Mr.
Mona himself has been the person acting on behalf of Cannavest to respond to Far West’s writs
of garnishment, such that if there have been overpayments he has himself (or his counsel) to
n
i
"

"

1'The Monas’ Divorce Decree naturally does not include an order for child support as the Monas’
children are both adults and are living on their own.

. -9
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blame and should not be allowed to shift the consequences of his and his employer’s mistakes

onto Far West,
Dated this 14" day of March, 2016,

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9549

ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 12580

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Far West Industries

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L
ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND?

Far West has been continually garnishing Mr. Mona’s Cannavest earnings since
December 2013. See Case Summary for Case 13LVTC044201, Far West Indusiries v. Mona,
attached to the Motion as Exhibit 2. In response to a writ of garnishment in July 2015, Mr.
Mona, the CEQ, President, and Director of Cannavest, approved of Far West’s garnishment of
$1,945.42 of his wages. See Writ of Garnishment With Answers to Interrogatories from
Cannavest, Signed by Mr. Mona on June 19, 2015, attached hereto as Exhibit 8. Cannavest’s
most recent answers 1o interrogatories in Far West’s Writ of Garnishment reflect that Mr.
Mona’s assistant, Kathleen Kelleher, performed the task of calculating the garnishment amount
from Mr. Mona’s wages, no doubt with the prior approval of Mr. Mona as she is Cannavest’s
only Las Vegas employee other than Mr. Mona.®> See Writ of Garnishment With Answers to

Interrogatories from Cannavest, attached to the Motion as Exhibit 5.

2 The background facts from the Motion are incorporated by reference herein. See Motion at 3-5.

? See Transcript of Michael J. Mona, Jr.’s Judgment Debtor Examination (“Mr. Mona’s JDE
Transcript™), dated June 30, 2015, attached hereto as Exhibit 9, at 58:8-16, 65:10-14, 139:3-8;

e 3
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In the interim of Far West’s garnishments, the Monas appealed a sanction order of this
Court and obtained a stay not only of that order but all of Far West’s collection proceedings
beginning on July 20, 2015 and continuing through November 30, 2015. Immediately after the
stay expired, on December 1, 2015, Far West proceeded to renew its writ of gamishment of Mr,
Mona’s Cannavest earnings.

The Monas exploited the stay to effectuate a sham divorce through which Mr. Mona
stipulated to a $10,000.00 monthly alimony award for Ms. Mona, among other fraudulent
transfers. See Decree of Divorce, filed July 23, 2015, attached to the Motion as Exhibit 7.
Despite the divorce, Ms. Mona has recently produced financial documents that indicate she is
continuing to pay household expenses for the Monas® Las Vegas and San Diego residences, such
as county real property taxes and community association dues. See Redacted Bank Records for
Ms. Mona, attached hereto as Exhibit 11. These payments only confirm that the Mona’s divorce
was a sham effectuated to hinder, delay and defraud Far West in its efforts to collect upon the
Judgment.

IL
LEGAL ANALYSIS

Mr. Mona incorrectly asserts that Far West is seeking to garnish his wages in violation of
the maximum 25 percent for non-support garnishments allowed under federal and Nevada law
when in reality Far West is only asking this Court to determine priority of the garnishments,
which is exactly what is permitted and mandated by law. See 15 U.S.C. § 1673(a); NRS
31.295(2)(a). As discussed, infra, the Consumer Credit Protection Act defers to state law as to
priority of garnishments when there is more than one gamishment. Accordingly, because
Nevada law only gives priority to child support orders, not alimony payments, this Court should
adhere to NRS 31.295(2)(a) and proceed with the determination of priority with respect to the

two garnishments.

(continued)
see also Transcript of Rhonda Mona’s Judgment Debtor Examination (“Ms. Mona’s JDE
Transcript™), dated June 26, 2015, attached hereto as Exhibit 10, at 62:20-63:3,

4.
10594-01/1664526

1273




B R T ¥ S - o N

BRERRBBIYIEBESEIEEES 0 E S

A. Support Orders Have No Garnishment Priority in Nevada

The Opposition falsely claims that the Consumer Credit Protection Act holds that Mr.
Mona’s alimony payments to Ms. Mona should take priority over Far West’s judgment
gamishment. This could be no further from the truth as the Department of Labor’s implementing
regulations specifically notes that the Consumer Credit Protection Act “contains no provisions
controlling the priorities of garnishments.” 29 C.F.R. § 870.11(a)(2) . In fact, the Depattment of
Labor’s implementing regulation is quite clear that “when there is more than one garnishment ...
the priority is determined by State law.” Id. Here, Nevada law explicitly provides that “the court
shall determine the priority” if a “gamishee is the subject of more than one writ of gamishment.”
NRS 31.249(5). In Nevada, priority is only given to child support, not alimony payments to a
former spouse, Id.

Indeed, the cases cifed by Mr. Mona all universally hold that the Consumer Credit
Protection Act does not seek to establish any order of priority among gamishments. See Long
Island Trust Co. v. U.S. Postal Serv.; 647 F.2d 336, 338 (2d Cir. 1981) (“[W]e note that the Act
does not seek to establish any order of priority among garnishments.”); see also Commonwealth
Edison v. Denson, 144 Il1. App. 3d 383, 386N.E.2d 1186, 1189 (Ill. App. Ct. 1986) same) ); Voss
Prods. Inc. v. Carlton, 147 F.Supp.2d 892, 896 (E.D. Tenn. 2001) (holding that the Consumer
Credit Protection Act “does not seek to establish any order of priority among garnishments”),
Marshall v. Dist. Court for Forty-First-b Judicial Dist. of Michigan, Mount Clemens Div., 444 F,
Supp. 1110, 1116 (E.D. Mich. 1978) (“Establishing the order of priority between or among
garnishment orders ... is not governed by the Act and is governed by State law.).

As discussed, &upra, the Department of Labor’s implementing regulations, later codified
in the Code of Federal Regulations, further conﬁmis that priority is a state law matter in absence
of another applicable federal law and provides an example directly on point with Far West’s
request for priority in the Motion: |

Compliance with the provisions of section 303(a) and (b) [15
U.S.C. § 1673(a) and (b)] may offer problems when there is more
than one garnishment. In that event the priority is determined by
State law or other Federal laws as the CCPA contains no
provisions controlling the priorities of garnishments. However,

-5-
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in no event may the amount of any individual's disposable earnings
which may be gamished exceed the percentages specified in
section 303. To illustrate:

¥4 E

(iii) If 25% of an individual’s disposable earnings were
withheld pursuant to an ordinary garnishment which is subject
to the restrictions of section 303(a), and the garnishment has
priority in accordance with State law, the Consumer Credit
Protection Act permits the additional garnishment for the
support of any person of only the difference between 25% and
the &;;plicable percentage (50-65%) in the above quoted section

303

29 C.F.R. §870.11(b)(2) and (b)(2)(iii) (emphasis added).

This federal regulation clearly shows that an ordinary garnishment may have priority over
a garnishment for the support of former spouse, as allowed by state law. Stated altematively,
this federal regulation conclusively shows that federal law does not require priority for a
garnishment for support of a former spouse. Under this formula, Cannavest should withhold

wiages as follows, which would comply with both Nevada and federal law:

Biweckly salary $ 11,538.46

Federal tax (83,127.70)*

Social Security ($712.01)

Medicare (8166.52)

Disposable earnings $ 753223

Amount to Far West $ 1,883.06 (8$7,532.23 x 25%)
AmounttoMs. Mona  § 2,636.28 (7,532.23 x 35%)

Total to creditors $ 451933 ($1,883.06 +2,636.28)°

Remaining to Mona $ 3,012.90° (40% of disposable earnings)

* These federal tax withholdings are disproportionately high, which suggest that Mr. Mona.is
improperly utilizing his federal tax withholdings to reduce the amount Far West can garnish.

> This sum is approximately 60% of Mr. Mona’s disposable earnings. Under some
circumstances, this amount may increase to 65% of disposable earnings, which would increase
the amount to Ms. Mona, but would not affect the amount to Far West, See 15 U.8.C. § 1673(b)
and 29 CF.R. 870.11(b)(1).

¢ This amount is more than enough for Mr, Mona to live on, considering that Roen and Ms.
Mona continue to pay Mr. Mona’s living expenses (e.g., mortgage, vehicle, associate dues, etc.).

-6-
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Mr. Mona has not, because he cannot, point to any applicable federal authority supporting
his position that Ms. Mona’s spousal support is entitled to priority over Far West’s garnishment,
The sole federal statute he cites to, 28 U.S.C. § 3205, is only relevant for collection of federal
debts as Mr. Mona concedes. See Mr. Mona’s Opposition and Countermotion at 22;19-24, Far
West’s Judgment is not a writ of garishment issued pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 3205 and therefore
the priority structure in that provision provides no basis for deny{ng the Motion.

Further, Mr. Mona’s non-Nevada authority regarding garnishment priority for support
orders is wholly inapplicable because it either relies upon statutes that provide priority for all
support orders or involves cases where the order is for child support. Here, there is no priority
granted to alimony awards in Nevada and this case does not involve child support. Compare
NRS 31.249(5) (garishment priority given only to writs of garishment for child support) with
Long Island, 647 F.2d at 339 (citing New York law statute granting priority to support order);
Donovan v. Hamilton County Municipal Court, 580 F.Supp. 554, 555 and 556 (S.D. Ohio 1984)
(involving court ordered involuntary wage assignment for child support order that was entered
before creditor obtained judgment and there was no dispute that child support order had priority
over creditor garnishment); Commonwealth Edison, 144 T11. App. 3d at 387, 494 N.E. 2d at 1189
(citing Illinois statute granting priority to support orders regardless of timing in relation to
creditor garnishment); Lough v. Robinson, 111 Ohio App. 3d 149, 153, 675 N.E. 2d 1272, 1275
n.4 (citing Ohio statute granting priority to support order in case involving child support); Voss
Prods, 147 F.Supp. 2d at 896 (citing Tennessee statute granting priority to support order in case
involving child support); Union Pac. R.R. v. Trona Valley Fed. Credit Union, 2002 WY 165, 57
P.3d 1203, 1208 (Wyo. 2002) (citing Wyoming statute granting priority to support order in case

involving child support); In re Borochov, 2008 WL 2559433, *3 (Bankr. Haw. June 23, 2008)

(citing Hawaii statute granting priority to child support order and making unsupported statement

that all “family” support orders are entitled to priority).”

7 The same is true for the law Mr. Mona cites in the Opposition at pages 22-30: Arizona (citing
ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 12-15598.14(A) that places non-support order in inferior position to those for
the support of a person): California (citing CAL. C1v. PROC. CODE § 699.510 that grants priority
to writs of execution for orders and judgments for spousal support); Florida (citing FLA. STAT. § -

-7
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While other states grant spousal support orders garnishment priority, it would be
improper to impute those statutory structures here because Nevada’s legislature has not done

so. Under the canon of construction expressio unius est exclusio alterius, the fact that the
Legislature specifically granted gamishment priority to child support orders but not to spousal
support awards weighs against Mr. Mona’s argument that Ms. Mona’s spousal support should be
given priority over Far West’s garnishment. See State v. Javier C., 128 Nev. Adv. Op. 50, 289
P.3d 1194, 1197 (2012) (stating that Nevada follows the maxim expressio unius est exclusio
alterius, which means that “the expression of one thing is the exclusion of another.”).

Finally, based upon financial records Ms. Mona recently provided to Far West, it appears
that the alimony she is reéeiving, from Mr. Mona’s Caiinavest wages is being used for the
Monas® collective post-divorce household expenses. See Redacted Bank Records for Ms. Mona,
Exhibit 11. This further supports why the Monas’ sham divorce and stipulated alimony are
nothing more than an attempt to hinder, delay, and further defraud Far West in its execution upon
the Judgment. This egregious behavior should not be rewarded by allowing Mr. Mona to use the
alimony award as a pretext to divert money away from Far West’s legitimate collection efforts.

B. Nevada Law Provides That Far West’s Judgment Should be Given Priority Over
the Divoree Decree

Far West agrees that Nevada case law on the issue of priority between competing claims
is limited. Nonetheless, the case of First Interstate Bank of Cal. v. HC.T., 108 Nev. 242, 828
P.2d 405 (1992), articulates the basic rule that priority depends upon “which interest is first in

— {continved)

61.1301 and FrA. R. C1v, P. 1.550(b) that provide priority to support for alimony and child
support orders); Illinois (citing 735 ILL. COMP. STAT. 5/12-808 that provides priority for spousal
and child support orders); Indiana (citing Jowa CODE § 24-4.5-5-105 that provides priority for
support orders); New Jersey (citing N.J. STAT. 2A:17-56,10(b) that provides priority for alimony,
maintenance and child support); New York (citing to Gen. Motors Acceptance Corp. v. Metro.
Opera Ass’n, Inc., 98 Misc. 2d 307, 308, 413 N.Y.S.2d 818 (App. Term 1978) that in turn cites
to support order priority statute, PERS. PROP. § 49-b)); Pennsylvania (citing PA. CONS, STAT.
Title 42 § 8127(b) that provides priority to support orders); Rhode Island (citing to 15 R.1. Gen.
Law § 15-5-25(1) that provides priority to support orders); Tennessee (citing TENN. CODE ANN. §
36-5-501(i)(1) that provides priority to support orders); Texas (citing to TeX. Fam. CobE § 8.105
that provides priority to spousal maintenance); Washington (citing to WAasH. Rev. CODE
26.23.060 that provides priority to support orders); and Wyoming (citing Union Pac. R.R. v.
Trona Valley Fed. Credit Union, 2002 WY 165, 57 P.3d 1203, 1208 (Wyo. 2002) that in turn
citesb\‘.)f; child support priority statutes, WYO. STAT. ANN, §§ 1-15-408; 1-15-504; and 20-6—
210(b)). ’
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time.” Mr, Mona argues that this case in not applicable. See Opposition, 27:9-14. ‘While the
facts of First Interstate are certainly distingm’shable, the principle that priotity depends upon
“which interest is first in time” does not seem to be disputed. First Interstate, 108 Nev. at 246,
828 P.2d at 408. In fact, Mr. Mona cited to case law for the exact same proposition. See
Opposition, 26:11-13 (“See e.g. Voss Products, Inc., at 896 (between garnishments of the same

type, the prior in time is to be satisfied first); 28 U.8.C. § 3205(8) (writs issued under this section
shall have priority over writs which are issued later in time).”).

The question is: When does the interest arise for determining priority? In First Interstate,
the Nevada Supreme Court quoted a Sixth Circuit case as stating, “the rights of the parties are
determined from the date of the award.” First Interstate, 108 Nev. at 246, 828 P.2d at 407
(quoting Marion Mfg. Co. v. Long, 588 F.2d 538, 541 (6th Cir.1978)). The Nevada Supreme
Court then stated “[w]e agree with the Sixth Circuit.” First Interstate, 108 Nev. at 246, 828 P.2d
at 408. Under this simple test, Far West’s April 27, 2012 Judgment pre-dates the Divorce
Decree dated July 23, 2015 (by more than three years), such that Far West’s Judgment is entitled
to priority. As both Far West’s Judgment and the Divorce Decree are simply court orders stating

that Mr. Mona owes money to another party, there is no reason to treat one differently than

another. The only distinguishing factor is the date that they were entered. Thus, Far West’s
eatlier Judgment should have priority over the later Divorce Decree.

In First Interstate, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that one of the creditor’s
interests vested when it first served the writ of garnishment against the asset being garnished.
First Interstate, 108 Nev. at 246, 828 P.2d at 408, While Far West believes that this conclusion
is based upon distinguishing circnmstances not present here,® even if the Court were to use the
date of the first garnishment, Far West would prevail. Far West first garnished Mr. Mona’s

wages with Cannavest on December 13, 2013, See, Ex. 8. I is not clear when, if ever, Ms.

% This creditor argued that its interest did not arise until it served a writ of garmnishment upon the
property and the Nevada Supreme Court accepted this argument without further analysis. First
Interstate, 108 Nev. at 245, 828 P.2d at 407 (“FICAL argues that its interest in the CD attached
on August 20, 1990, which its writ of garnishment was served . . . .”). Moreover, the creditors
were seeking to collect upon a particular asset, a Certificate of Deposit, requiring a one-time
garnishment, as opposed to an income stream is in the present case.

-9.
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Mona garnished Mr. Mona’s wages with Cannavest. Nonetheless, even if Ms. Mona did garnish
Mr. Mona’s Cannavest wages, she could not have done so before the entry of the Divorce Decree
on July 23, 2015. Thus, Far West’s garnishment of the Cannavest wages pre-dates Ms. Mona’s
garnishment (if any) and Far West would be entitled to priority even under this alternative test.

Finally, the First Interstate Court also concluded that “an assignment takes priority over a
writ of garnishment only to the extent that the consideration given for the assignment represents
an antecedent debt or present advance.” First Interstate, 108 Nev. at 246, 828 P.2d at 408
(emphasis added) (citing Board of Trustees v. Durable Developers, 102 Nev. 401, 415, 724 P.2d
736, 746 (1986)). The Divorce Decree states that the $10,000.00 per month alimony “shall be
paid via direct wage assignment through Husband’s employer.” See Ex. 7 to the Motion, 3:12-
16 (emphasis added). This assignment of wages through the Divorce Decree was court ordered,
as opposed to consideration for an antecedent debt or present advance. As the assignment of
wages through the Divorce Decree only takes priority over Far West’s garnishment if the
assignment was given in consideration for an antecedent debt or present advance, the Divorce
Decree cannot have priority over Far West’s garnishment (or Judgment). Therefore, regardless
of the test used, First Interstate makes clear that Far West’s Judgment must be given priority
over the Divorce Decree.

Mr. Mona attempts to make new law in Nevada by arguing that Ms. Mona’s alimony
award should have priority over Far West’s garnishment because Far West’s prior garnishment
expired. However, the Monas’ stay pending appeal prevented Far West from renewing its
garnishment for more than four months, from July 20, 2015 through November 30, 2015.
Immediately after the stay expired, on December 1, 2015, Far West proceeded to obtain a new
garnishment for Mr. Mona’s Cannavest wages. It would be inherently unjust to allow Mr. Mona
to now claim that Far West lost its “first in time” pbsition to-Ms. Mona’s alimony award when it
was the Monas® actions that prevented Far West from renewing its garnishment sooner.

Further, Mr. Mona’s proposed theory that Ms. Mona’s alimony award will always pre-
date Far West’s garnishment would essentially create a judicial priority for support orders where
the Nevada legislature has indicated a contrary intent. See NRS 31.249(5). The now $25 million

-10-
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debt Mr. Mona owes Far West for his fraudulent conduct pre-dates Mr. Mona’s voluntary wage
assignment for Ms. Mona’s support by well over three years and, accordingly Far West should
be granted priority. |

C. There is No Basis to Discharge Far West’s Garnishment

Mr. Mona’s Countermotion to discharge Far West’s garnishment should be denied for
two reasons. First, he bas not addressed the applicable standards under NRS 31.200, which
provide grounds for discharge of an attachment (e.g., the writ was improperly issued; the
property levied upon is exempt, the levy is excessive, etc.). Moreover, under NRS 31.200(1)(c),
at most Mr. Mona would be allowed to discharge the amount of Far West’s garnishment that
exceeds what is permitted under federal and Nevada law. However, granting Far West first
priority to 25 percent of Mr. Mona’s Cannavest earnings is in complete compliance with the
applicable federal and Nevada maximums. As such, there is no excess amount by which Far
West’s writ of garnishment should be reduced.

D. Any Liability for Excess Garnishment Falls Upon the Employer, Cannavest

Contrary to Mr. Mona’s unsupported argument that Far West has an obligation to
calculate the wages paid to it by Cannavest, his complaints regarding over-gamishment of his
Cannavest eamings should be directed at himself and his employer. Mr. Mona, CEO, President,
and Director of Cannavest, has even signed off on a writ of gamishment that he now claims was
improper. See Writ of Garnishment With Answers to Interrogatories from Cannavest, Signed by
Mr. Mona on June 19, 2015, Exhibit 8; Mr. Mona’s Opposition and Countermotion at 19:6-21,
Further, he has never claimed an exemption in response to Far West’s writs of garnishment. See
generally NRS 31.045(2) (setting forth procedure for claiming exempt property including fen
day period within which to provide copy of claim of exemption). Far West should not be held
responsible for Mr. Mona's failures with respect to withholdings of his earnings that he has
controlled and supervised.

The gnly case Mr. Mona cites as support for a retum of garnished funds is Lough v.
Robinson, 111 Ohio App.3d 149, 155-56, 675 N.E.2d 1272, 1276. The Lough court merely held
that the funds wrongfully withheld by the employer must be returned to the employee. Id at 111

1]
10594-01/1664526
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reimbursement from Cannavest.

previously gamished wages.

Dated this 14™ day of March, 2016.

10594-01/1664526

Ohio App. 3d at 155, 675 N.E.2d at 1276 (“Therefore, the entire amount that was withheld by the
employer for the creditor garnishment was excess and should have been returned to appellant.”).
This non-controlling authority never held that the judgment creditor must return the funds and
appears to imply that the funds should be returned by the employer. Id Mr. Mona has pointed
to no authority where a judgment creditor was required to return funds that an employee claims
were overpaid. Therefore, to the extent Mr, Mona, Cannavest and their counsel miscalculated

the amounts Cannavest should have withheld from Mr. Mona’s wages, Mr. Mona must seek

HL

CONCLUSION
For the foregoing reasons, Far West respectfully requests that this Court grant Far West
priority for its garnishment of Mr. Mona’s Cannavest earnings before Ms. Mona’s alimony and

deny Mr. Mona’s Countermotion to discharge Far West’s garnishment and for return of his

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9549

ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No! 12580

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Far West Industries
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
1 HEREBY CERTIFY that on March 14, 2016, pursuant to EDCR 8.05 and NRCP 5(b), I
caused to be served electronically using the Court’s E-File & Serve System, a true and correct
copy of the foregoing PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRIES’ REPLY TO MONA’S
OPPOSITION TO FAR WEST’S MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF PRIORITY OF
GARNISHMENT AND OPPOSITION TO COUNTERMOTION TO DISCHARGE
GARNISHMENT AND FOR RETURN OF PROCEEDS to the parties below:

Aurora M. Maskall, Esq. Tye S. Hanseen, Esq.

David S. Lee, Esq. Terry A, Cofﬁn . Bsq.

LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM & MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
GARAFALO 1001 Park Run Drive

7575 Vegas Drive, #150 Las Vegas, NV 89145

Las Vegas, NV 89128 Attorney for Michael J. Mona, Jr.
James E. Whitmire, Esq. Erika Pike Turner

SANTORO WHITMIRE Dylan Ciciliano

10100 West Charleston Boulevard, GARMAN TURNER GORDON
Suite 250 650 White Drive:

Las Vegas, Nevada 89135 Suite 100

Attorney for Rhonda Helene Mong Las Vegas, Nevada 891 19

;\

Dnggs Walch
Fhompson

Fme Wray Puzey &
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F. THOMAS EDWARDS, E8Q

Nevada Bar No, 9349
B-mail: tedwards@nevadafirni.com

ANDREA M. GANDRA, ESQ.

“Nevada Bar No. 12380

Bl 2? vadafirm.com
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH

FINE WRAY PUZEY-& THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone:  702/791-0308
Faesimile:  702/791-1912

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Far West Industries

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a Cahfomla
torporation, .
Case No: A-12-670352-F
Plaintiff, Dept. No,: XV
V.

RIO VISTA NEVADA, L1, a  Nevada limited
liability comp W RL.D DEVELOPMENT,
INC., a Cali omxa Hzg]gratmn, BRUCE MAIZE
anmdxvxdual MIC L J. MONA, JR,, an
individual; DOES 1 through 100, mcluszve,

Defendants.

'i 5}';’% i’v;’«d? avtng B

: WRIT OF GARNISHMENT,
THE STATE OF NEVADA TO:-

CannaVEST Coxp., Garnishee

2688 S. Rainbow Blvd,, Ste. B

Las Vegas, NV 89146

You are ereby notified that you are attached as gamiishee in the above entitled action .
and yon are cmmhab&d not to pay any debt from yourself to Michael J. Mona, Jr., °
("Defendant™), and that you must retain possession and control of all personal propeity, money; |
¢credit, debts, effects and choses in action of said Defendaut in order that-the same iay be dealt

with accoiding to law. Where such property consists of wages, salaries, commissions or

bonuses, the amount you shall retain be in accordance with 15 U.S.C. § 1673 and NRS 31.295,

10594-01/1402081
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Plaintiff, Far West Industties believes that you have property, money, credits; debts, effects and
choses in action in your hands and under your custody and control belonging to said Defendant

YOU ARE REQUIRED within 20 days from the date of setvice of this Writ of
Garnishment fo angwer the intérrogatoriés set forth hérein and fo retum your answers to the |

office of the Sheriff or Constable which issues the Wit 6f Gamishimeiit. In case of your failure
fo answer the inferrogatories’ within 20 days, 8 Judgment by Default in the amount due the
Plaintiff may be entered sgainst you.

IF YOUR ANSWERS TO the interrogatories indicate that you are the employer of
Defenddnt, this Wit of Garnishment shalt be deemed to CONTINUE FOR 126 DAYS, or until

-the amount demanded in the Wiit is satisfied, whichever occurs earlier less any amount which is

|| exempt and less $3:00 per pa); period not to exceed $12.00 per month which you may retainasa |

fee for compliance. The $3.00 fee does not apply to the first pay period covered by this Writ.
YOU ARE FURTHER REQUIRED to serve a copy of your answers to the Writ of

Garnishment on Plaintiff’s attorneys whose address appears below,

Dated this ___ day of , 2015,
Issued at direction of: SHERIFF/CONSTABLE ~ CLARK COUNTY
av: R WY A NT PH#OST3  </ls
Title © Date
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH.,
‘FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON

-~

F, THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ., NV Bar Ng. 9549
E-mail: tedwards@nevadafirhcom
ANDREA Md GANDARA, ESQ., NV Bar No. 12380

E-mail; agandara@neyv. CH
Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephoue:  702/791-0308

Attornevs for Plaintiff

10594-01/1492081
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| STATE OF NENADA 5
COUNTY OF CLARK )
The undarsigﬁed, being
e dayof

s~Fworn, states that I received the within WRIT OF

, 2015, and personally served the same on

$5.00, with __ ) at . _, County of Clark, State of
Nevada, ’ : _ —
M
By
Title:

INTERROGATORIES TO BE ANSWERED BY THE GARNISHEE UNDER OATH:

1. Are youin sny manner indebted to Defendants Michael M, Mona, Ir., either in
property or money, and is the debt niow due? If not due, when is the debt to become due? State
fully all partioulars:

ANSWER: __No.

2. Are you an cmi:loyci of the Deferidant? If so, state the Jerigth of your pay period
and the amount of disposable eamings, as dé:ﬁned in NRS 31.295, which each Defendant
presently earns during a pay period. State the mininium amount of disposable earnings that is
exernpt from this garmnishiment which is the federal minimum hourly wage prescribed by section
6(a)(1) of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 US.C. § 206(a)(1}, in effect at the
time the earnings arve payable mulﬁpiied by 50 for each week the pay period, after deducting any
amount required by law to be withheld.

Calenlate the garnishuble smount as follows: -

{Check-one of the followditg) The eniployee is paid:

[A] Weekly: _ [B] Biweekly: X [C] Semimonthly: | [D] Monthly: __

(1) Gross Barnings........... reeenieeraes et ra e eb e $.11,53846

.3
10394.0171492081

, 2015 by showing the original WRIT OF GARNISHMENT,
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(2) Deductions required by law (not including child support).....$ 3,736.79

1
2 (3) Disposable Eaming [Subiract line 2 from liﬁq’l} pesdiertisenins $.7,781.67
3 (4) Federal Minimum Wage........ Cressns s e $ 725
4 (5) Multiply Brte 4 BY'50.ccvsuvvverromasnsmrsssssersiisassssnsers 8_362:50
5 (6) Complete thie following direetion in'accordance with the letter selected above:
6 (A Mulfipiyline 5 by T ooevrverivercsnresissomininen $_NA_
7 (B] Mltiply e 5 55 2 tuenensesrvestanrcessssnrscannns$__T2500
8 [ Multiply Tine S by 52 and then divide by 24.,...§__ NA
9 1] I;Jultiply line $'by 52 and then divide by 12..... $ NA
10§ (7) Subtract line 6 from line Breirreerinerersesssineniversrsensersid__1,056.67
11 - This is the attachable earning. This amount must not exceed 25% of the disposable

12 | earnings from line 3.

L ANSWER: _25% of $7,781.67 = $1,945.42
14 ' .
15 3. Did you have ih your possession, in your charge or uader your control, on the date

e the WRIT OF GARNISHMENT was served upon you any money, property, -effects, good,

7 chaitels, rights, credits or choses in the action of the Defendant, or in which Defendant is

,1)8 interested? If so, state its valuo and state fully all particulars.

19 ANSWER; _Other than the earnings detailed above, no.
20 . '
zl 4, Do you know of any debts owing 10 the Defendant, whether dae or not due, ot any

2 money, property, offects, goods, chattels, rights, credits or choses in action, belonging to the
23 Pefendant, or in which Defendant is interested, and now in possession or under the control of

24 | others? Yo, state particuiars.

25 "ANSWER: No,
26
2
28
‘ wlhe
10594-01/149208
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5. Areyou a financial institution with a personal account held by the Defendant? If
so, state the account number and the amount of money -in the account which is subject to
garnishment. As set forth in NRS 21.105, $2,000 or the entire amount in the account, whichever

is less, is not subject to garnishment if the financial institution reasonably identifies that an

electronic deposit of money has been mads into the account within the immediately preceding 45

days which is exempt from ex&cution, inchuding, without limitation, payments of money
described in NRS 21.105 or, if no such deposit has been made, $400 or the entire amount in the
account, whichever is less, is not subject to garnishiment, unless the garnishment is for the
recovery of money owed for the support of any person, The amount which is not subject to
garnishment does not apply to each account of the judgment debtor, but rather is an aggregate
amount that is not-subject to garnishment.

ANSWER: __No.

6. State your correct name and address, or the name and address of your attorney
upon. whom written notice of further proceedings in this action may be served.
ANSWER: Terry A, Coffing, Bsq., 10001 Park Run Drive, LV, NV 89145

7. NOTE: 1, without legal justjﬁcaﬁon, an employer of Defendant refuses to
withhold earnings of Defendant demanded in a WRIT OF GARNISHMENT or knowingly
misrepresents the earnings of Defendant, the Court $hall order the employer to pay Plaintiff the
amount of amearages caused by the cmployer's refusal o withhold or the employer’s
misrepresentation of Defenidaitt’s entnings. In addition, the Counrt may order the employer to pay
Plaintiff punitive damages in an amount not to éxceed $1,000 for each pay petiod in which the
employer has, without legal justification, refused to withhold Defendent’s earnings or has

misreprésented the earniings.

10394-0171492081
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STATE OF NEVADA )]
ss:

. COUNTY OF CLARK. )

1, MM—— » do solemnly swear (or affirm) that the answers to the

foregoing interrogatories subscribed by me are frue,

NN
1 \\}Cﬁzﬂshee

SURSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this

105940 11492081
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARX COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a
California corporation,

Plaintiff,
vs.

RI1I0 VISTA NEVADA, LLC; a
Nevada limited liability
company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT,
INC., a California
corporation; BRUCE MAIZE,
an individual, MICHARL J.
MONA, JR., an individual;

DOES 1 through 100,
inclusive,

Defendants.

JUDGMENT DEBTOR EXAMINATION OF MICHAEL J. MONA,

B N M GV LW e R N T e

CASE NO:

DEPT NO:

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA

TUBSDAY, JUNE 30, 2018

A~12~670352~F

XV

JR.

REPORTED BY: BRITTANY J. CASTREJON, CCR NO. 9526

JOB NO. :

252981
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. - 06/30/2015

Page 58

1 garment on and goldo the scientific stuff. He runs the
2 employees and makes sure it goes through. I don't allow
3 him to get where he has the ability to get behind the
4 machines and do the work.
5 Q. .How many employees does CannaVest have in San
6 Diego?
i A. 35.
8 Q. How many employees does CannaVest have here in
9 Las Vegas?
10 A. ©One,
i1 Q0. Who's that?
12 A. Kathleen Keller.
i3 Q. What does Kathleen Rellex do?
14 A. She iz in charge of all the payroll. She yuns
15  payroll, new hires, and answers the phone for the Las
16 Vegas address and runs-operafions here.
17 Q. Does she work exclusively for CannaVest?
18 A. BShe does some Mona Co stuff alsa.'
1s Q. 8o she rung Mona Co and CannaVest?
20 A. She doesn't run Mona Co. They share an office.
21 Q. Does CannaVest have any operations currently?
22 A. As far as -- explain operations.
23 0. I'm soxry.
24 Does Mona Co have any operations currently?
25 A. No..

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationservices.com
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. =~ 06/30/2015
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Page 65
. What is the address for CannaVest?

2688 South Rainbow.

« Is there a suite numbex?

Q
A
Q
A. B és in boy. Las Vegas, Nevada 89146.
Q. What's the address for Mona Co?
A. Correct. Same address.
0. And what's a telephone number for CannaVest?
A. I'd have to look at my card here. It's on speed
dial for me. I have no idea. 866-2390-2157.
0. So when you're in the CannaVest office, it's just
you and Kathleen; correct?

A. In Las Vegasg?

Q. Correct.

A. Yes.

Q. Where are the other officers of CannaVest
stationed?

A. San Diego.

Q. Exclusively?

A. No. We come here for board wmeetings and
different meetings.

Q. Who are the other officers of CannaVeat?

A. Joseph Dowling is my CFO. You know my son,

director of operations. Stuart Tome, T-0-M-C, is the

director of human nutrition.

Q. T-0-M-C?

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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MICHAEL J. MONA, JR. -~ 06/30/2015
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‘ Page 139
Q. What about your business records? :

A. Such as?

Q. Records relating to CannaVest. Who maintaing
those?

A. In the office in San Diego.

Q. Any CannaVest records kept here in Las Vegas?

A. Yes. Kathleen does all the payroll and hiring of
employees and things like that here in Vegas.

Q. Do you have an accountant that you use?

A Yes.
Q. Who's that?
A. Personal?
Q. Correct.
A. Ed Wilson. CannaVest is PKF Accountants out of
San Diego.

Q. Do you have any other bockkeepers that work for
you?

A. Just the bookkeeper in San Diego.

Q. And what's his name?

A. Bill -- I forget Bill's last name.

Q. Is he a bookkeeper for you personally or
CannaVest?

A, No. All CannaVest.

Q. When you sold the Big Bear property, did you sell

the furnishings inside as well?

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www. litigationgervices.com
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* * k Kk * &

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a
California corporation,

Plaintiff,
Case No. A-12-67035%2-F
vE. Dept. No. XV

RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a
Nevada limited liability
company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT,
INC., a California
corporation; BRUCE MAIZE, an
individual; MICHAEL .J. MONA,
JR., an individual; DOES 1
through 100, inclusive,

pDefendants.

DEPOSITION OF
RHONDA MONA
Las Vegas, Nevada
June 26, 2015

10:31 a.m.

Reported by: Heidi K. Kounsten, RPR, CCR
Nevada CCR No. 845 - NCRA RPR No. 816435
JOB NO. 252983
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RHONDA MONA - 06/26/2015

1 A It means his assistant from his office?age ¢
2 pays it. I don't know where it gets paid from.
3 It's not one of the bills that I take care of the
4 house with. I pay utilities, that stuff.
S Q Okay. So the mortgage is paid through
6 tha office.
7 Do you know -~ and the office what?
8 My husband's office?
9 Q Yes.
10 Is it your husband's personal office, or
11 is it associated with a business?
12 A His business office, yeés.
13 Q Okay. What businesa?
14 A CannaVest .
15 Q Can you spell that?
16 MR. COFFING: (~A-N-N-A-V-E-S8-T.
a7 It's a capital V, I think, too.
18 THE WITNESS: Uh~huh.
19 BY MR. EDWARDS:
20 Q Okay. And you believe your husband's
21 aggistant at the CannaVest office pays the
22 mortgage?
23 A Correct.
24 Q Who is your husband's assistant at the
25 office?
Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112

www. litigationservices.com

1297




RHONDA MONA ~ 06/26/2015

1 A Kathleen. Fage 63
2 o] D6 you know Kathleen's last name?

3 A Kelleher.

4 Q Can you spell that for me?

5 A No.

6 Q 80 you are awavre that there is a

7 mortgage against the property?

8 A Yes.

9 Q Okay. Are you aware of what other kind
10 of debt may be associated with the Red Arxow

11 residence?

12 A No. There was a second mortgage, but
13 that was paid.

14 Q Do you know the balance of the mortgage?
15 A No.

16 Q Approximately?

17 A No.

18 Q Not even approximately?

18 A Well, this says 2.2. I mean, I donft
20 know.

21 Q So that's your best guess, is

22 2.2 million?

23 A That would be my best guess, ig it says
24 that, but I don't know.
25 Q If you could turn to page three, please,

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112

www.litigationservices.com
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RPLY
F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ. ‘ v, 4 i

Nevada Bar No, 9549

E-mail: tedwards@nevadafirm.com CLERK OF THE COURT
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12580

E-mail: agandara@nevadafirm.com
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH ;
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone:  702/791-0308
Facgimile:  702/791-1912

Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Industries
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California

corporation,
Case No: A-12-670352-F
Plaintiff, Dept. No.: XV
v. PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRIES’

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO
RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada limited | REDUCE SANCTIONS ORDER TO
liability company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT, | JUDGMENT

INC., a California corporation; BRUCE MAIZE,
an individual, MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an DATE OF HEARING: March 21, 2016
individual; DOES 1 through 100, inclusive, TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 am.

Defendants.

Plaintiff FAR WEST INDUSTRIES (“Far West"), by and through its attorneys, F.
THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ. and ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ. of the law firm of HOLLEY
DRIGGS WALCH FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON, hereby submits this reply in Support
of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (the “Motion™). |

The Monas have backed themselves into a corner and are now willing to do and say
anything to delay the inevitable. In front of the Nevada Supreme Court, the Monas argued that
Far West must file a separate action to obtain a judgment against Ms. Mona related to the $3.4
million fraudulent transfer. Far West then filed a separate action before Judge Bare secking to

obtain a judgment against Ms, Mona related to the $3.4 million fraudulent transfer. In response,

10594-01/1664564.doc

1303




o ~3 N W +o LN nNa —

[ I N S S S S e S e N U e e e
[ - ¥ A Pr S~ " ~ - - B N S A ¥ YT T - S o B L ]

the Monas collectively moved to dismiss the claim and argued that Judge Bare could not enter a
judgment against Ms. Mona because this Court had already entered an “Order/Judgment” on the
issue. Specifically, the Monas argued before Judge Bare as follows:

Plaintiff's second cause of action is for the alleged fraudulent
transfer of $3.4 million from Mike Mona to Rhonda, which is half
of $6.8 million the Monas received through a stock sale. See Plitf’s
Amended Complaint at 10:26-11:25.  Plaintiff has already
asserted and obtained an Order/Ju t regarding this exact
same claim against Mike Mona and Rhonda _
&—12«%70352. Id. at 3:22-24, 4:18-28, and 6:26-7:10. The Court
concluded that Mike Mona agreeing to split the $6 8 million with
Rhonda Mona through the Post-Marital Settlement Agreement was
a fraudulent transfer, Id. The Court's Order is now the subject of a
pending appeal before the Nevada Supreme Court. Id. at 7:50.
Therefore, Plaintiff is barred from bringing the exact same claim;
which has been decided and is the subject of an appeal.

See Defendants Motion to Diémiss, 9:8-16 (emphasis added).

Now, in front of this Court, the Monas argue that this Court cannot enter the
“Order/Judgment” that they told Judge Bare was already entered. Clearly, some court must be
able to enter a judgment against Ms. Mona. If Judge Bare’s court was not the proper forum, this
Court must be the proper forum.

REPLY TO MR, MONA’S OPPOSITION

As Mr. Mona concedes, the stay of these proceedings pending his appeal of this Court’s
Order Regarding Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject
to Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find Monas in Contempt (“Sanctions Order”) has
expired. See Mr. Mona’s Opposition at 4:18-20. Despite Mr. Mona’s failure to comply with the
Court’s Order Regarding Motion on an Order Shortening Time for Bond Pending Appeal (“Bond
Order”) by posting the required bond to stay the Sanctions Ovder, he is attempting to avoid the
consequences of his actions by preventing Far West from obtaining relief it is entitled to, namely
the attorney’s fees and costs it was awarded in the Sanctions Order. See Sanctions Order,
entered July 16, 2015,

Mr. Mona’s Opposition is completely devoid of any legal authority in support of his
attempted delay of enforcement of the valid and final Sanctions Order that grants Far West its
fees and costs against him. As the Nevada Supreme Court noted in its Order Denying Motion,

“2.
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there was no abuse of discretion in this Court’s issuance of the Bond Order and Mr. Mona’s only
avenue to stay the proceedings of this case was to post the required superseseas bond, See Order
Denying Motion, Exhibit 7 to the Motion, at 2, and Bond Order. It is readily apparent that Mr.
Mona is seeking to obtain relief that this Court and the Nevada Supreme Court denied: a stay
without having to post the required bond. Requiring Far West to wait until the appeal is resolved
before it can collect the awarded attorney’s fees and costs would contradict orders of this Court
and the Nevada Supreme Court.

Mr. Mona points to no authority for his position that this Court’s enforcement of its own
Sanctions Order would somehow deprive the Nevada Supreme Court of jurisdiction over the
appeal. His arguments regarding the propricty of the Sanctions Order are nothing more than a
rehash of those made in his appeal papers, all of which the Nevada Supreme Court was informed
of prior to denying his request to stay this proceeding and the Sanctions Order. Further it is
procedurally improper and untimely for Mr. Mona to seek reconsideration of the Bond Order
through his Opposition. EDCR 2.24(2).

As to Mr, Mona’s arguments about the reasonableness of Far West’s attorney’s fees,
Plaintiff's Memorandum of Fees and Costs Associated With Order to Show Cause Why
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject to Execution and Why the Court Should Not
Find Monas in Contempt (“Fees and Costs Memorandum”) demonstrates how Far West has been
harmed by Mr. Mona’s egregious conduct, including concealment of millions of dollars in assets,
withholding of documents that this Court ordered him to produce, and outright lying during his
sworn judgment debtor testimony. In order to support its meritorious Application for Order to
Show Cause Why Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject to Execution and Why the
Court Should Not Find Monas in Contempt, Far West’s counsel necessarily had to perform
significant factual and legal research, respond to Mr. Mona’s filings, and attend the related
hearing with extensive argument. Mr. Mona’s nitpicking as to the time spent unraveling his
fraudulent transfer and holding him responsible for that misconduct should be afforded no

weight. Finally, his argument regarding joint and several liability between him and Rhonda
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Mona (“Ms. Mona”) is unsupported by law and has no bearing on the merits of the Motion to
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment,

Because Mr. Mona has not provided any legitimate or factual basis as to why Far West
should not be obtain a judgment for the fees and costs the Court awarded. Far West respectfully
requests that the Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment be granted.

REPLY TO MS. MONA’S OPPOSITION

This Court should not allow Ms. Mona to stay its Sanctions Order when she failed to post
the supersedeas bond required by the Court and subsequently affirmed by the Nevada Supreme
Court. See Sanctions Order, attached as Exhibit 1 to the Motion; and Order Denying Motion,
attached as Exhibit 7 to the Motion, As the Nevada Supreme Court noted in its Order Denying
Motion, there was no abuse of discretion in this Court’s Bond Order that required Ms. Mona to
post a supersedeas bond to stay proceedings in this case. See Order Denying Motion, Exhibit 7
to the Motion, at 2, and Bond Order, issued October 16, 2013,

Ms. Mona’s complaint that Far West is attempting to hold her responsible for a Judgment
against Mr. Mona is simply unfounded. The basis for Far West judgment against her is the
Court’s Sanctions Order that resulted from Ms, Mona’s own personal misconduct, which was
detailed in numerous findings of fact establishing her liability for a $3,406,601.10 fraudulent
transfer through the Monas® Post-Marital Settlement Agreement and the attorney’s fees and costs
Far West incurred because of that misconduct. See Sanctions Order, Exhibit 1 to the Motion.
She also incorrectly states that Far West is relying \upon Barney v. Mt. Rose Heating & Air
Conditioning, 124 Nev. 821, 192 P.3d 730 (2008) for judgment as to the $3,406,601.10
fraudulent transfer when that case supports Far West's award of attorney’s fees and costs. See
the Motion at 10. '

To the extent that the Court entertains Ms, Mona’s rehashed appeal arguments that failed
to persuade the Nevada Supreme Court to stay the Sanctions Order and this case, Far West has
attached its Real Party in Interest’s Answering Brief (“Far West Appeal Answer”) with

Supplemental Appendix to Real Party in Interest’s Answering Brief and Notice of Errata to Real
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